
 
AGENDA 

HANOVER CITY COUNCIL 
APRIL 7, 2015 

 
MAYOR 
CHRIS KAUFFMAN 
 
COUNCIL 
JOHN VAJDA 
DOUG HAMMERSENG 
KEN WARPULA 
JIM ZAJICEK 
 

 
1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance Local Board of Appeal and Equalization: 7:00 p.m.  

 
2. Adjournment 

 
3. Call to Order Regular City Council Meeting: Immediately Following 
 
4. Approval of Agenda 
 
5. Consent Agenda Items: 

a. Approve Minutes of March 17, 2015 City Council Work Session Meeting (page 28) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (page 31) 

 Claims  $   35,515.10 
 Payroll   $     6,497.14 
 P/R taxes & Exp $     2,445.02 
 Other Claims  $     1,466.39  
 Total Claims     $   45,923.65 

c. Res No 04-07-15-13 – Accepting a Donation from the Hanover Athletic Association 
d. Res No 04-07-15-14 – Accepting Donations for the Annual Easter Egg Hunt 
e. Res No 04-07-15-15 – Approving Employee Salary Adjustments 
f. Res No 04-07-15-16 – Approving Optional 2 AM Liquor License for Chops Bar & Grill 
g. Res No 04-07-15-17 – Approving Non-Waiver of Statutory Liability Coverage Limit 
h. Ordinance No 2015-02 – Amendment to Chapter 9 Related to Septic Systems 

 
6. Citizen’s Forum: 

a. Dana Arrigo – 11344 Crow River Drive 
To address the Council in the Citizen’s Forum, please complete the Citizen’s Forum sign-in sheet 
on the table near the entrance and give it to the Mayor or City Administrator. 
 

7. Public Hearings 
 
8. Unfinished Business 

a. Res No 04-07-15-18 – Awarding 107th Ave NE Surface Improvement Project (page 73) 
b. Res No 04-07-15-19 – Awarding 9th Street NE Surface Improvement Project (page 74) 
c. Res No 04-07-15-20 – Approving Memorial Garden Concrete Sidewalk Extension (pg75) 
d. Res No 04-07-15-21 – Approving Hire of Seasonal Public Works Employee (page 79) 
e. Res No 04-07-15-22 – Approving Bathroom Remodel Final Pay Voucher (page 80) 
f. Changing Cleaning Contract (page 82) 

1



9. New Business 
a. Ordinance 2015-01 – Amendment to Chapter 10 Sections 10.48 and 10.52 (page 114) 
b. Res No 04-07-15-23 – Setting Public Hearing on a Road Vacation (page 117) 
c. Res No 04-07-15-24 – Approving Site Plan for Hanover Elementary School (page 120) 
d. Res No 04-07-15-25 – Accepting a Donation from the  Hanover Lions (page 137) 
e. Res No 04-07-15-26 – Authorizing First Half Payment of Lion Water Fountain (pg 138) 
f. Fire Department – Replacement Chargers and Batteries (page 140) 

 
10. Reports of Mayor and Council Members, Staff, Boards, and Committees 
 
11. Adjournment 

2



Hennepin County Assessor Department

Assessor Department       612 348-3046, Phone 
A-2103 Government Center       612 348-8751, Fax 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55487-0231 

To: City of Hanover, Mayor and Council 

From: Connor Rausch, Appraiser 
Melissa Potter, Sr. Appraiser 

Date: February 12, 2015 

Re: 2015 Assessment and Board of Appeal Meeting 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

The 2015 Hanover Board of Appeal Meeting has been scheduled for Tuesday, April 7, 2015.  In 
preparation for the upcoming Board of Appeal Meeting, please find the enclosed data to help you 
understand the 2015 assessment.  There is a revaluation area map, and Board of Appeal/Open 
Book meeting procedures.  In addition, we have included a sample of sales throughout the city, 
with photos and respective characteristics.  

Annual Revaluation 

Each year, one fifth of the properties in the city are normally reviewed and the records are 
updated. Enclosed is a map of the 2015 revaluation area as well as the areas to be reviewed over 
the next four years. 

Summary of the 2015 Assessment 

Each year the estimated market values are analyzed along with sales data from the market. 
Adjustments, as appropriate for each property, are made.  The results of those adjustments for the 
2015 assessment areas are as follows: 

Residential Off-River   8.9% 
Residential On-River   5.4% 
Townhouses   43.5% 
Agricultural   1.9% 
Commercial/Industrial  0.0%             

There are 265 taxable parcels in the city with a total market value of approximately $69,245,000. 
This value includes $200,000 in new construction improvements.  The overall value increased 
9.5% for all property types in the City of Hanover.  

3



The Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Process 

Valuation Notices were mailed out in the beginning of March.  Taxpayers with value or 
classification concerns should call the assessors office.  During the initial conversation the 
property owner may discuss their concerns and review sales information with an appraiser.  The 
majority of callers are satisfied after having a conversation with an appraiser.  If addition 
attention is necessary, the appraiser will review the property. 

The board has the authority to increase, decrease, or take no action on individual valuations.  The 
total reduction must not reduce the cities aggregate assessment by more than one percent or none 
of the adjustments will be allowed.  The board cannot increase or decrease by a percentage to all 
of the assessments in the district by class.  If the board chooses to reconvene, it must do so 
within 20 day (from the meeting call to order).    Enclosed are additional duties and information 
for local boards as provided by the Minnesota Tax Administrators Manual, which is prepared by 
the Minnesota Department of Revenue - Property Tax Division. 

In order for the taxpayer to appeal to the County Board they must first appeal to the Local Board 
either in person or in writing.  The County Board of Appeal and Equalization will begin meeting 
on June 15, 2015.  All requests for appointments at the County Board must be received before 
May 20, 2015.  To make an appointment, taxpayers should call 612-348-7050. 

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact us at 612-348-3046. 

4



Hanover Revaluation Areas 

2017 Assessment 

2018 Assessment 

2019 Assessment 

2015 Assessment 

2016 Assessment 

5



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Change 

From 2013
Change 

From 2010

Twin Cities Region $169,900 $150,000 $167,900 $192,000 $205,739 + 7.2% + 21.1%

Afton $330,000 $430,000 $275,000 $409,500 $412,375 + 0.7% + 25.0%

Albertville $150,200 $142,500 $149,950 $178,900 $179,900 + 0.6% + 19.8%

Andover $205,000 $182,000 $205,000 $227,491 $236,700 + 4.0% + 15.5%

Annandale $154,110 $153,889 $170,000 $159,000 $172,221 + 8.3% + 11.8%

Anoka $136,312 $113,500 $122,900 $146,950 $166,000 + 13.0% + 21.8%

Apple Valley $177,150 $149,950 $175,000 $195,000 $213,000 + 9.2% + 20.2%

Arden Hills $241,025 $157,500 $325,000 $300,300 $252,000 - 16.1% + 4.6%

Bayport $157,500 $147,000 $184,500 $200,000 $237,450 + 18.7% + 50.8%

Becker $131,950 $131,700 $149,375 $155,900 $169,900 + 9.0% + 28.8%

Belle Plaine $142,250 $137,300 $145,000 $159,000 $187,400 + 17.9% + 31.7%

Bethel $147,600 $100,000 $115,950 $135,000 $115,000 - 14.8% - 22.1%

Big Lake $140,000 $117,500 $134,900 $154,500 $169,900 + 10.0% + 21.4%

Birchwood Village $0 $240,500 $227,900 $287,375 $340,000 + 18.3% --

Blaine $170,500 $154,900 $175,000 $199,200 $218,957 + 9.9% + 28.4%

Bloomington $178,322 $157,000 $171,000 $193,100 $201,000 + 4.1% + 12.7%

Bloomington – East $157,000 $140,000 $145,300 $169,350 $182,000 + 7.5% + 15.9%

Bloomington – West $206,950 $181,725 $191,000 $215,000 $225,000 + 4.7% + 8.7%

Brainerd MSA $152,000 $145,000 $154,700 $160,000 $165,000 + 3.1% + 8.6%

Brooklyn Center $110,000 $82,300 $95,000 $122,250 $139,950 + 14.5% + 27.2%

Brooklyn Park $140,000 $127,000 $146,000 $167,000 $174,900 + 4.7% + 24.9%

Buffalo $150,000 $131,500 $141,000 $171,810 $175,000 + 1.9% + 16.7%

Burnsville $167,000 $147,750 $165,300 $185,000 $209,000 + 13.0% + 25.1%

Cambridge $105,000 $94,000 $101,300 $127,000 $148,250 + 16.7% + 41.2%

Cannon Falls $139,450 $121,450 $145,000 $177,500 $168,800 - 4.9% + 21.0%

Carver $225,900 $225,000 $245,000 $282,500 $270,000 - 4.4% + 19.5%

Centerville $180,000 $154,600 $180,000 $189,950 $197,500 + 4.0% + 9.7%

Champlin $172,078 $148,000 $159,400 $182,700 $194,000 + 6.2% + 12.7%

Chanhassen $313,500 $297,500 $280,500 $303,500 $318,000 + 4.8% + 1.4%

Chaska $210,750 $170,000 $207,500 $251,000 $235,000 - 6.4% + 11.5%

Chisago $159,500 $155,700 $168,500 $199,850 $201,000 + 0.6% + 26.0%

Circle Pines $139,900 $124,150 $139,450 $144,150 $154,000 + 6.8% + 10.1%

Clear Lake $168,950 $146,800 $152,450 $160,500 $154,500 - 3.7% - 8.6%

Clearwater $159,900 $127,750 $150,000 $160,000 $159,500 - 0.3% - 0.3%

Coates $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 -- --

Cokato $99,000 $107,500 $105,000 $129,900 $119,900 - 7.7% + 21.1%

Cologne $193,000 $189,900 $182,550 $181,500 $262,950 + 44.9% + 36.2%

Columbia Heights $120,000 $101,500 $99,950 $132,000 $140,000 + 6.1% + 16.7%

Columbus $232,000 $177,277 $208,500 $202,800 $227,500 + 12.2% - 1.9%

Coon Rapids $133,000 $114,900 $125,105 $150,000 $160,600 + 7.1% + 20.8%

Corcoran $291,500 $246,000 $230,000 $300,000 $312,500 + 4.2% + 7.2%

Cottage Grove $174,450 $160,000 $174,650 $194,000 $210,000 + 8.2% + 20.4%

Crystal $139,900 $105,000 $127,550 $149,250 $158,000 + 5.9% + 12.9%

Dayton $205,000 $142,000 $191,500 $274,000 $218,250 - 20.3% + 6.5%

Median Prices – Around the Metro
2014 Annual Report on the Twin Cities Housing Market

Current as of January 9, 2015. All data from NorthstarMLS. Powered by 10K Research and Marketing.   |   176



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Change 

From 2013
Change 

From 2010

Deephaven $509,000 $322,000 $493,250 $518,500 $585,000 + 12.8% + 14.9%

Delano $195,000 $173,150 $205,500 $232,870 $241,250 + 3.6% + 23.7%

Dellwood $617,575 $499,000 $360,000 $507,500 $765,000 + 50.7% + 23.9%

Eagan $189,000 $170,950 $193,990 $220,000 $234,375 + 6.5% + 24.0%

East Bethel $150,400 $162,500 $165,000 $179,900 $198,500 + 10.3% + 32.0%

Eden Prairie $264,800 $257,110 $257,000 $279,647 $300,000 + 7.3% + 13.3%

Edina $339,000 $339,000 $343,875 $350,000 $380,000 + 8.6% + 12.1%

Elk River $160,000 $132,000 $157,000 $172,000 $195,000 + 13.4% + 21.9%

Elko New Market $209,900 $193,000 $215,000 $247,627 $257,260 + 3.9% + 22.6%

Excelsior $277,000 $350,000 $291,500 $409,750 $452,500 + 10.4% + 63.4%

Falcon Heights $239,500 $207,500 $228,706 $244,000 $257,450 + 5.5% + 7.5%

Faribault $118,500 $100,000 $115,000 $128,450 $137,500 + 7.0% + 16.0%

Farmington $172,000 $140,500 $163,000 $192,500 $210,000 + 9.1% + 22.1%

Forest Lake $135,450 $153,750 $185,000 $191,000 $219,900 + 15.1% + 62.3%

Fridley $136,545 $120,000 $127,000 $153,500 $160,000 + 4.2% + 17.2%

Gem Lake $225,450 $240,000 $352,261 $169,450 $563,864 + 232.8% + 150.1%

Golden Valley $235,500 $199,000 $218,500 $246,000 $247,500 + 0.6% + 5.1%

Grant $395,000 $422,500 $367,500 $415,500 $445,000 + 7.1% + 12.7%

Greenfield $237,750 $373,000 $350,000 $354,000 $500,750 + 41.5% + 110.6%

Greenwood $659,900 $755,000 $675,000 $921,500 $747,500 - 18.9% + 13.3%

Ham Lake $227,500 $211,500 $231,000 $271,600 $289,900 + 6.7% + 27.4%

Hamburg $102,450 $75,200 $111,500 $95,500 $138,000 + 44.5% + 34.7%

Hammond $116,500 $115,750 $121,450 $144,000 $152,900 + 6.2% + 31.2%

Hampton $189,950 $172,000 $138,500 $217,250 $200,000 - 7.9% + 5.3%

Hanover $208,875 $214,950 $211,000 $239,950 $254,313 + 6.0% + 21.8%

Hastings $148,500 $128,500 $142,000 $169,900 $182,500 + 7.4% + 22.9%

Hilltop $35,000 $0 $24,500 $34,500 $47,500 + 37.7% + 35.7%

Hopkins $148,000 $125,000 $159,950 $180,500 $182,000 + 0.8% + 23.0%

Hudson $194,848 $184,500 $195,000 $228,500 $233,125 + 2.0% + 19.6%

Hugo $158,338 $137,000 $164,199 $195,000 $180,000 - 7.7% + 13.7%

Hutchinson $127,950 $115,000 $111,500 $125,000 $142,000 + 13.6% + 11.0%

Independence $433,500 $247,950 $387,250 $405,000 $424,950 + 4.9% - 2.0%

Inver Grove Heights $165,500 $155,000 $160,000 $194,950 $182,500 - 6.4% + 10.3%

Isanti $114,114 $91,500 $117,000 $125,000 $149,900 + 19.9% + 31.4%

Jordan $174,150 $178,000 $177,000 $215,000 $208,750 - 2.9% + 19.9%

Lake Elmo $369,500 $374,800 $367,500 $374,900 $428,500 + 14.3% + 16.0%

Lake Minnetonka Area $345,000 $328,500 $340,000 $369,900 $380,000 + 2.7% + 10.1%

Lake St. Croix Beach $154,850 $85,250 $180,000 $139,000 $176,250 + 26.8% + 13.8%

Lakeland $211,000 $221,000 $195,500 $204,990 $223,000 + 8.8% + 5.7%

Lakeland Shores $738,100 $178,139 $270,000 $265,000 $1,500,000 + 466.0% + 103.2%

Lakeville $225,000 $205,000 $226,000 $258,000 $272,000 + 5.4% + 20.9%

Lauderdale $173,900 $128,150 $168,000 $175,000 $117,750 - 32.7% - 32.3%

Lexington $130,000 $108,563 $136,950 $149,900 $181,920 + 21.4% + 39.9%

Lilydale $201,500 $177,500 $190,000 $200,250 $280,000 + 39.8% + 39.0%

2014 Annual Report on the Twin Cities Housing Market

Median Prices – Around the Metro

Current as of January 9, 2015. All data from NorthstarMLS. Powered by 10K Research and Marketing.   |   187



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Change 

From 2013
Change 

From 2010

Lindstrom $150,000 $143,900 $140,000 $160,025 $179,999 + 12.5% + 20.0%

Lino Lakes $211,250 $174,200 $208,375 $229,900 $243,300 + 5.8% + 15.2%

Little Canada $106,500 $140,000 $175,000 $185,500 $192,593 + 3.8% + 80.8%

Long Lake $198,500 $186,500 $227,500 $231,500 $212,250 - 8.3% + 6.9%

Lonsdale $150,000 $135,000 $144,900 $171,000 $182,300 + 6.6% + 21.5%

Loretto $215,572 $217,875 $130,000 $199,900 $156,900 - 21.5% - 27.2%

Mahtomedi $249,995 $257,500 $249,900 $245,000 $299,900 + 22.4% + 20.0%

Maple Grove $258,000 $214,000 $219,453 $233,000 $246,000 + 5.6% - 4.7%

Maple Lake $100,000 $112,840 $134,950 $145,000 $167,000 + 15.2% + 67.0%

Maple Plain $166,700 $153,500 $187,450 $178,750 $212,500 + 18.9% + 27.5%

Maplewood $156,000 $139,400 $145,000 $165,000 $182,500 + 10.6% + 17.0%

Marine on St. Croix $272,500 $242,000 $274,450 $320,000 $322,450 + 0.8% + 18.3%

Mayer $174,950 $169,900 $164,405 $189,900 $190,000 + 0.1% + 8.6%

Medicine Lake $600,000 $315,000 $650,000 $542,000 $465,000 - 14.2% - 22.5%

Medina $615,000 $525,000 $460,000 $527,500 $525,000 - 0.5% - 14.6%

Mendota $493,500 $80,000 $154,500 $287,000 $78,000 - 72.8% - 84.2%

Mendota Heights $305,000 $286,500 $272,000 $282,500 $330,000 + 16.8% + 8.2%

Miesville $165,350 $0 $140,000 $231,671 $205,000 - 11.5% + 24.0%

Minneapolis - (Citywide) $160,000 $140,000 $165,000 $189,000 $205,000 + 8.5% + 28.1%

Minneapolis - Calhoun-Isle $315,000 $267,021 $300,000 $325,560 $318,500 - 2.2% + 1.1%

Minneapolis - Camden $66,002 $45,000 $59,500 $76,500 $101,000 + 32.0% + 53.0%

Minneapolis - Central $225,000 $214,250 $220,000 $247,250 $321,000 + 29.8% + 42.7%

Minneapolis - Longfellow $170,500 $147,500 $169,000 $185,200 $196,500 + 6.1% + 15.2%

Minneapolis - Near North $55,000 $43,000 $60,000 $80,999 $100,150 + 23.6% + 82.1%

Minneapolis - Nokomis $195,200 $162,700 $176,500 $199,900 $222,125 + 11.1% + 13.8%

Minneapolis - Northeast $151,500 $125,000 $140,000 $169,328 $179,250 + 5.9% + 18.3%

Minneapolis - Phillips $110,000 $72,500 $88,000 $90,225 $115,000 + 27.5% + 4.5%

Minneapolis - Powderhorn $135,000 $110,000 $116,400 $157,250 $168,000 + 6.8% + 24.4%

Minneapolis - Southwest $276,000 $264,450 $277,000 $306,000 $323,500 + 5.7% + 17.2%

Minneapolis - University $207,950 $205,250 $209,950 $221,500 $225,000 + 1.6% + 8.2%

Minnetonka $265,713 $233,000 $255,000 $279,000 $270,000 - 3.2% + 1.6%

Minnetonka Beach $825,000 $1,130,000 $675,000 $670,000 $1,096,450 + 63.6% + 32.9%

Minnetrista $325,086 $349,950 $385,000 $435,000 $434,000 - 0.2% + 33.5%

Monticello $135,000 $124,000 $137,095 $156,045 $172,000 + 10.2% + 27.4%

Montrose $131,371 $114,950 $130,357 $149,000 $164,550 + 10.4% + 25.3%

Mora $79,900 $84,400 $86,500 $98,000 $100,000 + 2.0% + 25.2%

Mound $188,000 $150,000 $169,000 $191,000 $202,000 + 5.8% + 7.4%

Mounds View $166,700 $134,950 $139,500 $163,000 $176,000 + 8.0% + 5.6%

New Brighton $178,000 $157,500 $165,000 $171,000 $197,000 + 15.2% + 10.7%

New Germany $105,000 $110,000 $100,000 $142,450 $154,354 + 8.4% + 47.0%

New Hope $148,000 $126,125 $155,000 $173,000 $185,000 + 6.9% + 25.0%

New Prague $161,250 $143,000 $174,000 $195,000 $188,950 - 3.1% + 17.2%

New Richmond $135,400 $110,000 $124,900 $137,850 $155,850 + 13.1% + 15.1%

New Trier $149,900 $0 $75,000 $63,700 $0 - 100.0% - 100.0%

2014 Annual Report on the Twin Cities Housing Market

Median Prices – Around the Metro

Current as of January 9, 2015. All data from NorthstarMLS. Powered by 10K Research and Marketing.   |   198



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Change 

From 2013
Change 

From 2010

Newport $123,500 $72,175 $98,500 $141,000 $167,000 + 18.4% + 35.2%

North Branch $136,000 $115,000 $123,650 $150,000 $164,900 + 9.9% + 21.3%

North Oaks $584,000 $480,000 $510,000 $625,000 $632,997 + 1.3% + 8.4%

North Saint Paul $145,000 $120,000 $139,950 $150,500 $168,000 + 11.6% + 15.9%

Northfield $159,900 $144,550 $157,250 $182,500 $181,963 - 0.3% + 13.8%

Norwood Young America $155,450 $119,900 $128,912 $146,000 $158,500 + 8.6% + 2.0%

Nowthen $216,000 $180,000 $209,500 $234,500 $241,000 + 2.8% + 11.6%

Oak Grove $200,450 $175,000 $200,825 $228,960 $244,000 + 6.6% + 21.7%

Oak Park Heights $136,100 $130,000 $134,799 $176,200 $177,000 + 0.5% + 30.1%

Oakdale $164,600 $133,000 $134,950 $164,000 $168,000 + 2.4% + 2.1%

Orono $565,000 $532,500 $377,223 $501,000 $572,000 + 14.2% + 1.2%

Osseo $136,000 $115,000 $153,950 $141,950 $175,000 + 23.3% + 28.7%

Otsego $160,610 $159,900 $163,450 $194,525 $214,900 + 10.5% + 33.8%

Pine City $100,000 $81,500 $105,260 $111,275 $120,000 + 7.8% + 20.0%

Pine Springs $390,000 $300,000 $271,500 $320,000 $377,500 + 18.0% - 3.2%

Plymouth $249,000 $245,000 $275,500 $304,450 $305,000 + 0.2% + 22.5%

Princeton $113,900 $111,000 $105,000 $138,900 $149,000 + 7.3% + 30.8%

Prior Lake $223,900 $211,000 $227,500 $270,000 $281,000 + 4.1% + 25.5%

Ramsey $156,830 $137,000 $153,000 $182,450 $199,900 + 9.6% + 27.5%

Randolph $198,900 $168,937 $139,950 $195,900 $262,500 + 34.0% + 32.0%

Red Wing $125,000 $119,850 $127,500 $126,900 $139,375 + 9.8% + 11.5%

Richfield $160,000 $140,250 $155,000 $174,950 $183,750 + 5.0% + 14.8%

River Falls $172,500 $143,600 $151,000 $168,500 $179,200 + 6.4% + 3.9%

Robbinsdale $131,500 $104,750 $123,500 $140,000 $159,000 + 13.6% + 20.9%

Rockford $169,800 $130,000 $154,000 $197,400 $184,768 - 6.4% + 8.8%

Rogers $212,000 $210,000 $236,000 $265,000 $278,950 + 5.3% + 31.6%

Rosemount $201,500 $170,000 $180,500 $215,000 $228,500 + 6.3% + 13.4%

Roseville $190,000 $158,500 $187,450 $197,535 $205,000 + 3.8% + 7.9%

Rush City $95,000 $113,000 $92,000 $122,750 $149,000 + 21.4% + 56.8%

Saint Anthony $181,000 $178,200 $154,950 $179,950 $213,400 + 18.6% + 17.9%

Saint Bonifacius $178,850 $145,000 $189,500 $185,500 $179,000 - 3.5% + 0.1%

Saint Cloud MSA $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 -- --

Saint Francis $135,000 $122,550 $130,000 $149,900 $159,950 + 6.7% + 18.5%

Saint Louis Park $213,250 $185,000 $198,450 $219,000 $230,000 + 5.0% + 7.9%

Saint Mary's Point $134,500 $1,100,000 $170,500 $258,800 $347,400 + 34.2% + 158.3%

Saint Michael $165,000 $165,000 $183,000 $198,900 $220,000 + 10.6% + 33.3%

Saint Paul $121,500 $100,000 $120,000 $143,950 $157,000 + 9.1% + 29.2%

Saint Paul - Battle Creek / Highwood $121,500 $89,700 $111,950 $135,100 $146,251 + 8.3% + 20.4%

Saint Paul - Como Park $190,400 $145,000 $170,000 $190,000 $197,500 + 3.9% + 3.7%

Saint Paul - Dayton's Bluff $74,950 $50,000 $59,450 $93,950 $110,463 + 17.6% + 47.4%

Saint Paul - Downtown $152,500 $128,250 $136,500 $157,975 $178,000 + 12.7% + 16.7%

Saint Paul - Greater East Side $102,000 $85,000 $88,900 $115,250 $129,900 + 12.7% + 27.4%

Saint Paul - Hamline-Midway $142,000 $104,500 $126,350 $149,125 $155,950 + 4.6% + 9.8%

Saint Paul - Highland Park $232,250 $235,000 $229,900 $249,500 $261,000 + 4.6% + 12.4%

2014 Annual Report on the Twin Cities Housing Market

Median Prices – Around the Metro

Current as of January 9, 2015. All data from NorthstarMLS. Powered by 10K Research and Marketing.   |   209



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Change 

From 2013
Change 

From 2010

Saint Paul - Lexington-Hamline $217,000 $210,000 $240,000 $228,950 $250,000 + 9.2% + 15.2%

Saint Paul - Macalester-Groveland $250,000 $228,750 $235,000 $264,250 $277,500 + 5.0% + 11.0%

Saint Paul - North End / South Como $76,250 $57,313 $74,050 $99,900 $118,000 + 18.1% + 54.8%

Saint Paul - Payne-Phalen $82,000 $65,000 $80,500 $100,000 $124,900 + 24.9% + 52.3%

Saint Paul - St. Anthony Park $216,750 $180,000 $190,000 $259,500 $234,750 - 9.5% + 8.3%

Saint Paul - Summit Hill $377,500 $325,000 $288,000 $341,450 $350,000 + 2.5% - 7.3%

Saint Paul - Summit-University $157,325 $130,000 $148,750 $170,000 $185,000 + 8.8% + 17.6%

Saint Paul - Thomas-Dale $65,450 $45,000 $55,000 $80,900 $106,500 + 31.6% + 62.7%

Saint Paul - West Seventh $142,900 $103,626 $121,000 $145,000 $148,250 + 2.2% + 3.7%

Saint Paul - West Side $113,000 $82,000 $90,000 $122,000 $137,000 + 12.3% + 21.2%

Saint Paul Park $134,600 $117,000 $127,750 $145,200 $160,000 + 10.2% + 18.9%

Savage $200,000 $186,500 $208,000 $235,000 $255,000 + 8.5% + 27.5%

Scandia $235,000 $240,000 $247,870 $283,367 $285,000 + 0.6% + 21.3%

Shakopee $180,000 $154,900 $166,750 $194,700 $205,000 + 5.3% + 13.9%

Shoreview $205,000 $180,000 $191,000 $222,500 $222,750 + 0.1% + 8.7%

Shorewood $359,288 $349,950 $414,900 $425,000 $382,500 - 10.0% + 6.5%

Somerset $130,950 $127,000 $119,900 $144,500 $177,500 + 22.8% + 35.5%

South Haven $215,500 $187,500 $153,500 $184,950 $190,750 + 3.1% - 11.5%

South Saint Paul $131,500 $114,995 $112,000 $139,450 $148,000 + 6.1% + 12.5%

Spring Lake Park $131,000 $92,250 $118,000 $141,000 $164,900 + 17.0% + 25.9%

Spring Park $266,500 $199,900 $352,500 $272,500 $446,050 + 63.7% + 67.4%

Stacy $138,500 $139,000 $108,750 $181,750 $199,000 + 9.5% + 43.7%

Stillwater $230,000 $208,000 $216,000 $233,500 $265,000 + 13.5% + 15.2%

Sunfish Lake $300,000 $550,320 $685,000 $819,000 $1,110,000 + 35.5% + 270.0%

Tonka Bay $495,000 $550,000 $797,500 $477,500 $570,000 + 19.4% + 15.2%

Vadnais Heights $165,000 $165,000 $149,900 $167,250 $194,650 + 16.4% + 18.0%

Vermillion $145,013 $153,500 $187,500 $157,500 $220,000 + 39.7% + 51.7%

Victoria $374,695 $351,250 $344,123 $371,500 $369,990 - 0.4% - 1.3%

Waconia $213,500 $187,500 $204,250 $229,000 $237,000 + 3.5% + 11.0%

Watertown $159,500 $118,000 $153,000 $175,000 $170,450 - 2.6% + 6.9%

Wayzata $439,000 $426,000 $427,500 $348,000 $627,500 + 80.3% + 42.9%

West Saint Paul $136,500 $120,000 $125,700 $143,000 $156,200 + 9.2% + 14.4%

White Bear Lake $175,000 $148,500 $161,950 $178,500 $192,900 + 8.1% + 10.2%

Willernie $117,699 $77,000 $141,500 $128,900 $160,000 + 24.1% + 35.9%

Woodbury $243,750 $219,700 $240,000 $267,250 $283,500 + 6.1% + 16.3%

Woodland $561,000 $1,065,000 $700,000 $370,000 $3,275,000 + 785.1% + 483.8%

Wyoming $156,700 $150,000 $163,750 $190,000 $209,000 + 10.0% + 33.4%

Zimmerman $143,700 $118,000 $130,000 $150,500 $161,900 + 7.6% + 12.7%

Zumbrota $129,700 $132,950 $149,900 $155,000 $156,000 + 0.6% + 20.3%

2014 Annual Report on the Twin Cities Housing Market

Median Prices – Around the Metro

Current as of January 9, 2015. All data from NorthstarMLS. Powered by 10K Research and Marketing.   |   2110



 Module #8
 Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction
 Minnesota Property Tax Administrator ’s Manual

Assessment Review and Appeals 

Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction  Assessment Review and Appeals Page 
Last Revision: September 2014 7

The Assessment Appeal Process 

Informal Appeals 
 Property owners should be always encouraged to contact the assessor’s office whenever they have

questions or concerns about their market value, classification, or the assessment process. Almost all 
questions can be answered during this informal type of appeal process.  

 When taxpayers call to question the market value, every effort should be made by appraisers to
make appointments to inspect properties that have not been previously inspected to ensure that
property records are correct.

 If all data on the property is considered to be correct by the appraiser, the appraiser should be able
to show the property owner other sales that have taken place within the market that support the
appraiser’s estimated market value.

 If errors are found during the inspection, or other factors indicate a value reduction is warranted, the
appraiser can easily make these changes at this time.

11



Module #8  
Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction 

Minnesota Property Tax Administrator ’s Manual 

Assessment Review and Appeals 

 Page Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction  Assessment Review and Appeals  
8 Last Revision: September 2014 

 If the property owner is not satisfied after talking with the assessor, he/she can explore formal
appeal options including:

o open book meetings,
o local and county boards of appeal and equalization, and/or
o Minnesota Tax Court.

 The property owner is not required to take part in an informal appeal, but it is often more efficient
for everyone involved to begin the appeal process with this step.

Open Book Meetings 
 This version of appeal is an organized approach to address individual appeals in a less formal

manner than the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization.  

 The assessor sets aside a time (during the months of April and May) and place to meet with citizens
individually to discuss their specific concerns about their properties.

 These meetings are generally an alternative to the local board meeting but they can be held in
addition to local boards.

 If the taxpayer and assessor continue to disagree after the open book meeting, the taxpayer may
choose to proceed to the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization meeting (if one is held in addition
to the open book meeting) or to the County Board of Appeal and Equalization meeting (if there is
no local board meeting).  Ultimately, the taxpayer may choose to pursue an appeal to Tax Court.

What are the benefits of open book meetings? 
 Taxpayers often find them less intimidating than presenting their appeal to the Local Board of

Appeal and Equalization.   

 They often appreciate the fact that they can have their questions answered in a more private setting
and not have to be apprehensive about making a presentation in front of their friends and neighbors.

 In a one-on-one setting, property owners may spend more as much time with the appraiser as they
need.  They can compare the value of their home with the values of similar homes and review
similar homes that have sold.

 The process is very efficient because concerns and questions are often resolved immediately.
Property owners can see that the appraiser collects the same information on all properties,
reassuring them that the process is the same for everyone, and they have not been singled out for a
value increase.

12



 Module #8
 Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction
 Minnesota Property Tax Administrator ’s Manual

Assessment Review and Appeals 

Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction  Assessment Review and Appeals Page 
Last Revision: September 2014 9

What are the procedures for open book meetings? 
There are several different procedures for open book meetings.   
 Some counties hold countywide open book meetings at one or more locations over a set time

period, often during both daytime and evening hours.   
o The dates, times, and locates of all meetings appear on the valuation notices.
o Taxpayers can attend any of the locations at any time and meet with an appraiser to discuss

their valuations and/or classifications.
o Property records and value information is brought to any offsite meetings or accessed via

laptop computers.

 Other counties hold open book meetings for specific jurisdictions.
o Taxpayers in these jurisdictions are notified of the date and time of the meeting on their

valuation notices.
o These meetings may take place at a public facility in that jurisdiction or at the county

offices.
o All of the property information is brought to the meeting or accessed via laptop computers

if the meeting is held offsite.

 If a county allows for countywide open book meetings but still has some jurisdictions with
traditional Local Board of Appeal and Equalization meetings, the taxpayers in those jurisdictions
may attend the open book meetings, but it is not required.  The taxpayer may choose to appeal
directly to the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization.  If the taxpayer does attend the open book
meeting and the taxpayer and assessor continue to disagree, the taxpayer can appeal to the Local
Board of Appeal and Equalization.

 If the taxpayer and assessor continue to disagree on the market value or classification after meeting
at the open book meeting, the taxpayer is free to attend the County Board of Appeal and
Equalization (unless there is a local board, in which case, the taxpayer must appeal there first).

What is the assessor’s role at the open book meeting? 
 The assessor must handle each and every appeal presented at the open book meeting.

 County assessor offices may choose to show each taxpayer a short presentation about the
assessment and property tax process, how the assessor arrives at the estimated market value and
how values have changed in the jurisdiction over the past year.

 The office should have documentation procedures in place so taxpayer appeals can be recorded
and addressed.

o In cases where changes are made, the assessor will need to document these changes and
their rationale, and make sure the changes are reflected for that assessment.

o The office should also have procedures in place for notifying taxpayers of any changes that
result from the open book meeting.  This notification is important because any changes to

13



Module #8  
Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction 

Minnesota Property Tax Administrator ’s Manual 

Assessment Review and Appeals 

 Page Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction  Assessment Review and Appeals  
10 Last Revision: September 2014 

the assessment made during the open book process may be further appealed by the 
taxpayer to the local or county boards, or to Tax Court. 

 If a taxpayer comes to the open book meeting to discuss issues and the property has not been
recently inspected by someone in the assessor’s office, an appointment to view the property, both
interior and exterior, should be scheduled.

 The ultimate role for the assessor at the open book meeting is to be sure all questions are addressed
and that clear information is shared with property owners.  The open book meeting can be an
avenue to improve public relations.

14



 Module #8
 Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction
 Minnesota Property Tax Administrator ’s Manual

Assessment Review and Appeals 

Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction  Assessment Review and Appeals Page 
Last Revision: September 2014 11

Local Board of Appeal and Equalization 
What is the purpose and function of the local board of appeal and equalization? 
 The purpose of the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization (LBAE) is to provide a fair and

objective forum for property owners to appeal their valuations and/or classifications.   

 The local board often serves as the first formal step to the appeals process.

 Effective actions taken by the local board may potentially make a direct contribution to
attaining assessment equality.

 The local board must address property owners’ issues efficiently, fairly, and objectively and
can only make changes that are substantiated by facts and that meet statutory guidelines.

 Any changes must be justified because they have the effect of shifting the tax burden to other
properties in the jurisdiction.

Primary Statutory References: 274.01; 274.014; 274.03 

Can an assessor make a change before the LBAE meets? 
 Assessors should not make changes to property within the 10-day “window” between notices

of valuation and classification being sent and the date of Local Board of Appeal and 
Equalization.   

 If an assessor feels that a change to valuation or classification needs to be made between the
time that notices are sent out and the board convenes, the assessor must notify the property
owner at least ten days before bringing the issue before the board, thereby to give the
property owner a chance to appear before the board as well.

Primary Statutory References: 274.01; 274.014; 274.03 

Who makes up the LBAE? 
 Ordinarily, the LBAE is made up of the city council or township board; but it can also be a

specially appointed board if a city charter provides for one.   

 Some jurisdictions choose to hold open book meetings in lieu of LBAE meetings and still
others choose to transfer their local board duties to the County Board of Appeal and
Equalization.

Primary Statutory References: 274.01 

15



Module #8  
Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction 

Minnesota Property Tax Administrator ’s Manual 

Assessment Review and Appeals 

 Page Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction  Assessment Review and Appeals  
12 Last Revision: September 2014 

Who decides when the meeting is held?   
 The county assessor sets a day and time for each LBAE meeting and each jurisdiction

must be notified in writing on or before February 15 of each year.   

 The clerk is responsible for giving published and posted notice of the meeting at least 10
days before the meeting.

o The publishing typically occurs in the local newspaper of the jurisdiction, and posting
typically occurs in the city or town hall.

o An example of such notice is included at the end of this section.

 Meetings shall be held between April 1 and May 31 of each year.

Primary Statutory References: 274.01; 274.014; 274.03 

What are the basics of the LBAE meeting? 
 The LBAE meets at a centralized location within the county that the jurisdiction is located

in, or at the office of the clerk to review the valuations and classifications of properties 
within the jurisdiction.   

 The assessor must be present to answer any questions and present evidence supporting their
values and/or classifications.

 The county assessor, or delegate, must also attend.

 In order to appeal to the County Board of Appeal and Equalization, a property owner must
first appeal to the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization, if one is held.

 The LBAE may recess from day to day until they finish hearing the cases presented, but must
adjourn within 20 days.

o A longer period may be approved by the Commissioner of Revenue.  The board must
apply in writing for an extension; and the commissioner’s approval is necessary to
legalize any proceedings subsequent to the expiration of the 20-day period.

o The commissioner will not extend the time for LBAEs to convene in June.

 No action may be taken by the board after May 31.  All complaints heard after the initial
20-day period (unless extended by the commissioner) or any complaints brought forth after
May 31 must be appealed to the County Board of Appeal and Equalization.

 These meetings are public and must adhere to open meeting laws.

16



 Module #8
 Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction
 Minnesota Property Tax Administrator ’s Manual

Assessment Review and Appeals 

Assessment Review, Appeals/Equalization, and Correction  Assessment Review and Appeals Page 
Last Revision: September 2014 13

 Board members may not participate in any actions of the board which result in market value
adjustments or classification changes to property owned by the board member, the board
member’s spouse, parent, stepparent, child, stepchild, grandparent, grandchild, brother, sister,
uncle, aunt, nephew, or niece, or to any property in which the board member has a financial
interest.  Any relation may be by blood or by marriage.

o If such conflict of interest arises, the remaining board may elect to hear the appeal, if
a quorum and trained member remain.

o Otherwise, no change shall be made to the property, and the property owner shall be
eligible to appear before the County Board of Appeal and Equalization.

 Taxpayers may appeal in person, in writing, or by representative.
o If a taxpayer fails to appeal in person, in writing, or by representative to appeal the

valuation and/or classification of property, that person may not appeal to the County
Board of Appeal and Equalization.

o This does not apply if an assessment was made after the local board meeting or if the
taxpayer can establish not having received the notice of market value at least five
days before the meeting.

Primary Statutory References: 274.01; 274.014; 274.03 

What is the assessor’s role with the LBAE? 
 Give notice to the clerk of the date and time of the Local Board of Appeal and Equalization

meeting by no later than February 15. 
 Give the board information concerning the state of the real estate market.
 Attend the meeting with assessment books and papers, but do not vote.
 Attend the meeting with maps and tables relating particularly to land values for guidance.
 Raise objections received in writing for review to the local board.
 Provide an alternative review option (open book meeting) as described above, when

necessary.
 Provide the Commissioner of Revenue with a record form from the proceedings of the LBAE

within ten days of final action of the board.

Primary Statutory Reference(s): Minnesota Statutes, section 274.01; M.S. 274.014; M.S. 274.03; M.S. 274.12 

17



ADDRESS: 10777 - ROSEDALE AVE N      PID# (67)  02-119-24-11-0061

Direct Sale Price:

$200,000

Style and Story Height: Rambler Age: 1966

Ground Floor Area: 1,176 Above Grade Area: 1,176 Sq.Ft.Sq.Ft.

Finished Bsmt. Area: 70%Bsmt. Area: 100%

Fireplaces: 0 Central Air Conditioning: No

Baths - Deluxe: 0 Full: 1 3/4: 1 1/2: 0

Porches -  Glazed: 0 Screened: 0

    Open: 0 Deck: 0

Garage #1: 0 Type:

Type:Garage #2: 0

Lot Size: 97,911 Sq.Ft. Acres2.25

Lake/Bay/Rating: 00 - 00 - 00 Effective Frontage: 0

Comments:

Sale Price:

$190,000

Sale Date:

08/2014

Sale Date:

2015EMV:MCAP Sale Price:

$205,858

Previous Sale Info:

MCAP(annual)

%7.03

18



ADDRESS: 10785 - CROW HASSAN PARK R PID# (67)  06-119-23-21-0003

Direct Sale Price:

$288,000

Style and Story Height: 1.25 Story Age: 1960

Ground Floor Area: 1,692 Above Grade Area: 1,913 Sq.Ft.Sq.Ft.

Finished Bsmt. Area: 30%Bsmt. Area: 90%

Fireplaces: 0 Central Air Conditioning: Yes

Baths - Deluxe: 1 Full: 1 3/4: 1 1/2: 0

Porches -  Glazed: 0 Screened: 0

    Open: 0 Deck: 0

Garage #1: 647 Type: Attached

Type: DetachedGarage #2: 1,536

Lot Size: 97,004 Sq.Ft. Acres2.23

Lake/Bay/Rating: 00 - 00 - 00 Effective Frontage: 0

Comments:

Sale Price:

$257,000

Sale Date:

10/2013

Sale Date:

2015EMV:MCAP Sale Price:

$313,308

Previous Sale Info:

MCAP(annual)

%7.03

19



ADDRESS: 30110 - 107TH AVE N         PID# (67)  01-119-24-22-0012

Direct Sale Price:

$318,500

Style and Story Height: Split Level Age: 1986

Ground Floor Area: 1,585 Above Grade Area: 1,585 Sq.Ft.Sq.Ft.

Finished Bsmt. Area: 50%Bsmt. Area: 80%

Fireplaces: 1 Central Air Conditioning: Yes

Baths - Deluxe: 0 Full: 2 3/4: 1 1/2: 0

Porches -  Glazed: 0 Screened: 0

    Open: 0 Deck: 286

Garage #1: 440 Type: Attached

Type: DetachedGarage #2: 1,800

Lot Size: 98,893 Sq.Ft. Acres2.27

Lake/Bay/Rating: 00 - 00 - 00 Effective Frontage: 271

Comments:

Sale Price:

$307,000

Sale Date:

03/2014

Sale Date:

2015EMV:MCAP Sale Price:

$337,159

Previous Sale Info:

MCAP(annual)

%7.03

20



ADDRESS: 10565 - 106TH AVE N         PID# (67)  02-119-24-12-0045

Direct Sale Price:

$353,211

Style and Story Height: Two Story Age: 2005

Ground Floor Area: 1,530 Above Grade Area: 3,010 Sq.Ft.Sq.Ft.

Finished Bsmt. Area: 70%Bsmt. Area: 100%

Fireplaces: 2 Central Air Conditioning: Yes

Baths - Deluxe: 1 Full: 1 3/4: 1 1/2: 1

Porches -  Glazed: 0 Screened: 0

 Open: 80 Deck: 306

Garage #1: 1,036 Type: Attached

Type:Garage #2: 0

Lot Size: 13,345 Sq.Ft. Acres0.31

Lake/Bay/Rating: 00 - 00 - 00 Effective Frontage: 0

Comments:

Sale Price:

$410,000

Sale Date:

04/2014

Sale Date:

2015EMV:MCAP Sale Price:

$371,834

Previous Sale Info:

MCAP(annual)

%7.03

21



ADDRESS: 10724 - 108TH AVE N         PID# (67)  02-119-24-12-0017

Direct Sale Price:

$445,000

$418,000

Style and Story Height: Two Story Age: 2002

Ground Floor Area: 1,740 Above Grade Area: 2,625 Sq.Ft.Sq.Ft.

Finished Bsmt. Area: 70%Bsmt. Area: 80%

Fireplaces: 2 Central Air Conditioning: Yes

Baths - Deluxe: 1 Full: 1 3/4: 1 1/2: 1

Porches -  Glazed: 0 Screened: 0

 Open: 138 Deck: 198

Garage #1: 744 Type: Attached

Type:Garage #2: 0

Lot Size: 15,737 Sq.Ft. Acres0.36

Lake/Bay/Rating: 00 - 00 - 00 Effective Frontage: 98

Comments:

Sale Price:

$383,000

Sale Date:

07/2014

Sale Date: 07/2011

2015EMV:MCAP Sale Price:

$460,642

Previous Sale Info:

MCAP(annual)

%7.03

22



ADDRESS: 10711 - SETTLERS LA N       PID# (67)  02-119-24-11-0054

Direct Sale Price:

$260,000

$179,900

Style and Story Height: Rambler Age: 2003

Ground Floor Area: 1,775 Above Grade Area: 1,775 Sq.Ft.Sq.Ft.

Finished Bsmt. Area: 60%Bsmt. Area: 90%

Fireplaces: 2 Central Air Conditioning: Yes

Baths - Deluxe: 1 Full: 0 3/4: 1 1/2: 1

Porches -  Glazed: 0 Screened: 0

 Open: 118 Deck: 152

Garage #1: 496 Type: Attached

Type:Garage #2: 0

Lot Size: 3,136 Sq.Ft. Acres0.07

Lake/Bay/Rating: 00 - 00 - 00 Effective Frontage: 56

Comments:

Sale Price:

$254,000

Sale Date:

04/2014

Sale Date: 04/2010

2015EMV:MCAP Sale Price:

$273,708

Previous Sale Info:

MCAP(annual)

%7.03

23



ADDRESS: 10707 - SETTLERS LA N       PID# (67)  02-119-24-11-0056

Direct Sale Price:

$280,000

Style and Story Height: Rambler Age: 2005

Ground Floor Area: 1,883 Above Grade Area: 1,883 Sq.Ft.Sq.Ft.

Finished Bsmt. Area: 60%Bsmt. Area: 90%

Fireplaces: 2 Central Air Conditioning: Yes

Baths - Deluxe: 1 Full: 0 3/4: 2 1/2: 0

Porches -  Glazed: 0 Screened: 0

 Open: 118 Deck: 164

Garage #1: 474 Type: Attached

Type:Garage #2: 0

Lot Size: 3,136 Sq.Ft. Acres0.07

Lake/Bay/Rating: 00 - 00 - 00 Effective Frontage: 0

Comments:

Sale Price:

$264,000

Sale Date:

05/2014

Sale Date:

2015EMV:MCAP Sale Price:

$293,123

Previous Sale Info:

MCAP(annual)

%7.03

24



 
 
 
 
 
To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council 
 
From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 
Date:  April 2, 2015 
 
Re:  Review of April 7, 2015 City Council Agenda 
 

 
1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance Local Board of Appeal and Equalization: 7:00 p.m. 

This is an opportunity for property owners appeal their tax valuation. 
 

2. Adjournment 
 

3. Call to Order Regular City Council Meeting: Immediately Following 
 
4. Approval of Agenda 
 
5. Consent Agenda Items: see attached consent agenda packet 

a. Approve Minutes of March 17, 2015 City Council Work Session Meeting (page 28) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (page 31) 

 Claims  $   35,515.10 
 Payroll   $     6,497.14 
 P/R taxes & Exp $     2,445.02 
 Other Claims  $     1,466.39  
 Total Claims     $   45,923.65 

c. Res No 04-07-15-13 – Accepting a Donation from the Hanover Athletic Association 
d. Res No 04-07-15-14 – Accepting Donations for the Annual Easter Egg Hunt 
e. Res No 04-07-15-15 – Approving Employee Salary Adjustments 
f. Res No 04-07-15-16 – Approving Optional 2 AM Liquor License for Chops Bar & Grill 
g. Res No 04-07-15-17 – Approving Non-Waiver of Statutory Liability Coverage Limit 
h. Ordinance No 2015-02 – Amendment to Chapter 9 Related to Septic Systems 

 
6. Citizen’s Forum: 

a. Dana Arrigo – 11344 Crow River Drive 
Ms. Arrigo requested to address Council to discuss street signage on Crow River Drive 
related to children at play. 

 
To address the Council in the Citizen’s Forum, please complete the Citizen’s Forum sign-in sheet 
on the table near the entrance and give it to the Mayor or City Administrator. 

25



7. Public Hearings 
None. 

 
8. Unfinished Business 

a. Res No 04-07-15-18 – Awarding 107th Ave NE Surface Improvement Project (page 73) 
Quotes were solicited for a street surface improvement project on 107th Ave NE.  Two quotes 
were submitted to the City.  Upon tabulation for accuracy, staff is recommending hiring 
Midwest Asphalt to complete the project.  Please see enclosed resolution for additional 
information. 

b. Res No 04-07-15-19 – Awarding 9th Street NE Surface Improvement Project (page 74) 
Quotes were solicited for a street surface improvement project on 9th St NE.  Two quotes were 
submitted to the City.  Upon tabulation for accuracy, staff is recommending hiring Midwest 
Asphalt to complete the project.  Please see enclosed resolution for additional information. 

c. Res No 04-07-15-20 – Approving Memorial Garden Concrete Sidewalk Extension (pg75) 
Fall of 2014 Council directed staff to receive updated quotes to complete the sidewalk 
extension in the Memorial Garden.  Two quotes were received; staff recommendation is to 
hire RSO Custom Concrete based on the low quote for the project.  The project will also 
include an approximate 10’x10’ section of sidewalk replacement abutting City Hall.  Please 
see enclosed resolution for more details. 

d. Res No 04-07-15-21 – Approving Hire of Seasonal Public Works Employee (page 79) 
Council authorized the advertisement of a seasonal Public Works position in February.  The 
application deadline was originally March 6, 2015.  Upon receiving limit applicants, staff 
extended the deadline to March 20, 2015.  Staff scored the applicants and interviewed four 
individuals.  Before extending a job offer, staff is requesting Council discussion on the 
position.  Before you is a resolution to approve the hire if Council chooses to do so.  Further 
discussion will be held related to a request to receive quotes to contract out mowing needs. 

e. Res No 04-07-15-22 – Approving Bathroom Remodel Final Pay Voucher (page 80) 
The bathroom remodel has been completed to satisfaction.  This resolution approves final 
payment to Crow Hassan Builders. 

f. Changing Cleaning Contract (page 82) 
On March 19, 2015 the City entered into a contract with Jani-King to provide cleaning 
services of the City Hall, Fire Hall and Settlers Park.  To-date Jani-King is yet to take 
possession of keys in order to gain access to the buildings to meet the contract requirements.  
Per the contract, staff sent written notice expressing concerns related to lack of service.  
Upon receiving notice, the account manager for our contract contacted staff and stated they 
were unable to find employees who could meet the contract requirements.  Enclosed in the 
packet are proposals received earlier this year for this service.  Staff is seeking direction as to 
continue the contract with Jani-King or begin a new contract with Classic Cleaning Company 
who was the second recommendation earlier this year.  A representative from Jani-King will 
also be present to address Council. 
 

9. New Business 
a. Ordinance 2015-01 – Amendment to Chapter 10 Sections 10.48 and 10.52 (page 114) 

Please see enclosed memo from Cindy Nash, City Planner. 
b. Res No 04-07-15-23 – Setting Public Hearing on a Road Vacation (page 117) 

Please see enclosed memo from Cindy Nash, City Planner. 

26



c. Res No 04-07-15-24 – Approving Site Plan for Hanover Elementary School (page 120) 
Please see enclosed memo from Cindy Nash, City Planner and Justin Messner, City Engineer. 

d. Res No 04-07-15-25 – Accepting a Donation from the  Hanover Lions (page 137) 
The Hanover Lions Club addressed Council at a previous meeting to gage support of a lion’s 
head water fountain in Settlers Park.  The Hanover Lions stated they would donation the 
water fountain, subject to the City installing the cement pad and plumbing needed for the 
fountain.  The Hanover Lions Club is not authorized to purchase the water fountain directly, 
therefore, the Hanover Lions Club seeks to donate $4,000 to the City for the purpose of 
purchasing the water fountain. 

e. Res No 04-07-15-26 – Authorizing First Half Payment of Lion Water Fountain (pg 138) 
The Hanover Lions Club began negotiation with Avalon Studios to construct the water 
fountain.  Prior to beginning construction, Avalon Studios requires the first half payment. 

f. Fire Department – Replacement Chargers and Batteries (page 140) 
Please see enclosed memo submitted by Chief Malewicki. 

 
10. Reports of Mayor and Council Members, Staff, Boards, and Committees 
 
11. Adjournment 

27



CITY OF HANOVER 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

MARCH 17, 2015 – DRAFT MINUTES 
                    
Call to Order 
Mayor Kauffman called the Regular City Council Work Session Meeting of Tuesday, March 17, 2015 to 
order at 6:04 p.m.  Present were Mayor Chris Kauffman, Councilors Doug Hammerseng, and Ken 
Warpula Councilors John Vajda and Jim Zajicek were absent.  Also present were City Administrator 
Brian Hagen, Public Works Supervisor Scott Vogel and City Engineer Justin Messner.  Guest present 
included Doug Voerding of the Wright County Journal Press and Hanover resident Pat Athmann. 
 
Approval of Agenda 
MOTION by Warpula to approve agenda as presented, seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Consent Agenda 
Mayor Kauffman requested the comment he made about Jim Stewart not removing trees to be stricken 
from the minutes. 
MOTION by Hammerseng to approve consent agenda as amended, seconded by Warpula. 

a. Approve Minutes of March 3, 2015 City Council Meeting 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: 

 Claims  $  47,982.25 
 Payroll   $    6,655.98 
 P/R taxes & Exp $    2,474.81 
 Other Claims  $    1,961.22 
 Total Claims     $  59,074.26 

c. Res No 03-17-15-10 – Accepting Donation From Miller Trucking & Landscape Supply Inc. 
d. Res No 03-17-15-11 – Approving Amendment to the Cooperative Agreement Between 

Hanover and Hennepin County for the Funding of the Lake Independence Regional Trail 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Engineer Update 
 MS4 Requirements 
Messner provided a proposal for WSB & Associates to work with City staff in implementing the 
requirements for MS4 compliance.  The MPCA has determined the Hanover must conform to these 
requirements.  Hanover currently has maintenance plans in place for storm water management facilities, 
however, part of the requirements with MS4 is documentation of these plans.  This will be a two part 
implementation process with the first being submitting an application with payment to MPCA by April 
25, 2015.  Second with be documenting maintenance plans and completing ongoing tasks related to 
maintenance of storm water facilities and public education.  The proposal cost is $11,500.  After initial 
implementation the annual cost would be based on hourly rates for WSB employees.  The Public Works 
employees would be able to assist with several of the maintenance projects related to smaller storm 
water pond maintenance.  WSB would assist with public education and reporting requirements. 
 
Council expressed their frustration with the new law because this adds additional costs to a small city 
who does not receive state aid.  Kauffman stated he would speak with state representatives to determine 
if there would be any help for us at the state level in challenging this requirement.  Messner did state that 
Hanover has been proactive in this requirement by implementing the Storm Water Fee and planning for 
storm water facility maintenance which will make the transition easier. 

28



 Hennepin County Road 19 Trail 
Messner provided an update to Council that Hennepin County has requested a waiver of the 60 day 
period to award the bid because they could not complete the proper documentation in time.  The 
contractor agreed to the waiver, but requested that they are able to wait until May to begin construction.  
The construction period would remain at 8 weeks, weather permitting.  With suitable weather conditions 
the project would still be completed by end of July. 
 
Res No 03-17-15-12 – Approving Hire of Probationary Firefighter 
Hagen provided a memo from Fire Chief Dave Malewicki with the resolution.  The memo states that 
Larry Spears was a member of the department before retiring for a short time.  Spears now would like to 
become a member once again.  Chief Malewicki recommends hiring Spears again because he is familiar 
with the duties.  Malewicki further recommends a shorten probationary period because of Spears 
knowledge, but still needs time to update credentials like training and physical. 
MOTION by Warpula to approve Res No 03-17-15-12, seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Staff Retention 
Council stated that these discussions happen too often and would like to reach a point where both 
Council and Staff see Hanover as a fair place to work.  Outside of salary and benefits there are other 
positives to working for the City.  Council further understands that the current employees, particularly 
Public Works, bring a skill set that is beyond what is expected which is an added benefit to the City.  
Council consensus is to provide a current wage increase to both public works employees of $2.18.  Final 
approval will be at the April 7, 2015 meeting. 
 
Future discussions will be held to discuss overall salary ranges.  Cities to consider for comparison will 
be within 20 miles of Hanover and be 3,000-5,000 in population. 
 
Septic System Ordinance 
Hagen provided a draft ordinance amendment.  This amendment is required if Hanover wants to 
continue to regulate septic systems within the city.  The amendment includes a number of law changes, 
and allows Hanover to be as restrictive as Hennepin and Wright Counties.   
 
Council asked what the benefit of the amendment is to the City.  Hagen stated that the benefit will come 
in the form of customer service.  This will allow residents to work solely with Hanover for all building 
permit and septic permitting requirements.  If we choose to not adopt a updated ordinance, then residents 
would be required to work with the County on septic systems and the City of building permits.  Hagen 
further stated that the MPCA is reviewing the amendments to ensure the ordinance is up to date.  The 
ordinance will be brought back to Council for final approval at the April 7, 2015 meeting. 
 
Reports 
Mayor Kauffman 

• The City of Dayton received a quote in the past for a steel structure Public Works Facility of 
$107/sq. ft. 

• Would like to consider passing ordinances regulating sex offenders and bathroom use of 
transgendered individuals 

• Would like to pass a resolution which would remove Hanover as a Greenstep City 
• Requested Hanover to recognize March 21st as National Down Syndrome Day 

MOTION by Warpula to recognize March 21st as National Down Syndrome Day, seconded by 
Hammerseng.  Motion carried unanimously. 

29



Hammerseng requested consideration of passing an ordinance making it illegal to grow, sell, etc. 
marijuana in Hanover, even for medicinal sales. 
 
Warpula reminded everyone present of the Fire Department Pancake Breakfast on March 29, 2015.  The 
event is held at the Fire Hall. 
 
Vogel 

• Stated he is working with Hennepin County and a property owner on Ginseng Lane on an 
erosion issue.  The erosion is currently on private property, but is nearing the public right of way.  
Hennepin County does have designated funds to assist with projects of this nature.  Staff is 
looking into the storm water fund to determine what the intent was and if that fund is solely for 
issues in the public right of way or private property as well. 

• Quotes for the 107th and 9th surface improvement projects are due March 18th.  Quotes will be 
brought to the April 7, 2015 meeting for approval. 

• Crack filling will be completed in late March/early April. 
 
Hagen  

• The second quarter newsletter was provided for Council review.  Please provide feedback to 
Amy by Monday morning so the final version can be printed and mailed before April 1st. 

• The WCAT meeting was held in Buffalo.  Buffalo will be construction an operation hub from 
Trailblazers.  This building will hold approximately 20 buses and plans currently include a 
dispatch area.  A breakdown of rides per City was also provided which will be forwarded to 
Council. 

• Annual audit is scheduled for March 23-27.  We do not expect any surprises, as AEM has 
prepared several documents for the auditors in preparation. 

 
Adjournment 
MOTION by Hammerseng to adjourn at 7:35 p.m., seconded by Kauffman.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
 APPROVED BY: 
  
  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 

__________________________________________ 
Chris Kauffman, Mayor 

  
  
_____________________________________  
Brian Hagen, City Administrator  
 

30



Payments

HANOVER 04/02/15 10:30 AM
Page 1

Current Period: April 2015

$35,515.10Computer Dollar Amt

Batch Name 04/07/15 PAY
Payment Posted

A-1 OUTDOOR POWER, INC. Ck# 030809  4/7/2015Refer 681
Cash Payment $49.99Small Chainsaw Case Value PackE 100-43100-240 Small Tools and Minor E
Invoice 352452 3/11/2015

$49.99TotalTransaction Date 3/19/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

AFLAC Ck# 030810  4/7/2015Refer 691
Cash Payment $32.63March Supplemental Insurance - Clerical StaffE 100-41430-151 Med/Dental Insurance
Invoice 257105 4/1/2015
Cash Payment $126.36March Supplemental Insurance - City 

Administrator
E 100-41430-151 Med/Dental Insurance

Invoice 257105 4/1/2015
Cash Payment $383.63March Supplemental Insurance - Clerical StaffE 100-41430-151 Med/Dental Insurance
Invoice 257105 4/1/2015
Cash Payment $98.28March Supplemental Insurance - Public WorksE 100-43000-151 Med/Dental Insurance
Invoice 257105 4/1/2015

$640.90TotalTransaction Date 3/20/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

ANDERSON, ARLEE Ck# 030811  4/7/2015Refer 707
Cash Payment $158.16Easter Egg Hunt-Oriental TradingE 100-45200-440 Programs/FYCC
Invoice 670693986 3/13/2015

$158.16TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

ASSURANT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Ck# 030812  4/7/2015Refer 716
Cash Payment $88.10E 100-41430-134 Employer Paid Life
Invoice 3/19/2015
Cash Payment $75.03E 100-43000-134 Employer Paid Life
Invoice 3/19/2015
Cash Payment $30.67E 100-41400-134 Employer Paid Life
Invoice 3/19/2015
Cash Payment $98.67E 100-41430-134 Employer Paid Life
Invoice 3/19/2015
Cash Payment $52.67E 100-43000-134 Employer Paid Life
Invoice 3/19/2015

$345.14TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

AT&T MOBILITY Ck# 030813  4/7/2015Refer 703
Cash Payment $164.60PW PhoneE 100-43000-321 Telephone
Invoice 287259431404x0 3/17/2015

$164.60TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

A-TOOL SHED Ck# 030814  4/7/2015Refer 719
Cash Payment $26.00Lino Roller for City Hall Floor RevampE 100-41940-415 Other Equipment Rental
Invoice 34493 3/24/2015

$26.00TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

AVALON SCULPTURE Ck# 030815  4/7/2015Refer 726
Cash Payment $1,935.00Down Payment for Lions FountainR 100-36230 Contributions and Donations
Invoice 372 3/16/2015

$1,935.00TotalTransaction Date 4/2/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

31



Payments

HANOVER 04/02/15 10:30 AM
Page 2

Current Period: April 2015

AVENET, LLC Ck# 030816  4/7/2015Refer 690
Cash Payment $450.00GovOffice Annual Service Package Through 4-

30-16
E 100-41570-207 Computer Supplies

Invoice 36670 3/17/2015

$450.00TotalTransaction Date 3/20/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CARDMEMBER SRVC (CENTRAL B Ck# 030817  4/7/2015Refer 705
Cash Payment $499.64White Board for Fire HallE 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice March 2015 3/25/2015

$499.64TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CROW HASSAN BUILDERS, INC Ck# 030818  4/7/2015Refer 723
Cash Payment $5,000.00Balance of Bathroom RemodelG 401-20600 Contracts Payable
Invoice 331 4/1/2015

$5,000.00TotalTransaction Date 4/2/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

CROW RIVER NEWS Ck# 030819  4/7/2015Refer 700
Cash Payment $64.002 YR Renewal of PaperE 100-41435-306 Dues & Subscriptions
Invoice

$64.00TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

DELTA DENTAL Ck# 030820  4/7/2015Refer 692
Cash Payment $115.80Subscriber Period 4/1/15 - 4/30/15G 100-21706 Medical/Dental Ins
Invoice 3/15/2015

$115.80TotalTransaction Date 3/20/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

ECM PUBLISHERS, INC. Ck# 030821  4/7/2015Refer 687
Cash Payment $79.15Ad #360318 / PHN - Wetland Setback VarianceG 818-20200 Accounts Payable
Invoice 196719 3/12/2015
Cash Payment $71.24Ad#367720 / Board of Appeals NoticeE 100-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishing
Invoice 201388 3/26/2015

$150.39TotalTransaction Date 3/20/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

ESS BROTHERS AND SONS INC. Ck# 030822  4/7/2015Refer 710
Cash Payment $124.0016" Female Top SectionE 100-43121-224 Street Maint Materials
Invoice UU1095 3/16/2015

$124.00TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

FIRE SAFETY USA, INC. Ck# 030823  4/7/2015Refer 714
Cash Payment $77.50Pike Pole w/ HandleE 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts
Invoice 77533 3/20/2015

$77.50TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

GENERATION CONSULTANTS, LL Ck# 030824  4/7/2015Refer 713
Cash Payment $119.97Monthly Fees 1st QtrE 100-42260-323 Radio Units
Invoice 4012 3/1/2015

$119.97TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

GOPHER SIGN COMPANY Ck# 030825  4/7/2015Refer 718
Cash Payment $121.11Post Office SignE 100-43121-226 Sign Repair Materials
Invoice 95559 3/18/2015

$121.11TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

HAGEN, BRIAN Ck# 030826  4/7/2015Refer 721

32



Payments

HANOVER 04/02/15 10:30 AM
Page 3

Current Period: April 2015

Cash Payment $213.90Mileage To/From Finance Clerk ConferenceE 100-41400-208 Training and Instruction
Invoice 3/23/2015
Cash Payment $20.00Notary Filing FeeE 100-41400-306 Dues & Subscriptions
Invoice 3/23/2015

$233.90TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

LOFFLER COMPANIES, INC. Ck# 030827  4/7/2015Refer 689
Cash Payment $47.31Contract overage charge for the 2/17/15 to 

3/16/15 overage period
E 100-41570-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice

$47.31TotalTransaction Date 3/20/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

M. MILLER TRUCK & TRAILER Ck# 030828  4/7/2015Refer 724
Cash Payment $281.57Tanker IIE 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice R1605 3/23/2015

$281.57TotalTransaction Date 4/2/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

MENARDS-BUFFALO Ck# 030829  4/7/2015Refer 688
Cash Payment $38.36Misc.E 100-43100-260 Uniforms
Invoice 78817 3/11/2015
Cash Payment $258.67MiscE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 79277 3/11/2015
Cash Payment $136.984' Wood Lath; 36 x 24 White Vinyl; Gal Bar & 

Chane Lube
E 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 78721 3/10/2015
Cash Payment $80.14City Hall Flooring RevampE 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structures
Invoice 79848 3/24/2015
Cash Payment $156.90City Hall Flooring RevampE 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structures
Invoice 79936 3/25/2015
Cash Payment $31.85City Hall Flooring RevampE 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structures
Invoice 79930 3/25/2015

$702.90TotalTransaction Date 3/20/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

METRO WEST INSPECTION SERVI Ck# 030830  4/7/2015Refer 711
Cash Payment $4,559.45March InspectionsE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice

$4,559.45TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

MILLER TRUCKING & LANDSCAPE Ck# 030831  4/7/2015Refer 704
Cash Payment $17.00DirtE 100-43121-224 Street Maint Materials
Invoice 3/16/2015

$17.00TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

RANDYS ENVIRONMENTAL SERVI Ck# 030832  4/7/2015Refer 720
Cash Payment $2,972.10MarchE 100-43245-384 Refuse/Garbage Disposa
Invoice 3/19/2015

$2,972.10TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

RUPP ANDERSON SQUIRES & WA Ck# 030833  4/7/2015Refer 722
Cash Payment $365.00MiscellaneousE 100-41610-304 Legal Fees
Invoice 2727 3/30/2015
Cash Payment $300.00Council/Board MeetingsE 100-41610-304 Legal Fees
Invoice 2727 3/30/2015

$665.00TotalTransaction Date 4/1/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

33



Payments

HANOVER 04/02/15 10:30 AM
Page 4

Current Period: April 2015

S E H Ck# 030834  4/7/2015Refer 715
Cash Payment $953.70EDA ServicesE 201-41330-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 295315 3/13/2015

$953.70TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

SCHMITZ, NANCY Ck# 030835  4/7/2015Refer 683
Cash Payment $69.99Office Depot Reimb - APC Power Back UpE 100-41570-207 Computer Supplies
Invoice 3/19/2015
Cash Payment $19.99Office Depot Reimb / Office SuppliesE 100-41570-200 Office Supplies (GENER
Invoice 3/19/2015

$89.98TotalTransaction Date 3/20/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

VEOLIA WATER NORTH AMERICA Ck# 030836  4/7/2015Refer 693
Cash Payment $97.42Retro Payment January InvoiceE 601-43252-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 00045181 1/23/2015
Cash Payment $119.50Retro Payment January InvoiceE 602-43252-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 00045181 1/23/2015
Cash Payment $2,812.75February ServicesE 601-43252-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 00045181 1/23/2015
Cash Payment $3,849.83February ServicesE 602-43252-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 00045181 1/23/2015

$6,879.50TotalTransaction Date 3/20/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

VISA - BANKWEST Ck# 030837  4/7/2015Refer 708
Cash Payment $60.89EDA-Council Joint MeetingE 100-41110-437 Other Miscellaneous
Invoice River Inn 2/19/2015
Cash Payment $61.48Office DepotE 100-41570-200 Office Supplies (GENER
Invoice 756685533-001 2/20/2015
Cash Payment $28.00MSNE 100-41435-306 Dues & Subscriptions
Invoice 2/22/2015
Cash Payment $7.99Office DepotE 100-41570-200 Office Supplies (GENER
Invoice 6600354 2/20/2015
Cash Payment $50.00PW Seasonal WorkerE 100-41970-341 Employment
Invoice 52464362 3/4/2015
Cash Payment $410.00May Clerks ConferenceE 100-41400-208 Training and Instruction
Invoice 6394 3/5/2015

$618.36TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

VOGEL, SCOTT Ck# 030838  4/7/2015Refer 694
Cash Payment $403.91Cabela's Reimbursement - Fimco Dry Material 

Spreader & 2" Adapter
E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment

Invoice 3/19/2015

$403.91TotalTransaction Date 3/20/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

VRIEZE, STEVE Ck# 030839  4/7/2015Refer 725
Cash Payment $45.00Reimb for Leadership TrainingE 100-42240-208 Training and Instruction
Invoice

$45.00TotalTransaction Date 4/2/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

WEX BANK Ck# 030840  4/7/2015Refer 706
Cash Payment $170.58March FuelsE 100-43100-212 Motor Fuels
Invoice 40220251 3/15/2015

$170.58TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

34



Payments

HANOVER 04/02/15 10:30 AM
Page 5

Current Period: April 2015

WRIGHT COUNTY MAYORS ASSO Ck# 030841  4/7/2015Refer 685
Cash Payment $200.002015 DuesE 100-41110-306 Dues & Subscriptions
Invoice 3/20/2015

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 3/20/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

WRIGHT-HENNEPIN COOPERATIV Ck# 030842  4/7/2015Refer 717
Cash Payment $55.47Eagle View ParkE 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities
Invoice 3/18/2015

$55.47TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

WSB & ASSOCIATES, INC. Ck# 030843  4/7/2015Refer 712
Cash Payment $399.00Hennepin CR 19 Trail

Project 127252
E 401-41950-303 Engineering Fees

Invoice 51 3/23/2015
Cash Payment $711.75General ServicesE 100-41950-303 Engineering Fees
Invoice 2 3/23/2015
Cash Payment $3,492.00Historical BridgeE 401-49844-400 Repairs & Maint Cont (G
Invoice 2 3/23/2015

$4,602.75TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

XCEL ENERGY Ck# 030844  4/7/2015Refer 701
Cash Payment $756.48City HallE 100-41940-381 Electric Utilities
Invoice 449721735 3/19/2015
Cash Payment $35.37209 LabeauxE 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities
Invoice 449554743 3/18/2015
Cash Payment $69.58Historical BridgeE 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities
Invoice 449551995 3/18/2015
Cash Payment $294.55Fire StationE 100-42280-381 Electric Utilities
Invoice 449721573 3/19/2015
Cash Payment $72.38751 LabeauxE 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities
Invoice 450166084 3/24/2015
Cash Payment $11.891033 MallardE 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities
Invoice 450272548 3/24/2015
Cash Payment $13.62Cardinal ParkE 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities
Invoice 450268666 3/24/2015

$1,253.87TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS, INC. Ck# 030845  4/7/2015Refer 709
Cash Payment $423.65Wafer Broom RefillsE 100-45200-580 Other Equipment
Invoice 0153885 3/18/2015

$423.65TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

ZEP SALES & SERVICE Ck# 030846  4/7/2015Refer 702
Cash Payment $296.90Cleaning SuppliesE 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structures
Invoice 9001546245 3/25/2015

$296.90TotalTransaction Date 3/30/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

35



Payments

HANOVER 04/02/15 10:30 AM
Page 6

Current Period: April 2015

Pre-Written Check $35,515.10
Checks to be Generated by the Computer $0.00

Total $35,515.10

Fund Summary
10100  Cash

818 MISC ESCROWS FUND $79.15
602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $3,969.33
601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $2,910.17
401 GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS $8,891.00
201 EDA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND $953.70
100 GENERAL FUND $18,711.75

$35,515.10

36



Payments

HANOVER 03/26/15 3:15 PM
Page 1

Current Period: March 2015

$228.72Computer Dollar Amt

Batch Name 03/26/15 PAY
Payment Posted

POSTMASTER  Refer 699
Cash Payment $228.72April NewsletterE 100-41570-322 Postage
Invoice

$228.72TotalTransaction Date 3/26/2015 Cash 10100Due 0

Pre-Written Checks $0.00
Checks to be Generated by the Computer $228.72

Total $228.72

Fund Summary
10100  Cash

100 GENERAL FUND $228.72

$228.72

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



Paid Register

HANOVER 03/25/15 12:57 PM
Page 1

Check

Numbe

Employee

Number Employee Name

Pay

Period

Pay Group

Description

Check

Amount

Check

Date Status

500258 000000003 Hagen, Brian S. 7 Bi-Weekly $1,797.13 3/27/2015 Outstanding
500259 000000002 Schmitz, Nancy A. 7 Bi-Weekly $983.63 3/27/2015 Outstanding
500257 000000008 Doboszenski, Jason 7 Bi-Weekly $1,190.44 3/27/2015 Outstanding
500256 000000011 Biren, Amy 7 Bi-Weekly $1,033.70 3/27/2015 Outstanding
EFT 000000006 Bursch, Jeffrey 7 Bi-Weekly $0.00 3/27/2015 Outstanding
EFT 000000007 Heins, Russell 7 Bi-Weekly $0.00 3/27/2015 Outstanding
500260 000000005 Vogel, Scott F. 7 Bi-Weekly $1,492.24 3/27/2015 Outstanding

$6,497.14

48



Employee

Number & Name

Deduction

Amount

Deduction/Benefit 

Code & Description

Benefit

Amount

Deduction/Benefit Register

HANOVER

Pay Group: 01 Bi-Weekly

Pay Periods: 2015(7)

03/25/15 1:11 PM
Page 1

000000011 $179.70Federal001 Biren, Amy

000000008 $113.53Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $242.45Hagen, Brian S.

000000002 $70.44Schmitz, Nancy A.

000000005 $147.23Vogel, Scott F.

$753.35Federal

000000011 $76.41State Tax - MN005 Biren, Amy

000000008 $53.15Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $106.67Hagen, Brian S.

000000002 $37.69Schmitz, Nancy A.

000000005 $65.17Vogel, Scott F.

$339.09State Tax - MN

000000011 $21.78Medicare049 Biren, Amy

000000008 $22.92Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $36.25Hagen, Brian S.

000000002 $18.44Schmitz, Nancy A.

000000005 $28.79Vogel, Scott F.

$128.18Medicare

000000011 $93.15Social Security051 Biren, Amy

000000008 $98.01Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $155.00Hagen, Brian S.

000000002 $78.84Schmitz, Nancy A.

000000005 $123.11Vogel, Scott F.

$548.11Social Security

000000011Social Security Benefit $93.15501 Biren, Amy

000000008 $98.01Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $155.00Hagen, Brian S.

000000002 $78.84Schmitz, Nancy A.

000000005 $123.11Vogel, Scott F.

$548.11Social Security Benefit

000000011Medicare Benefit $21.78502 Biren, Amy

000000008 $22.92Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $36.25Hagen, Brian S.

000000002 $18.44Schmitz, Nancy A.

49



Employee

Number & Name

Deduction

Amount

Deduction/Benefit 

Code & Description

Benefit

Amount

Deduction/Benefit Register

HANOVER

Pay Group: 01 Bi-Weekly

Pay Periods: 2015(7)

03/25/15 1:11 PM
Page 2

000000005Medicare Benefit $28.79502 Vogel, Scott F.

$128.18Medicare Benefit

$1,768.73 $676.29Grand Total

50



Employee

Number & Name

Deduction

Amount

Deduction/Benefit 

Code & Description

Benefit

Amount

Deduction/Benefit Register

HANOVER

Pay Group: 01 Bi-Weekly

Pay Periods: 2015(7)

03/25/15 1:13 PM
Page 1

000000011Medical Insurance $451.68504 Biren, Amy

000000008 $828.70Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $292.26Hagen, Brian S.

000000005 $391.55Vogel, Scott F.

$1,964.19Medical Insurance

000000011Life Insurance $50.00506 Biren, Amy

000000008 $75.03Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $30.67Hagen, Brian S.

000000002 $98.67Schmitz, Nancy A.

000000005 $52.67Vogel, Scott F.

$307.04Life Insurance

$2,271.23Grand Total

51



Employee

Number & Name

Deduction

Amount

Deduction/Benefit 

Code & Description

Benefit

Amount

Deduction/Benefit Register

HANOVER

Pay Group: 01 Bi-Weekly

Pay Periods: 2015(7)

03/25/15 1:12 PM
Page 1

000000011 $97.66PERA052 Biren, Amy

000000008 $102.75Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $162.50Hagen, Brian S.

000000002 $82.66Schmitz, Nancy A.

000000005 $129.06Vogel, Scott F.

$574.63PERA

000000011PERA ER $112.68503 Biren, Amy

000000008 $118.56Doboszenski, Jason

000000003 $187.50Hagen, Brian S.

000000002 $95.38Schmitz, Nancy A.

000000005 $148.92Vogel, Scott F.

$663.04PERA ER

$574.63 $663.04Grand Total

52



04/02/15 10:32 AM

Cash Balances

HANOVER
Page 1

April 2015

Fund
Begin

Month
GL Debits

Month
GL Credits

Month Balance

100 GENERAL FUND $640,044.76 $0.00 $18,711.75 $621,333.01
107 FIRE DEPT DONATIONS FUND $31,280.45 $0.00 $0.00 $31,280.45
201 EDA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND $78,538.88 $0.00 $953.70 $77,585.18
205 EDA BUSINESS INCENTIVE FUND $192,128.60 $0.00 $0.00 $192,128.60
311 2008A GO CIP REFUNDING BOND $37,307.90 $0.00 $0.00 $37,307.90
312 2009A GO IMP REFUNDING BOND $18,866.28 $0.00 $0.00 $18,866.28
313 2010 GO EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATES -$20,234.25 $0.00 $0.00 -$20,234.25
314 2011A GO IMP CROSSOVER REF BD $354,766.18 $0.00 $0.00 $354,766.18
401 GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS $849,480.65 $0.00 $8,891.00 $840,589.65
402 PARKS CAPITAL PROJECTS $238,026.02 $0.00 $0.00 $238,026.02
403 FIRE DEPT CAPITAL FUND $110,239.03 $0.00 $0.00 $110,239.03
404 HISTORICAL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $95,646.88 $0.00 $0.00 $95,646.88
407 TIF REDEV DIST #1 $4,769.46 $0.00 $0.00 $4,769.46
408 8TH ST CAPITAL PROJ FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
411 CITY HALL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $59,852.73 $0.00 $0.00 $59,852.73
412 CROW RIVER CROSSING PROJ FD $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
416 RIVER RD RECON FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
417 EQUIPMENT CAPITAL FUND $52,166.90 $0.00 $0.00 $52,166.90
418 STREET CAPITAL PROJ FUND $430,193.73 $0.00 $0.00 $430,193.73
601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $703,049.50 $0.00 $2,910.17 $700,139.33
602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $242,326.39 $0.00 $3,969.33 $238,357.06
603 STORM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $105,851.89 $0.00 $0.00 $105,851.89
611 WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $399,443.82 $0.00 $0.00 $399,443.82
612 SEWER CAPITAL IMP FUND $1,665,458.65 $0.00 $0.00 $1,665,458.65
613 STORM WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $541,799.76 $0.00 $0.00 $541,799.76
804 SCHENDELS FIELD ESC FUND $144,120.19 $0.00 $0.00 $144,120.19
809 BRIDGES AT HANOVER ESC FUND -$13,476.50 $0.00 $0.00 -$13,476.50
811 EROSION CONTROL ESCROW FUND $34,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $34,000.00
815 LANDSCAPE ESCROW FUND $45,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $45,500.00
817 INFRASTRUCTURE ESCROW FUND $16,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,500.00
818 MISC ESCROWS FUND $6,073.42 $0.00 $79.15 $5,994.27
820 BRIDGES TOWNHOMES ESC FUND $3,499.76 $0.00 $0.00 $3,499.76
821 QUAIL PASS 2ND ADD ESCROW FD $11,670.08 $0.00 $0.00 $11,670.08
900 INTEREST $28,533.06 $0.00 $0.00 $28,533.06

$7,107,424.22 $0.00 $35,515.10 $7,071,909.12

53



04/02/15 10:33 AM

Revenue Budget by Source

HANOVER
Page 1

Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

April
2015 Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

TAXES R 100-31000 Property Taxes - General $0.00 $0.00 $995,728.00 $995,728.00 0.00%
TAXES R 100-31020 Property Taxes - Fire $0.00 $0.00 $95,624.00 $95,624.00 0.00%
TAXES R 100-31800 Franchise Fees $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $1,101,352.00 $1,101,352.00 0.00%Source Alt Code TAXES

SERVICE R 100-34000 Charges for Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
SERVICE R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue $0.00 $775.00 $5,000.00 $4,225.00 15.50%
SERVICE R 100-34107 Assessment Search Fees $0.00 $25.00 $300.00 $275.00 8.33%
SERVICE R 100-34108 Administrative Fees $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 0.00%
SERVICE R 100-34109 Copies/Faxes $0.00 $0.00 $80.00 $80.00 0.00%
SERVICE R 100-34207 Fire Protection Services $0.00 $0.00 $106,964.00 $106,964.00 0.00%
SERVICE R 100-34403 Recycling Rev/Reimb $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 0.00%
SERVICE R 100-34740 Park & Rec Concessions $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
SERVICE R 100-34780 Park Rental Fees $0.00 $233.59 $2,000.00 $1,766.41 11.68%
SERVICE R 100-34940 Cemetery Revenues $0.00 $1,300.00 $2,000.00 $700.00 65.00%

$0.00 $2,333.59 $124,344.00 $122,010.41 1.88%Source Alt Code SERVICE

MISC R 100-36100 Special Assessments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
MISC R 100-36200 Miscellaneous Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
MISC R 100-36210 Interest Earnings $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%
MISC R 100-36215 Investment Income/Loss $0.00 $0.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 0.00%
MISC R 100-36230 Contributions and Donations -$1,935.00 -$1,935.00 $0.00 $1,935.00 0.00%
MISC R 100-36235 Insurance Dividends $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 0.00%
MISC R 100-36250 Damage Deposits $0.00 $1,000.00 $7,000.00 $6,000.00 14.29%
MISC R 100-36290 Sale of Vehicles/Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
MISC R 100-39203 Transfer from Other Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

-$1,935.00 -$935.00 $21,000.00 $21,935.00 -4.45%Source Alt Code MISC

LIC PERM R 100-32110 Alchoholic Beverages $0.00 $0.00 $10,300.00 $10,300.00 0.00%
LIC PERM R 100-32180 Other Bus. Licenses/Permits $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 0.00%
LIC PERM R 100-32210 Building Permits $0.00 $5,453.99 $70,000.00 $64,546.01 7.79%
LIC PERM R 100-32240 Animal Licenses $0.00 $20.00 $100.00 $80.00 20.00%
LIC PERM R 100-32260 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses $0.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 33.33%
LIC PERM R 100-32270 Rental Dwelling Licenses $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%
LIC PERM R 100-32280 Other Non-Business Lic/Per $0.00 $7.50 $50.00 $42.50 15.00%

$0.00 $5,981.49 $82,350.00 $76,368.51 7.26%Source Alt Code LIC PERM

INTGOVT R 100-33400 State Grants and Aids $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
INTGOVT R 100-33401 Local Government Aid $0.00 $0.00 $105,859.00 $105,859.00 0.00%
INTGOVT R 100-33410 MV Credit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
INTGOVT R 100-33420 PERA Aid $0.00 $0.00 $339.00 $339.00 0.00%
INTGOVT R 100-33422 State Fire Aid $0.00 $0.00 $24,000.00 $24,000.00 0.00%
INTGOVT R 100-33426 State Police Aid $0.00 $0.00 $4,600.00 $4,600.00 0.00%
INTGOVT R 100-33610 County Grants/Aid for Roads $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $136,298.00 $136,298.00 0.00%Source Alt Code INTGOVT

FINES R 100-35100 Court Fines $0.00 $374.23 $1,500.00 $1,125.77 24.95%
$0.00 $374.23 $1,500.00 $1,125.77 24.95%Source Alt Code FINES

-$1,935.00 $7,754.31 $1,466,844.00 $1,459,089.69 0.53%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

54



04/02/15 10:34 AM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER
Page 1

Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

April
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 41110 Council
COUNCIL E 100-41110-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 -$9.18 $13,700.00 $13,709.18 -0.07%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-122 FICA $0.00 $0.00 $850.00 $850.00 0.00%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-123 Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $199.00 $199.00 0.00%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $20.34 $150.00 $129.66 13.56%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $315.00 $1,500.00 $1,185.00 21.00%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-306 Dues & Subscriptions $200.00 $4,445.30 $2,500.00 -$1,945.30 177.81%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 0.00%
COUNCIL E 100-41110-437 Other Miscellaneous $60.89 $127.00 $5,000.00 $4,873.00 2.54%

$260.89 $4,898.46 $25,899.00 $21,000.54 18.91%Dept 41110 Council

Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions
BRDCOMM E 100-41330-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 $0.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 0.00%
BRDCOMM E 100-41330-160 Liability Insurance Emp $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 0.00%
BRDCOMM E 100-41330-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $150.00 $150.00 0.00%
BRDCOMM E 100-41330-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 0.00%
BRDCOMM E 100-41330-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $21.06 $0.00 -$21.06 0.00%

$0.00 $21.06 $5,850.00 $5,828.94 0.36%Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

Dept 41400 City Administrator
CITYADM E 100-41400-101 Full-Time Employees R $0.00 $12,033.30 $65,500.00 $53,466.70 18.37%
CITYADM E 100-41400-121 PERA $0.00 $1,182.02 $4,900.00 $3,717.98 24.12%
CITYADM E 100-41400-122 FICA $0.00 $977.13 $4,100.00 $3,122.87 23.83%
CITYADM E 100-41400-123 Medicare $0.00 $228.52 $900.00 $671.48 25.39%
CITYADM E 100-41400-131 Employer Paid Health $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
CITYADM E 100-41400-132 Employer Paid HSA $0.00 $248.31 $0.00 -$248.31 0.00%
CITYADM E 100-41400-134 Employer Paid Life $30.67 $18.07 $0.00 -$18.07 0.00%
CITYADM E 100-41400-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
CITYADM E 100-41400-151 Med/Dental Insurance $0.00 $2,667.97 $10,890.00 $8,222.03 24.50%
CITYADM E 100-41400-208 Training and Instructio $623.90 $823.90 $1,000.00 $176.10 82.39%
CITYADM E 100-41400-306 Dues & Subscriptions $20.00 $175.00 $0.00 -$175.00 0.00%
CITYADM E 100-41400-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$674.57 $18,354.22 $87,290.00 $68,935.78 21.03%Dept 41400 City Administrator

Dept 41410 Elections
ELECTION E 100-41410-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ELECTION E 100-41410-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ELECTION E 100-41410-351 Legal Notices Publishin $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 $250.00 0.00%
ELECTION E 100-41410-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 0.00%Dept 41410 Elections

Dept 41430 Clerical Staff
CLERICAL E 100-41430-101 Full-Time Employees R $0.00 $25,708.95 $82,600.00 $56,891.05 31.12%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-102 Full-Time Employees O $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.00%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-121 PERA $0.00 $2,478.49 $6,200.00 $3,721.51 39.98%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-122 FICA $0.00 $2,048.88 $5,100.00 $3,051.12 40.17%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-123 Medicare $0.00 $479.14 $1,200.00 $720.86 39.93%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-131 Employer Paid Health $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-132 Employer Paid HSA $0.00 $1,484.55 $0.00 -$1,484.55 0.00%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-134 Employer Paid Life $186.77 $1,117.96 $0.00 -$1,117.96 0.00%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
CLERICAL E 100-41430-151 Med/Dental Insurance $542.62 $5,259.28 $16,932.00 $11,672.72 31.06%55



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

April
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2
04/02/15 10:34 AM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

$729.39 $38,577.25 $117,032.00 $78,454.75 32.96%Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

Dept 41435 Staff Expenses
STAFFEXP E 100-41435-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00%
STAFFEXP E 100-41435-260 Uniforms $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%
STAFFEXP E 100-41435-306 Dues & Subscriptions $92.00 $165.36 $4,000.00 $3,834.64 4.13%
STAFFEXP E 100-41435-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $150.00 $1,000.00 $850.00 15.00%
STAFFEXP E 100-41435-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $46.73 $1,500.00 $1,453.27 3.12%

$92.00 $362.09 $8,300.00 $7,937.91 4.36%Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

Dept 41530 Accounting
ACCTING E 100-41530-101 Full-Time Employees R $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ACCTING E 100-41530-121 PERA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ACCTING E 100-41530-122 FICA $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ACCTING E 100-41530-123 Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ACCTING E 100-41530-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ACCTING E 100-41530-151 Med/Dental Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ACCTING E 100-41530-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $18,250.00 $0.00 -$18,250.00 0.00%

$0.00 $18,250.00 $0.00 -$18,250.00 0.00%Dept 41530 Accounting

Dept 41540 Auditing
AUDITING E 100-41540-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $150.00 $26,000.00 $25,850.00 0.58%

$0.00 $150.00 $26,000.00 $25,850.00 0.58%Dept 41540 Auditing

Dept 41550 Assessing
ASSESS G E 100-41550-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $159.75 $17,600.00 $17,440.25 0.91%

$0.00 $159.75 $17,600.00 $17,440.25 0.91%Dept 41550 Assessing

Dept 41570 Purchasing
PURCHASE E 100-41570-200 Office Supplies (GENER $89.46 $741.51 $5,500.00 $4,758.49 13.48%
PURCHASE E 100-41570-205 Bank Fees $0.00 -$1.25 $100.00 $101.25 -1.25%
PURCHASE E 100-41570-207 Computer Supplies $519.99 $519.99 $3,000.00 $2,480.01 17.33%
PURCHASE E 100-41570-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $47.31 $467.23 $6,800.00 $6,332.77 6.87%
PURCHASE E 100-41570-322 Postage $0.00 $610.39 $1,500.00 $889.61 40.69%
PURCHASE E 100-41570-570 Office Equip and Furnis $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00%

$656.76 $2,337.87 $20,900.00 $18,562.13 11.19%Dept 41570 Purchasing

Dept 41600 Computer
COMPUTER E 100-41600-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $0.00 $805.00 $0.00 -$805.00 0.00%

$0.00 $805.00 $0.00 -$805.00 0.00%Dept 41600 Computer

Dept 41610 City Attorney
CITYATNY E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees $665.00 $2,585.81 $27,295.00 $24,709.19 9.47%

$665.00 $2,585.81 $27,295.00 $24,709.19 9.47%Dept 41610 City Attorney

Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning
PLANZONG E 100-41910-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $190.00 $17,000.00 $16,810.00 1.12%

$0.00 $190.00 $17,000.00 $16,810.00 1.12%Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-210 Operating Supplies (GE $0.00 $295.07 $5,000.00 $4,704.93 5.90%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $0.00 $1,380.74 $10,000.00 $8,619.26 13.81%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 -$250.00 0.00%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $1,246.01 $8,400.00 $7,153.99 14.83%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-321 Telephone $0.00 $778.79 $5,500.00 $4,721.21 14.16%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-325 Taxes $0.00 $220.00 $7,000.00 $6,780.00 3.14%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-381 Electric Utilities $756.48 $1,867.01 $9,000.00 $7,132.99 20.74%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities $0.00 $1,015.08 $5,000.00 $3,984.92 20.30%56



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

April
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 3
04/02/15 10:34 AM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $0.00 $388.55 $2,000.00 $1,611.45 19.43%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-415 Other Equipment Renta $26.00 $26.00 $500.00 $474.00 5.20%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structure $565.79 $975.30 $5,000.00 $4,024.70 19.51%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-560 Furniture and Fixtures $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 0.00%
GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-580 Other Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

$1,348.27 $8,442.55 $60,900.00 $52,457.45 13.86%Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

Dept 41950 Engineer
ENGINEER E 100-41950-303 Engineering Fees $711.75 $2,091.25 $25,000.00 $22,908.75 8.37%

$711.75 $2,091.25 $25,000.00 $22,908.75 8.37%Dept 41950 Engineer

Dept 41960 Insurance
INSURANCE E 100-41960-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
INSURANCE E 100-41960-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $135.07 $2,500.00 $2,364.93 5.40%
INSURANCE E 100-41960-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
INSURANCE E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins $0.00 $9,153.50 $35,000.00 $25,846.50 26.15%

$0.00 $9,288.57 $37,500.00 $28,211.43 24.77%Dept 41960 Insurance

Dept 41970 Legal Publications
LEGALPUB E 100-41970-341 Employment $50.00 $50.00 $250.00 $200.00 20.00%
LEGALPUB E 100-41970-343 Other Advertising $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 $250.00 0.00%
LEGALPUB E 100-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishin $71.24 $150.39 $2,000.00 $1,849.61 7.52%
LEGALPUB E 100-41970-354 Recording Fees $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

$121.24 $200.39 $3,000.00 $2,799.61 6.68%Dept 41970 Legal Publications

Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff
HCSHERIFF E 100-42101-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $69,335.00 $69,335.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $69,335.00 $69,335.00 0.00%Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff
WCSHERIFF E 100-42102-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $23,542.50 $94,170.00 $70,627.50 25.00%

$0.00 $23,542.50 $94,170.00 $70,627.50 25.00%Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $0.00 $34,340.00 $34,340.00 0.00%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-122 FICA $0.00 $0.00 $2,129.00 $2,129.00 0.00%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-123 Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $515.00 $515.00 0.00%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $2,745.95 $10,000.00 $7,254.05 27.46%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 0.00%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-305 Medical and Dental Fee $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $490.00 $950.00 $460.00 51.58%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-361 General Liability Ins $0.00 $2,370.08 $0.00 -$2,370.08 0.00%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $35.00 $10,000.00 $9,965.00 0.35%
FIREADMIN E 100-42210-700 Transfers (GENERAL) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $5,641.03 $62,134.00 $56,492.97 9.08%Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment
FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts $77.50 $268.15 $5,500.00 $5,231.85 4.88%
FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-228 Medical Supplies $0.00 $171.16 $1,500.00 $1,328.84 11.41%
FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $0.00 $850.00 $850.00 0.00%
FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-260 Uniforms $0.00 $277.50 $4,500.00 $4,222.50 6.17%
FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-580 Other Equipment $0.00 $513.85 $5,000.00 $4,486.15 10.28%

$77.50 $1,230.66 $17,350.00 $16,119.34 7.09%Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training
FIRETRNG E 100-42240-208 Training and Instructio $45.00 $165.00 $7,500.00 $7,335.00 2.20%
FIRETRNG E 100-42240-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $318.28 $1,500.00 $1,181.72 21.22%57



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

April
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 4
04/02/15 10:34 AM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

$45.00 $483.28 $9,000.00 $8,516.72 5.37%Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles
FIREVEH E 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels $0.00 $857.33 $5,000.00 $4,142.67 17.15%
FIREVEH E 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $281.57 $541.61 $9,000.00 $8,458.39 6.02%
FIREVEH E 100-42260-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 0.00%
FIREVEH E 100-42260-323 Radio Units $119.97 $3,929.97 $7,465.00 $3,535.03 52.65%

$401.54 $5,328.91 $23,465.00 $18,136.09 22.71%Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs
FIREBLDG E 100-42280-215 Shop Supplies $0.00 $130.21 $1,650.00 $1,519.79 7.89%
FIREBLDG E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $499.64 $725.14 $3,500.00 $2,774.86 20.72%
FIREBLDG E 100-42280-321 Telephone $0.00 $85.26 $800.00 $714.74 10.66%
FIREBLDG E 100-42280-325 Taxes $0.00 $0.00 $175.00 $175.00 0.00%
FIREBLDG E 100-42280-381 Electric Utilities $294.55 $841.81 $5,000.00 $4,158.19 16.84%
FIREBLDG E 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities $0.00 $2,275.04 $2,600.00 $324.96 87.50%

$794.19 $4,057.46 $13,725.00 $9,667.54 29.56%Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association
FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-124 Fire Pension Contributi $0.00 $0.00 $29,500.00 $29,500.00 0.00%
FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $35,500.00 $35,500.00 0.00%Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin
INSPADMN E 100-42401-310 Other Professional Serv $4,559.45 $14,462.46 $25,000.00 $10,537.54 57.85%

$4,559.45 $14,462.46 $25,000.00 $10,537.54 57.85%Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

Dept 42700 Animal Control
ANIMCTRL E 100-42700-210 Operating Supplies (GE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
ANIMCTRL E 100-42700-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%Dept 42700 Animal Control

Dept 42800 Cemetery
CEMETERY E 100-42800-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $150.00 $150.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $150.00 $150.00 0.00%Dept 42800 Cemetery

Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-101 Full-Time Employees R $0.00 $19,079.82 $92,700.00 $73,620.18 20.58%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-102 Full-Time Employees O $0.00 $296.40 $0.00 -$296.40 0.00%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $354.75 $1,500.00 $1,145.25 23.65%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-121 PERA $0.00 $1,881.39 $7,000.00 $5,118.61 26.88%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-122 FICA $0.00 $1,577.00 $5,700.00 $4,123.00 27.67%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-123 Medicare $0.00 $368.80 $1,300.00 $931.20 28.37%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-132 Employer Paid HSA $0.00 $633.16 $0.00 -$633.16 0.00%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-134 Employer Paid Life $127.70 $638.50 $0.00 -$638.50 0.00%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $2,880.07 $9,000.00 $6,119.93 32.00%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-151 Med/Dental Insurance $98.28 $8,682.19 $19,328.00 $10,645.81 44.92%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $950.00 $1,500.00 $550.00 63.33%
PUBWRKS E 100-43000-321 Telephone $164.60 $454.02 $0.00 -$454.02 0.00%

$390.58 $37,796.10 $138,028.00 $100,231.90 27.38%Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

Dept 43100 Hwys, Streets, & Roads
HWYROAD E 100-43100-212 Motor Fuels $170.58 $1,739.35 $10,000.00 $8,260.65 17.39%
HWYROAD E 100-43100-215 Shop Supplies $0.00 $272.94 $5,000.00 $4,727.06 5.46%
HWYROAD E 100-43100-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $0.00 $769.31 $7,500.00 $6,730.69 10.26%
HWYROAD E 100-43100-240 Small Tools and Minor $49.99 $49.99 $4,000.00 $3,950.01 1.25%58



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

April
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 5
04/02/15 10:34 AM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

HWYROAD E 100-43100-260 Uniforms $38.36 $38.36 $2,000.00 $1,961.64 1.92%
HWYROAD E 100-43100-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $1,296.50 $3,000.00 $1,703.50 43.22%
HWYROAD E 100-43100-325 Taxes $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 0.00%

$258.93 $4,166.45 $31,700.00 $27,533.55 13.14%Dept 43100 Hwys, Streets, & Roads

Dept 43121 Paved Streets
PAVSTRTS E 100-43121-224 Street Maint Materials $141.00 $141.00 $16,000.00 $15,859.00 0.88%
PAVSTRTS E 100-43121-226 Sign Repair Materials $121.11 $3,469.04 $7,000.00 $3,530.96 49.56%

$262.11 $3,610.04 $23,000.00 $19,389.96 15.70%Dept 43121 Paved Streets

Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets
UNPAVSTS E 100-43122-224 Street Maint Materials $0.00 $0.00 $12,500.00 $12,500.00 0.00%
UNPAVSTS E 100-43122-226 Sign Repair Materials $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 0.00%Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets

Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal
SNOWREMO E 100-43125-224 Street Maint Materials $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 0.00%Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal

Dept 43160 Street Lighting
STLGHTG E 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities $107.75 $4,421.29 $30,000.00 $25,578.71 14.74%

$107.75 $4,421.29 $30,000.00 $25,578.71 14.74%Dept 43160 Street Lighting

Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal
REFDISPO E 100-43240-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse
RECYCLING E 100-43245-215 Shop Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
RECYCLING E 100-43245-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $2,972.10 $8,699.02 $28,000.00 $19,300.98 31.07%

$2,972.10 $8,699.02 $28,000.00 $19,300.98 31.07%Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

Dept 43260 Weed Control
WEEDCTRL E 100-43260-215 Shop Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
WEEDCTRL E 100-43260-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 43260 Weed Control

Dept 45186 Senior Center
SRCENTER E 100-45186-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $1,457.02 $7,250.00 $5,792.98 20.10%

$0.00 $1,457.02 $7,250.00 $5,792.98 20.10%Dept 45186 Senior Center

Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)
PARKS E 100-45200-212 Motor Fuels $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
PARKS E 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $395.65 $395.65 $5,000.00 $4,604.35 7.91%
PARKS E 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials $0.00 $0.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 0.00%
PARKS E 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities $150.56 $444.85 $1,100.00 $655.15 40.44%
PARKS E 100-45200-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $355.86 $6,000.00 $5,644.14 5.93%
PARKS E 100-45200-440 Programs/FYCC $158.16 $958.16 $5,300.00 $4,341.84 18.08%
PARKS E 100-45200-441 Community Garden $0.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 0.00%
PARKS E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment $827.56 $2,323.24 $2,500.00 $176.76 92.93%

$1,531.93 $4,477.76 $27,700.00 $23,222.24 16.17%Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)
LIBRARY E 100-45500-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $1,750.00 $7,000.00 $5,250.00 25.00%

$0.00 $1,750.00 $7,000.00 $5,250.00 25.00%Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds
DMGDEPRF E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimbursem $0.00 $800.00 $5,000.00 $4,200.00 16.00%

$0.00 $800.00 $5,000.00 $4,200.00 16.00%Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds 59



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

April
2015
Amt

2015
YTD Amt

2015 YTD
Budget

2015 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 6
04/02/15 10:34 AM

Expenditure Budget Report

HANOVER

Dept 49360 Transfers Out
TRNSFERS E 100-49360-700 Transfers (GENERAL) $0.00 $0.00 $299,000.00 $299,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $299,000.00 $299,000.00 0.00%Dept 49360 Transfers Out

Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)
TRANSIT E 100-49800-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

$16,660.95 $228,638.25 $1,456,823.00 $1,228,184.75 15.69%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

60



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on the 7th 
day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by __________ and seconded by ___________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-13 

 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A DONATION  

FROM THE HANOVER ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION TO THE HANOVER PARK BOARD 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Hanover has received a donation of $2,000 from the Hanover Athletic Association to be 
used towards the Concert in the Park Event. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby 
acknowledges and accepts the donations of $2,000 from the Hanover Athletic Association. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council expresses its thanks and appreciation for the donation 
from the Hanover Athletic Association. 
 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 

61



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on the 7th 
day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by _______ and seconded by ________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-14 

 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING DONATIONS 

TO THE HANOVER PARK BOARD FOR THE 2015 EASTER EGG HUNT 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Hanover has received donations from local businesses and residents to be used 
towards resources need for the annual Easter Egg Hunt held in Settlers Park; and 
 
WHEREAS, the follow donations were made: 

• Comfort Matters, $75.00 
• Maverick Construction, $75.00 
• Don and Lois Mahler, $10.00 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby 
acknowledges and accepts the donations stated above for the purpose and use towards the annual Easter Egg 
Hunt. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council expresses its thanks and appreciation for the donations 
from Comfort Matters, Maverick Construction and Don and Lois Mahler. 
 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 

62



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on the 7th 
day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by _______ and seconded by ________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-15 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING EMPLOYEE SALARY ADJUSTMENTS  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council held discussion about employee retention; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council expressed an importance to retaining quality employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to increase the current Maintenance Worker and Public Works Supervisor 
hourly wage by $2.18. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby 
increases the Maintenance Worker and Public Works Supervisor position’s hourly wage $2.18. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the hourly wage for Jason Doboszenski, Maintenance Worker, will be 
$21.94. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the hourly wage for Scott Vogel, Public Works Supervisor, will be $27.00. 
 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek. 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 

63



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on the 7th 
day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by _______ and seconded by ________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-16 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING RENEWAL OF OPTIONAL  

CHOPS BAR & GRILL 2 AM LIQUOR LICENSE  
 
WHEREAS, Chops Bar & Grill has submitted a renewal application for an Optional Liquor 2 AM license and 
has provided the necessary application materials and fees for submission to the Minnesota Department of 
Public Safety; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff discussions with the local sheriff’s department elicited no concerns with the renewal of said 
license. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota hereby 
approves the renewal application for Optional 2 AM liquor for Chops Bar & Grill for the licensing period of one 
year. 
 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 

64



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on the 7th 
day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by _______ and seconded by ________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-17 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING 

NON-WAIVER OF STATUTORY LIABILITY COVERAGE LIMIT 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Hanover has its liability insurance coverage through the Minnesota League of 
Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT); and 
 
WHEREAS, the LMCIT allows cities to waive the statutory limits of $500,000 per claimant and $1,500,000 per 
occurrence; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Hanover has in the past not waived their excess liability limits.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby affirms 
that it does not waive the statutory limits of $500,000 per claimant and $1,500,000 per occurrence. 
 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 

65



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-02 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 9, SECTION 9.09 INDIVIDUAL SEWAGE 
TREATMENT SYSTEMS 

 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HANOVER ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Section 9.09 of the City of Hanover Code of Ordinances is repealed in its entirety 
and a new Section 9.09 is added as follows: 
 
SEC. 9.09 INDIVIDUAL SEWAGE TREATMENT SYSTEMS 
 
A. Where a public sewer is not available under the provisions of 9.08 (D), the building sewer shall 

be connected to an individual sewage treatment system complying with the provisions of this 
Section. 

 
B. The purpose of this section shall be to provide minimum standards for and regulation of 

individual sewage treatment systems (ISTS) and septic disposal including the proper location, 
design, construction, operation, maintenance and repair to protect surface water and ground 
water from contamination by human sewage and waterborne household and commercial waste; 
to protect the public’s health and safety, and eliminate or prevent the development of public 
nuisances pursuant to the authority granted under Minnesota Statutes Chapters 115 and 145A 
and Minnesota Rules Chapter 7080, as amended, that may pertain to sewage and wastewater 
treatment. 
 

C. It is unlawful for any person to construct, maintain, or use any wastewater treatment system 
regulated under this ordinance that results in raw or partially treated wastewater seeping to the 
ground surface or flowing into any surface water.  Any surface discharging system must be 
permitted by the MPCA under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System program. 

 
D. The City hereby adopts, by this reference, Minnesota Rules Parts 7080 and 7081, as now 

constituted and from time to time amended. 
 

E. On all lots created after January 23, 1996 and on all lots which are existing on January 23, 1996, 
and all undeveloped lots shall have a minimum of two (2) soil treatment and dispersal areas that 
can support trenches, seepage beds, mounds, and at-grade systems as described in Minn. Statute 
7080.2200 through 7080.2230, 7080.2260, or site conditions described in 7081.0270, Subp. 3 
through 7.  For the creation and division of new lots, verification by soil borings located on a 
plan must be submitted establishing that this requirement can be met.  All soil treatment areas 
shall be protected before, during and after construction on the lot.  The method of protection of 
the additional soil treatment area shall be approved by the Building Official and may include, but 
is not limited to, such things as snow fencing, permanent fencing and silt fencing.  No building 

66



permit shall be issued for construction on any property within the City until at least two (2) soil 
treatment areas have been identified and protected on all parcels for which a building permit is 
applied for. 

 
F. All design, installation, alteration, repair, maintenance, operation, pumping, and inspection 

activities for SSTS located in the City must be completed by a business licensed by the state 
under Minn. R. ch. 7083, an appropriately certified qualified employee, or a person exempted 
under Minn. R. 7083.0700, subps. 1(A), (C), (D), (F), (G), (H) and (I). Individuals exempt from 
a state SSTS license under Minn. R. 7083.0700, subps. 1(A), (C), (D), (F), (G), (H) and (I) must 
follow all applicable local, state, and federal requirements. Property owners that employ a 
business to perform this work must hire a business that is licensed in accordance with Minn. R. 
ch. 7083. 

 
G. No person shall install, alter, repair or extend any individual sewage treatment system in the City 

without first applying for and obtaining a permit from the City’s building inspector and at the 
same time paying a fee as listed on the permit.  Such permit shall be valid for six (6) months 
from the date of issuance.  A management plan is required for all new or replacement ISTS.  The 
management plan shall be submitted by the designer to the City before issuance of an ISTS 
permit.  Management plans shall include requirements as listed in Minn. Statute 7082.0600, 
Subp. 1(B) and other requirements as determined by the City Building Official.   
 

H. Maintenance Report.  
 
a. Licensed maintenance businesses must abide by the requirements described in Minn. R. 

7083.0770, subp. 2. All written reports required by Minn. R. 7083.0770, subp. 2 must be 
provided to the homeowner and the Health Authority within 30 days after any 
maintenance work is performed.  SYSTEMS NOT OPERATED UNDER A 
MANAGEMENT PLAN.  Owners of SSTS that are not operated under a management 
plan or operating permit must inspect treatment tanks and remove solids if needed every 
three years.  Solids must be removed when their accumulation meets the limit described 
in Minn. R. 7080.2450. 
 

I. Compliance Inspection Required. 
 

a. A compliance inspection of the existing ISTS shall be required, and a certificate of 
compliance or noncompliance shall be submitted to the City when the following are 
present: 
 
1. An application for any type of building or land use permit is made and the 

property falls within a designated Shoreland Management Overlay District. 
 

2. Receipt of information of a potential ISTS failure or imminent health threat. 
 

3. An additional bedroom on the property is requested.  If a request for an additional 
bedroom is received between November 1 and April 30, a building permit shall be 
issued with the contingent requirement that a compliance inspection shall be 
completed by the following June 1 and a certificate of compliance is submitted to 

67



the City by September 30. 
 

4. Any addition or remodel of a licensed food, beverage, or lodging establishment or 
any other establishment where the ISTS design flow may be effected. 

 
J. Non-Conforming Systems 

 
a. A system found to be non-conforming due to design, failure or pollution hazards shall 

have remedial action required within a reasonable period of time as follows: 
 

1. Septic tanks requiring pumping shall be pumped within forty-eight (48) hours, 
from receipt of notice.  Septic tank pumpers shall submit a copy of the pumping 
receipt to the City Office. 
 

2. A failed ISTS shall be upgraded, replaced or repair in compliance with Minnesota 
Rules Chapter 7080.0060, as applicable within one (1) year from the date of 
notice that the system has failed.  The City will give consideration to weather as 
compliance dates are established. 

 
3. The owner of an ISTS posing an imminent threat to public health or safety may be 

ordered to seize the discharge by means of capping the outlet pipe from the tank 
immediately after inspection.  The system must be upgraded, replaced or repaired 
within six (6) months. 

 
4. The owner shall submit to the City an acceptable Replacement Plan within twenty 

(20) days after notification by the City.  The Replacement Plan shall identify the 
location and design of the ISTS and a schedule for its replacement.  Failure to 
submit and execute an acceptable Replacement Plan is a violation of the chapter. 

 
K. Minimum Setback Distances. 

 
a. Any water well supply  50 feet 
b. Water under pressure   10 feet 
c. Wetlands    50 feet 
d. Property lines    10 feet 
 

L. More Restrictive Standards. 
 
a. The Counties of Hennepin and Wright have adopted ordinances regulating ISTS, and 

where those ordinances may be more restrictive, those more restrictive requirements shall 
apply. 

 
b. Septic tank capacity for residential ISTS shall be a minimum of two (2) one thousand 

(1,000) gallon tanks for a residence containing three (3) bedrooms or less.  For each 
additional bedroom, capacity shall be increased by two hundred fifty (250) gallons per 
tank, per bedroom. 

 

68



c. Absorption area requirements for residential ISTS shall be a minimum of six hundred 
fifty (650) square feet for a residence containing three bedrooms or less.  For each 
additional bedroom, the absorption area shall be increased by two hundred (200) square 
feet per bedroom. 

 
d. Holding tanks may be used for the following applications only after it can be shown 

conclusively by the property owner that a SSTS permitted under this ordinance cannot be 
feasibly installed: 

 
1. As a replacement for an existing failing ISTS 

 
2. For an ISTS that poses an imminent threat to public health or safety 

 
3. For use with buildings with limited water use 

 
e. Alternative and experimental systems are allowed only in areas where the City Building 

Inspector official has determined that a standard system cannot be installed or is not the 
most suitable treatment.  The installation of an alternative or experiment system shall be 
installed only after approval by the City Council, and such approval shall not be 
construed as a warranty in any way of that system.  The City, its employees, and/or any 
other designated official acting on behalf of the City shall not be held responsible in any 
manner for the failure of such system. 

 
M. Separation Allowances 

 
a. ISTS built before April 1, 1996, outside of areas designated as shoreland areas, wellhead 

protection areas, or ISTS providing sewage treatment for food, beverage, or lodging 
establishments must have at least two feet of vertical separation between the bottom of 
the dispersal system and seasonal saturation or bedrock. The vertical separation 
measurement shall be made outside the area of system influence in an area of similar soil. 
 

b. ISTS built after March 31, 1996, or ISTS located in a shoreland area, wellhead protection 
area, or serving a food, beverage, or lodging establishment as defined under Minn. R. 
7080.1100, subp. 84 must have a three-foot vertical separation between the bottom soil 
infiltrative surface and the periodically saturated soil and/or bedrock. Unless otherwise 
determined by the Health Authority, existing systems that have no more than a 15 percent 
reduction to the minimum required 36 inch separation distance are considered compliant. 
(i.e., a separation distance no less than 30.6 inches). This reduction is to account for 
settling of sand or soil, normal variation of separation distance measurements and 
interpretation of limiting layer characteristics. The vertical separation measurement shall 
be made outside the area of system influence in an area of similar soil. 

 
N. Variances 

a. Variances to wells and water supply lines require approval from the Minnesota 
Department of Health. The City may grant variances to the technical standards and 

69



criteria of Minnesota Rules, Chapter 7080 or this Ordinance. However, the City is 
prohibited from granting variances to:  

1. Minn. R. 7080.2150, subp. 2.       
2. Minn. R. 7081.0080, subps. 2 to 5, however, variances may be granted to Minn. 

R. 7081.0080, subp. 4(D)(1) for the replacement of MSTS serving existing 
dwellings or other establishments.  

3. Flow determinations under Minn. R. 7081.0110 if the deviation reduces the 
average daily flow from more than 10,000 gallons to 10,000 gallons per day or 
less. 

All requests for a variance shall be requested in writing to the City on forms approved by the City. 

O. Abandonment of Systems 
 
a. An ISTS must be properly abandoned when the parcel is connect to City Sanitary Sewer 

or according to Minn. Statute 7080.2500.  If the individual abandoning an ISTS is not a 
licensed ISTS professional, the abandonment must be inspected by a licensed inspector.  
A state abandonment document must be submitted to the City within ninety (90) days of 
abandonment. 
 

P. ISTS in Flood Plains 
 
a. ISTS shall not be located in a floodway or flood fringe, and whenever possible location in 

such an area shall be avoided.  If no option to place an ISTS outside of such area, location 
within a floodway or flood fringe is allowed if the requirements of Minn. R. 7080.2270 
and all relevant requirements are met. 
 

Q. Operating Permits 
 
a. ISTS specified in parts 7080.2290, 7080.2350, 7080.2400, and Chapter 7081 requires an 

operating permit and shall include 7082.0600, Subp. 2 and other requirements as 
determined by the permitting authority. The operating permit for new SSTS and MSTS 
will be issued in tandem with the construction permit for the new system. Operating 
permits when needed for existing systems and or system repair will be issued as separate 
permits. Any additional fees for operating permits will be listed in the fee schedule 
determined by the City Council. 
 

R. Class V injection wells.   
 
a. All owners of new or replacement SSTS that are considered to be Class V injection wells 

as defined in the Code of Federal Regulations, title 40, part 144, are required to submit 
SSTS inventory information to the United States Environmental Protection Agency and 
the MPCA. Owners are also required to identify all Class V injection wells in property 
transfer disclosures. 
 
 

70



S. Disputes. 
 
a. If a documented discrepancy arises in the depth of the periodically saturated soil between 

licensed businesses for ISTS design or compliance purposes, all disputing parties must 
follow the procedure outlined in this subpart: 
1. The disputing parties must meet at the disputed site in an attempt to resolve 

differences. 
 

2. If the provision does not resolve the differences then: 
 

a. Obtain an opinion from a Minnesota licensed professional soil scientist 
who is a certified ISTS designer or inspector and who is independent of, 
and agreed upon by, both parties. 

b. If opinions rendered do not resolve the dispute, all initial and follow-up 
documents and information generated must be submitted to the City. The 
City shall take into consideration all information and opinions rendered 
and make a final judgement.  The City shall render findings of fact, 
conclusions of law, and findings setting forth the reasons for any final 
decision it renders. 
 

b. If a documented discrepancy arises on the depth of the periodically saturated soil between 
an IST licensed business and the City for ISTS design or compliance purposes, all 
disputing parties shall follow the procedure outlined in this subpart: 
 
1. A representative of the City and the licensed business must meet and the disputed 

site in an attempt to resolve differences. 
2. If the provision does not resolve differences, the the ISTS licensed business may 

obtain an opinion from  a Minnesota licensed professional soil scientist who is a 
certified ISTS designer or inspector and who is independent of, and agreed upon 
by, both parties. 

3. If still unresolved, the City shall take into consideration all information and 
opinions rendered and make final judgment.  The City shall render findings of 
fact, conclusions of law, and findings setting forth the reasons for any final 
decisions they render. 
 

c. Upon resolutions of disputes, amendments to initial disputed documents containing the 
resolution shall be made and submitted to the City and all other parties involved. 
 

T. Hydraulic Load Rating and ISTS Sizing 
 

a. Table IX from Minn. R. 7080.2150, subp. 3(E) entitled Loading Rates for 
Determining Bottom Absorption Area for Trenches and Seepage Beds for Effluent 
Treatment Level C and Absorption Ratios for Determining Mound Absorption Areas 
Using Detail Soil Descriptions and Table IXa from Minn. R. 7080.2150, subp. 3(E) 
entitled Loading Rates for Determining Bottom Absorption Area for Trenches and 
Seepage Beds for Effluent Treatment Level C and Absorption Ratios for Determining 
Mound Absorption Areas Using Percolation Tests and herein adopted by reference shall 

71



both be used to size SSTS infiltration areas using the larger sizing factor of the two for 
SSTS design. 
 

U. Enforcement. 
 
a. Any person who violates any of the provisions of this Section, or who makes false 

statement on a certificate of compliance, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by 
imprisonment or a fine of both as defined by law. 

 
b. In the event of a violation of this Section, in addition to other remedies, the City Attorney 

may institute appropriate actions or proceedings to prevent, restrain, correct or abate such 
violations. 

 
c. No building permit, certificate of occupancy, license or other permit shall be issued for 

the construction upon use or occupation of any parcel of property within the City of 
Hanover unless the requirements of this Ordinance are met with respect to said parcel of 
property. 

 
 
Section 2. This Ordinance shall be in force and effect after adoption and publication in summary 
form in the official newspaper of the City of Hanover in accordance with applicable law.  Staff is 
directed to prepare a summary form of the ordinance. 
 
 
Adopted by the Hanover City Council this ___th day of ____________, 2015. 
 
 
       CITY OF HANOVER 
 
 
  
 Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 

 

  
  
Brian Hagen, City Administrator  
 

 

72



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on 
the 7th day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by _______ and seconded by ________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-18 

 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING 107TH AVENUE NE SURFACE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, quotes were solicited from Knife River, Pavement Resources, Park Construction Company 
Midwest Asphalt, and TA Schifsky & Sons; and 
 
WHEREAS, two quotes were received by the deadline of March 18, 2015 at 12 p.m.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the low quote was submitted by Midwest Asphalt in the amount of $85,160; and 
 
WHEREAS, the second quote was submitted by Park Construction Company in the amount of 
$103,383.00. 
 
WHEREAS, staff reviewed the quote for accuracy against the bid package and found the quote to be 
accurate. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby 
awards the 107th Avenue NE surface improvement project to Midwest Asphalt with the low quote of 
$85,160.00. 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

73



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on 
the 7th day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by _______ and seconded by ________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-19 

 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING 9TH STREET NE SURFACE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, quotes were solicited from Knife River, Pavement Resources, Park Construction Company 
Midwest Asphalt, and TA Schifsky & Sons; and 
 
WHEREAS, two quotes were received by the deadline of March 18, 2015 at 12 p.m.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the low quote was submitted by Midwest Asphalt in the amount of $44,355.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the second quote was submitted by Park Construction Company in the amount of 
$59,641.75. 
 
WHEREAS, staff reviewed the quote for accuracy against the bid package and found the quote to be 
accurate. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby 
awards the 107th Avenue NE surface improvement project to Midwest Asphalt with the low quote of 
$44,355.00. 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

74



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on 
the 7th day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by _______ and seconded by ________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-20 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE MEMORIAL GARDEN SIDEWALK EXTENSION 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council and the Park Board desire to complete the Memorial Garden Sidewalk 
extension; and 
 
WHEREAS, quotes were solicited from local companies; and 
 
WHEREAS, the low quote was submitted by RSO Custom Concrete in the amount of $7,000; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby 
approves the sidewalk extension in the Memorial Garden to be completed by RSO Custom Concrete in 
the amount of $7,000. 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

75



76



77



78



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on 
the 7th day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by _______ and seconded by ________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-21 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE HIRING OF SEASONAL PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEE 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council authorized the advertisement of a seasonal Public Workers position; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City received seven applicants; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff scored the applicants based on job experience and interviewed four applicants; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the hiring of ____________ as a Public Works/Parks Seasonal Position 
employee not to exceed six months of employment. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby 
approves the hiring of ______________ at a rate of $______ per hour, subject to required background 
checks. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council hereby directs Public Works Supervisor Scott Vogel 
to negotiate the starting employment dates to cover the needs of the Public Works Department.  The 
employment dates are subject to the condition that the position shall not continue beyond a period of 
six months from the hire date. 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

79



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on 
the 7th day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by _______ and seconded by ________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-22 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING BATHROOM REMODEL FINAL PAY VOUCHER 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved a bathroom remodel at City Hall; and 
 
WHEREAS, Crow Hassan Builders was awarded the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project has been completed. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby 
approves the final pay voucher of $5,000 to Crow Hassan Builders. 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



   

Collaborative Planning, LLC 
PO Box 251 

Medina, MN  55340 
763-473-0569 

Memorandum 

Date: March 26, 2015 

To: Honorable Mayor and Council 

From:  Cindy Nash, City Planner 

RE: Zoning Ordinance Amendment  

The Planning Commission considered amendments to the Zoning Ordinance at their January and February 
meetings.  A public hearing was held at the January meeting, and following comment and further refinement 
they recommended approval at their February meeting.  A copy of the ordinance is attached for your 
consideration. 

 

 

 

 

   

114



  CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-01 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 10, SECTIONS 10.48 & 10.52 
PERTAINING TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HANOVER ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Section 10.48, subsection A., subparagraph 12 of the City of Hanover 
Code of Ordinances is repealed in its entirety and a new Section 10.48, subsection 
A., subparagraph 12 is added as follows:   
 
A. Residential districts.  In residential districts: 
 

12. An accessory building constructed on Farms, for the exclusive use of 
sheltering agricultural machinery and storage of agricultural products shall be 
exempt from building permit requirements.  Description of the proposed use 
must be submitted in writing, and signed by the property owner.  
Administrative review of the site plan is required. 

 
 
Section 2. Section 10.52, subsection F. of the City of Hanover Code of 
Ordinances is repealed in its entirety and a new Section 10.52, subsection F. is added 
as follows:   
 
F. The number of access points to a residential lot shall be restricted to one 
driveway, unless the following conditions are met.  If the following conditions are met, 
no more than two access points shall be allowed. 
 

1. The lot is within the RA, R1, or R1A District. 
 

2. The lot has a minimum of two hundred and fifty (250) feet of road frontage. 
 
3. If the property has two street frontages, the driveways must be on separate 

frontages. If the property has only one street frontage, then the driveways 
must be located not less than 50 feet apart. 

 
4. If the driveway is proposed to connect from a County road, the applicant must 

first obtain a permit from the County. 
 
5. All other driveway requirements of Section 10.52 are met. 

 

115



Section 3. This Ordinance shall be in force and effect after adoption and publication 
in summary form in the official newspaper of the City of Hanover in accordance with 
applicable law.  Staff is directed to prepare a summary form of the ordinance. 
 
 
Adopted by the Hanover City Council this ___th day of ____________, 2015. 
 
 
      CITY OF HANOVER 
 
 
  
 Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 

 

  
  
Brian Hagen, City Administrator  
 

116



   

Collaborative Planning, LLC 
145 Hamel Road, Suite D 

Medina, MN  55340 
763-473-0569 

Memorandum 

Date: March 26, 2015 

To: Honorable Mayor and Council 

From:  Cindy Nash, City Planner 

RE: Plantenburg Minor Subdivision – Vacation of Road 

The City has received a request for a minor subdivision for a property located at 10330 Beebe Lake Road.  
While reviewing the subdivision, it came to our attention that there is an existing road order dating to the late 
1800’s for what shows on the attached survey as the driveway on the eastern side of the property. 

Due to various regulations of the City and County regarding location of roads, driveways, and access spacing, it 
was determined that in order to move forward with the split that the existing road would need to be vacated.  
This provides an opportunity for the larger area within the Plantenburg property to be further subdivided in the 
future with a new road created at that point in time aligning with Kayla Lane.   

Included in your packet is a resolution setting a public hearing on the proposed road vacation for May 5th, 2015.  
At that meeting, the Council will consider the vacation as well as the subdivision of the property. 

 

   

117



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on 
the 7th day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by _______ and seconded by ________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-23 

 
A RESOLUTION SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING ON A ROAD VACATION 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes §412.851, desires to consider the total 
vacation of that former Frankfurt Township road described in a May 20, 1882 Frankfurt Township Road 
Order and located in Sections 26 and 35, Township 120, Range 24, Wright County, Minnesota. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby 
will consider the vacation of such road and a public hearing shall be held on such proposed vacation on 
the 5th day of May, 2015, before the City Council in the City Hall Located at 11250 5th Street NE at 7:00 
p.m. or shortly thereafter. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby directed to give published, posted, and 
mailed notice of such hearing as required by law. 
 
 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 

118



119



   

Collaborative Planning, LLC 
145 Hamel Road, Suite D 

Medina, MN  55340 
763-473-0569 

Memorandum 

Date: March 26, 2015 

To: Honorable Mayor and Council 

From:  Cindy Nash, City Planner 

RE: Hanover Elementary School Addition – Site Plan Review 

The City has received a Site Plan application for review and consideration.   

Overview of Request  

ISD 877 is proposing an addition to Hanover Elementary School.   The Applicant’s proposal is included in your 
packets and contains their proposed request. 

Evaluation of Request 

Staff has reviewed the request and finds the proposed architecture and scale of the addition to be 
compatible with the existing building.  The City Engineer had no comment on the engineering plans. 

Planning Commission Recommendation 

The Planning Commission recommend approval of the Site Plan to the City Council.  The following conditions 
were recommended to be included: 

1. Any comments of the City Engineer, if any, must be addressed. 

2. Development of the site must be completed in substantial conformance with the submitted plans. 

120



 
 
 
 

  engineering planning environmental construction    477 Temperance Street 
                                                                                                                                                                          St. Paul, MN 55101 
    Tel:  651-286-8450    
         Fax: 651-286-8488 
 
 

Equal Opportunity Employer 
 wsbeng.com  
 
  K:\02082-012\Admin\Docs\LTR-BHagen-HanoverElementaryReview-032315.dotx 

March 23, 2015 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Brian Hagen 
City Administrator 
City of Hanover 
11250 5th Street NE 
Hanover, MN 55341 
 
Re: Review of Hanover Elementary Addition 
 WSB Project No. 02082-012 

 
 

Dear Mr. Hagen: 
 
We have reviewed the grading and utility plans prepared by Anderson-Johnson & Associates, 
Inc. dated February 9, 2015, for the above-mentioned project and have found them to be in 
conformance with Hanover storm water quality and quantity standards. 

It is recommended that the applicant be notified to invite Mr. Scott Vogel to the pre-construction 
conference for this project. 
 
If you have any future questions or concerns please feel free to contact me at (651) 286-8465. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
WSB & Associates, Inc. 
 
 
 
Justin Messner, PE 
City Engineer 
 
 

121



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on 
the 7th day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by _______ and seconded by ________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-24 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING SITE PLAN FOR HANOVER ELEMTARY SCHOOL 

 
 
WHEREAS, Independent School District 877 (“Owner”) is the owner for an application related to 
property located at 274 LaBeaux Avenue NE; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owner has applied for a site plan to permit the construction of an addition to an 
existing structure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application was reviewed by the Planning Commission at its meeting on March 23, 
2015.  The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed the request in regards to this property at its meeting on April 7, 
2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council concurred with the recommendation of the Planning Commission. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby 
approves the application for site plan approval to construct an addition to the existing structure at 274 
LaBeaux Avenue NE subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Any comments of the City Engineer, if any, must be addressed. 
 

2. Development of the site must be completed in substantial conformance with the submitted 
plans. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

122



Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 

123



P4

X2

P11

P8

R2

P10

P12

R3

R4

R5

R5

P1

P1

P2

P3

P3

P12

P12

P12

P12

P12

P6

P6

P7

P5

R4

P2

P7

TO NEAREST JOINT

TO NEAREST JOINT

1X

R1

P5

R1

R1

R1

R6

R6

P8

SALVAGE EXISTING SIGN FOR RE-USE

Revised

Checked by
Date

Drawn by

Sheet Title

C
om

m
is

si
on

 N
um

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Sheet Number
Scale:

Plan North

North

A
 R

 C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 S

   
 R

 E
 G

 O
  +

  Y
 O

 U
 N

 G
 Q

 U
 I 

S 
T

76
01

 W
ay

za
ta

 B
ou

le
va

rd
   

Su
ite

 2
00

   
St

. L
ou

is
 P

ar
k,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

54
26

Ph
on

e:
 9

52
-5

44
-8

94
1 

  F
ax

: 9
52

-5
44

-0
58

5 
  a

ry
ar

ch
.c

om
R

A
Y

20
52

IS
D

 #
87

7 
   

H
an

ov
er

, M
N

H
A

N
O

V
ER

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

20
15

C1.1

DAR
LJD

REMOVALS
PLAN

1"=10'

LEGEND

CONCRETE PAVEMENT REMOVALS

CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER REMOVALS

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT REMOVALS

UTILITY REMOVALS

TREE REMOVALS

TREE PROTECTION

SHRUB AND LANDSCAPE REMOVAL

SAWCUT

REMOVALS KEY NOTE

PROPERTY LINE

R1

KEY NOTE LEGEND

REMOVE CONCRETE PAVEMENT

REMOVE CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

REMOVE TREE, INCLUDING STUMP

SAWCUT

REMOVE SHRUBS AND LANDSCAPING

PROTECT CONCRETE PAVEMENT

PROTECT CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

PROTECT BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

PROTECT LIGHT POLE

PROTECT SANITARY

PROTECT SANITARY STRUCTURE

PROTECT UTILITY

PROTECT SIGN

PROTECT WATERMAIN

PROTECT HYDRANT

PROTECT RETAINING WALL

PROTECT TREE (SEE NOTE 6 ABOVE)

REFER TO ELECTRICAL PLANS FOR TREATMENT

REFER TO MECHANICAL PLANS FOR REMOVAL/RECONNECT

R1

R2

R3

R4

R5

P1

P2

P3

P4

P5

P6

P7

P8

P9

P10

P11

P12

NOTES:

1. REFER TO SHEET C1.3, GRADING, EROSION AND UTILITY PLAN, FOR GENERAL NOTES.

2. MINIMIZE DISTURBANCE TO SITE AND PROTECT EXISTING VEGETATION AND SITE FEATURES

(CURBS, WALKS, PAVEMENTS, OVERHEAD AND UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, SIGNAGE, FENCING,

ROADWAYS, ETC.) WHICH ARE TO REMAIN.

3. REPAIR OR REPLACE EXISTING PROPERTY AND SITE FEATURES, INCLUDING GRASS AND

VEGETATION, WHICH IS TO REMAIN THAT IS DAMAGED BY THE WORK, TO OWNER'S

SATISFACTION AND AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

4. VISIT THE SITE PRIOR TO BIDDING; BE FAMILIAR WITH ACTUAL CONDITIONS IN THE FIELD.

EXTRA COMPENSATION WILL NOT BE ALLOWED FOR CONDITIONS WHICH COULD HAVE BEEN

DETERMINED OR ANTICIPATED BY EXAMINATION OF THE SITE, THE CONTRACT DRAWINGS AND

THE INFORMATION AVAILABLE PERTAINING TO EXISTING SOILS, UTILITIES AND OTHER SITE

CHARACTERISTICS.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL HIRE THE SERVICES OF A UTILITY LOCATOR COMPANY TO LOCATE

ALL PRIVATELY OWNED UTILITIES THAT MAY BE DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS.

6. TREE PROTECTION - INSTALL ORANGE SNOW FENCE (4' HIGH) AT DRIP LINE OF TREES

DESIGNATED TO BE PROTECTED.

X1

X2

R6

124



12
C2.1

13
C2.1

C2.1
11

C2.1
10

PROPOSED

BUILDING

ADDITION

11
C2.1

11
C2.1

4" WIDE PAINT

STRIPE (TYPICAL)

4" WIDE PAINT

STRIPE @ 3' O.C.

(TYPICAL)

PAINTED ACCESSIBLE

SYMBOL (TYPICAL)

REPLACE EXISTING

SIGN

8.
00

'
8.

00
'

8.
00

'

8.
00

' T
O

EX
IS

TI
NG

PA
IN

T 
ST

RI
PE

8.
00

' T
O

EX
IS

TI
NG

PA
IN

T 
ST

RI
PE

CANOPY COLUMNS -

REFER TO

ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

FOR DIMENSIONS AND LAYOUT

FLAGPOLE - REFER TO

ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

PROVIDE OUTFALL

STABILIZATION MAT OVER

SOD - SEE SHEET C1.3

PROVIDE SOD OVER STORM

SEWER WITHIN 24 HOURS OF

BACKFILLING TO PROVIDE

PERMANENT SITE STABILIZATION

AND TO MINIMIZE SEDIMENTATION

TO WATERS OF THE STATE

19
.2

3'

R40.34'

12.36'

ALIGN WALK

WITH EDGE

OF BUILDING

PAINTED YELLOW CURB

BUS SAFETY STRIPING

PAINTED YELLOW CURB

BUS SAFETY STRIPING

Revised

Checked by
Date

Drawn by

Sheet Title

C
om

m
is

si
on

 N
um

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Sheet Number
Scale:

Plan North

North

A
 R

 C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 S

   
 R

 E
 G

 O
  +

  Y
 O

 U
 N

 G
 Q

 U
 I 

S 
T

76
01

 W
ay

za
ta

 B
ou

le
va

rd
   

Su
ite

 2
00

   
St

. L
ou

is
 P

ar
k,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

54
26

Ph
on

e:
 9

52
-5

44
-8

94
1 

  F
ax

: 9
52

-5
44

-0
58

5 
  a

ry
ar

ch
.c

om
R

A
Y

20
52

IS
D

 #
87

7 
   

H
an

ov
er

, M
N

H
A

N
O

V
ER

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

20
15

C1.2

DAR
LJD

SITE AND
LANDSCAPE
PLAN

1"=10'

LEGEND

REFERENCE KEY TO SITE DETAILS

     DETAIL I.D NUMBER (TOP)

     DETAIL SHEET NUMBER (BOTTOM)

PROPOSED CONCRETE WALK

PROPOSED BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

PROPOSED FLAG POLE - REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

PROPOSED BUILDING STOOP - REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

APPROXIMATE SOD LIMITS

PROPERTY LINE

1
C2.1

NOTES:

1. REFER TO SHEET C1.3, GRADING, EROSION AND UTILITY PLAN, FOR GENERAL NOTES.

2. CHECK ALL PLAN AND DETAIL DIMENSIONS AND VERIFY SAME BEFORE FIELD  LAYOUT.

3. ALL DISTURBED AREAS OUTSIDE THE BUILDING PAD WHICH ARE NOT DESIGNATED TO BE

PAVED SHALL RECEIVE AT LEAST 6" OF TOPSOIL AND SHALL BE SODDED.

4. WHERE NEW SOD MEETS EXISTING TURF, EXISTING TURF EDGE SHALL BE CUT TO ALLOW FOR

A CONSISTENT, UNIFORM STRAIGHT EDGE. JAGGED OR UNEVEN EDGES WILL NOT BE

ACCEPTABLE. REMOVE TOPSOIL AT JOINT BETWEEN EXISTING AND NEW AS REQUIRED TO

ALLOW NEW SODDED SURFACE TO BE FLUSH WITH EXISTING.

5. FAILURE OF TURF DEVELOPMENT: IN THE EVENT THE CONTRACTOR FAILS TO PROVIDE AN

ACCEPTABLE TURF, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RE-SOD ALL APPLICABLE AREAS, AT NO

ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER, TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE ENGINEER.

6. BEGIN TURF ESTABLISHMENT IMMEDIATELY AFTER SODDING, REFER TO SPECIFICATION FOR

PROCEDURE.

125



FES 1

INV. = 923.2

12" APRON

MH 101

RIM. = 928.3

INV. = 923.66 (S)

INV. = 926.91 (W)

48" ID

R-1642

7
C2.1

1
C2.1

8
C2.1

OUTFALL

STABILIZATION

MAT 4'x4'

(PROVIDE 3)

BD 1

INV. = 928.00 = MECH. 94'-0"

2,375 SF

99' - 6" PVC @ 1.10%

FFE 934.0 = ARCH. 100' - 0"

PROPOSED

BUILDING

ADDITION

PROTECT SANITARY

SEWER AT CROSSING

REFER TO

MECHANICAL FOR

SANITARY RECONNECT

33.1 ME

31.4 ME

31.5 ME

31.6

31.0 ME

31.2 ME

32.3 ME

31.5 ME

32.9 ME

32.2

33.2

33.6 ME

9
2
3

9

2

5

9
2
4

9

2

6

23.2

9

3

2

9

3

3

9

3

2

106' - 12" RCP @ 0.44%

34.0

5.00'

1
C2.1

1
C2.1

1
C2.1

9

2

7

9

2

8

9

2

9

9
3
0

9
3
1

1
C2.1

1
C2.1

33.9

33.8

3
C2.1

4
C2.1

Revised

Checked by
Date

Drawn by

Sheet Title

C
om

m
is

si
on

 N
um

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Sheet Number
Scale:

Plan North

North

A
 R

 C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 S

   
 R

 E
 G

 O
  +

  Y
 O

 U
 N

 G
 Q

 U
 I 

S 
T

76
01

 W
ay

za
ta

 B
ou

le
va

rd
   

Su
ite

 2
00

   
St

. L
ou

is
 P

ar
k,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

54
26

Ph
on

e:
 9

52
-5

44
-8

94
1 

  F
ax

: 9
52

-5
44

-0
58

5 
  a

ry
ar

ch
.c

om
R

A
Y

20
52

IS
D

 #
87

7 
   

H
an

ov
er

, M
N

H
A

N
O

V
ER

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

20
15

C1.3

DAR
LJD

GRADING,
EROSION AND
UTILITY PLAN

1"=10'

LEGEND

REFERENCE KEY TO SITE DETAILS

     DETAIL I.D NUMBER (TOP)

     DETAIL SHEET NUMBER (BOTTOM)

EXISTING CONTOUR

EXISTING SPOT ELEVATION

PROPOSED CONTOUR

PROPOSED SPOT ELEVATION

ME = MATCH EXISTING

PROPOSED GRADING LIMITS

PROPOSED STORM SEWER

PROPOSED FLARED END SECTION (FES)

PROPOSED MANHOLE

PROPOSED SILT FENCE

PROPERTY LINE

LIMITS OF SAND SUBBASE @ FROST FOOTED STOOPS

1
C2.1

9
2
3

23.6

GENERAL NOTES:

1. ALL CONSTRUCTION MUST COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE STATE AND LOCAL ORDINANCES.

2. THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR AND SHALL PAY FOR ALL CONSTRUCTION

STAKING / LAYOUT.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN AND PAY FOR ALL RELATED CONSTRUCTION PERMITS.

4. INSTALL CONTROL FENCING AND BARRICADING AS NECESSARY TO PROTECT THE PUBLIC.

5. INSPECT SITE AND REVIEW SOIL BORINGS TO DETERMINE EXTENT OF WORK AND NATURE OF

MATERIALS TO BE HANDLED.

6. CHECK ALL PLAN AND DETAIL DIMENSIONS AND VERIFY SAME BEFORE FIELD LAYOUT.

7. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR BUILDING AND STOOP DIMENSIONS AND LAYOUT.

8. MAINTAIN ADJACENT PROPERTY AND PUBLIC STREETS CLEAN FROM CONSTRUCTION CAUSED

DIRT AND DEBRIS ON A DAILY BASIS.  PROTECT DRAINAGE SYSTEMS FROM SEDIMENTATION

AS A RESULT OF CONSTRUCTION RELATED DIRT AND DEBRIS.

9. MAINTAIN DUST CONTROL DURING GRADING OPERATIONS.

10. ALL EROSION CONTROL METHODS SHALL COMPLY WITH MPCA AND LOCAL REGULATIONS.

11. CONTRACTOR SHALL MINIMIZE DISTURBANCE TO SITE AND PROTECT EXISTING SITE FEATURES

(INCLUDING TURF AND VEGETATION) WHICH ARE TO REMAIN.

12. PROPOSED CONTOURS AND SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE SHOWN TO FINISH GRADE UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED.

13. PROPOSED ELEVATIONS SHOWN TYPICALLY AS 25.1 OR 25 SHALL BE UNDERSTOOD TO MEAN

925.1 OR 925.

14. SPOT ELEVATIONS SHOWN IN PARKING LOTS, DRIVES AND ROADS INDICATE GUTTER GRADES,

UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.  SPOT ELEVATIONS WITH LABELS OUTSIDE THE BUILDING

PERIMETER INDICATE PROPOSED GRADES OUTSIDE THE BUILDING.  SPOT ELEVATIONS WITH

LABELS INSIDE THE BUILDING PERIMETER INDICATE PROPOSED FINISH FLOOR ELEVATIONS.

15. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING QUANTITIES OF CUT,

FILL AND WASTE MATERIALS TO BE HANDLED, AND FOR AMOUNT OF GRADING TO BE DONE IN

ORDER TO COMPLETELY PERFORM ALL WORK INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS.  IMPORT

SUITABLE MATERIAL AND EXPORT UNSUITABLE / EXCESS / WASTE MATERIAL AS REQUIRED. 

ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH IMPORTING AND EXPORTING MATERIALS SHALL BE INCIDENTAL

TO THE CONTRACT.

16. NO FINISHED SLOPES SHALL EXCEED 4' HORIZONTAL TO 1' VERTICAL (4:1), UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED.

17. ALL STORM SEWER PIPE SHALL BE RCP, CLASS III (MIN.), WITH FLEXIBLE WATERTIGHT JOINTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C-361 OR PVC PIPE (ASTM D3034, SDR 35) INSTALLED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM D2321, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

18. FLEXIBLE JOINTS AT MANHOLE CONNECTIONS:

• IN ACCORDANCE WITH MINNESOTA RULES 4715.0700 AND 4715.0750, PROVIDE FLEXIBLE

JOINTS AT ALL PIPE CONNECTIONS TO ALL MANHOLES.

• ACCEPTABLE MANUFACTURERS / PRODUCTS:

• FERNCO, ñCONCRETE MANHOLE ADAPTORSò OR ñLARGE-DIAMETER WATERSTOPSò

• PRESS-SEAL, WATERSTOP GROUTING RINGSò

• OR APPROVED EQUAL.

22. LOCATE ALL EXISTING UTILITIES, VERIFY LOCATION, SIZE AND INVERT ELEVATION OF ALL

EXISTING UTILITIES.  VERIFY LOCATIONS, SIZES AND ELEVATIONS OF SAME BEFORE

BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.

23. PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OF PROPOSED BUILDING UTILITY SERVICES (STORM SEWER),

VERIFY ALL PROPOSED BUILDING UTILITY SERVICE PIPE SIZES, LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS

WITH MECHANICAL PLANS.  COORDINATE CONSTRUCTION AND CONNECTIONS WITH

MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR.

30. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN DRAINAGE FROM EXISTING BUILDING AT ALL TIMES. PROVIDE

TEMPORARY STORM SEWER (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, CATCH BASINS, MANHOLES,

PIPING, ETC.) AS REQUIRED. COORDINATE ALL REMOVALS WITH APPROPRIATE TRADES (SITE

UTILITY CONTRACTOR, MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR, ETC.) AS REQUIRED.

4
C2.1

8
C2.1

7
C2.1

126



Revised

Checked by
Date

Drawn by

Sheet Title

C
om

m
is

si
on

 N
um

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Sheet Number
Scale:

A
 R

 C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 S

   
 R

 E
 G

 O
  +

  Y
 O

 U
 N

 G
 Q

 U
 I 

S 
T

76
01

 W
ay

za
ta

 B
ou

le
va

rd
   

Su
ite

 2
00

   
St

. L
ou

is
 P

ar
k,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

54
26

Ph
on

e:
 9

52
-5

44
-8

94
1 

  F
ax

: 9
52

-5
44

-0
58

5 
  a

ry
ar

ch
.c

om
R

A
Y

20
52

IS
D

 #
87

7 
   

H
an

ov
er

, M
N

H
A

N
O

V
ER

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

20
15

C2.1

DAR
LJD

DETAILS

NTS

ROCK CONSTRUCTION

ENTRANCE

NOTE:  PROVIDE WHERE CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC

ENTERS OR EXITS THE CONSTRUCTION SITE

6" MINIMUM THICKNESS

5

0

'

 

M

I

N

I

M

U

M

2" TO 3" WASHED ROCK

ENGINEERED FILL

1
0
"

6
"

UNSUITABLE SOIL

TOPSOIL

1'-0" (TYP)

3'-0"

1

1

V
A

R
I
E

S

NOTE:

BOTTOM OF EXCAVATION MUST BE APPROVED BY THE SOILS

ENGINEER PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF ANY FILL.

4" SLAB AND 6" SAND SUBBASE - VERIFY

WITH ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

FINISH FLOOR

FINISH SUBGRADE

FINISH GRADE (TURF)

MINIMUM EXCAVATION

LIMITS

FOOTING

SUITABLE SOIL

ENGINEERED FILL

SAND SUBBASE AT DOORS &

FROST FOOTED STOOPS

5'-0" 20'-0"

5
'
-
0
"

4
"

NOTE:  REFER TO C1.3 - GRADING, EROSION

AND UTILITY PLAN FOR LIMITS OF SAND

SUB-BASE

FINISH GRADE

AT EDGE OF STOOP

FINISH GRADE

OF PAVEMENT ADJACENT

TO FOOTED STOOP

STOOP FOOTING

REFER TO STRUCTURAL

DRAWINGS

SUBGRADE SOILS

SAND SUBBASE

EXCAVATE DOWN TO EXISTING SP

SANDS. EXCAVATE AND SCARIFY

EXISTING SP SANDS A MINIMUM 6"

10
C2.1

STORM SEWER MANHOLE

BASES SHALL BE 8" STANDARD PRECAST WITH 2" LEAN GROUT,

OR POURED 8" SLAB REINFORCED WITH 6" x 6" 10/10 MESH

1
6
"
 
O

.
C

.

VARIABLE

27"

4
'
-
0
"

V
A

R
I
A

B
L

E

5"

MIN.

COVER SHALL BE STAMPED

"STORM SEWER"

METAL SEWER CASTING - REFER

TO PLAN FOR TYPE

MIN. 2 AND MAX. 5 ADJUSTING RINGS.

GROUT BETWEEN RINGS, CASTING, AND

ALONG OUTSIDE.

PRECAST CONCRETE CONE SECTION

STEPS ON DOWNSTREAM SIDE

RUBBER GASKET, TYP ALL JOINTS

GROUT SHELF AND CHANNELS

PROVIDE FLEXIBLE JOINT

AT CONNECTION - REFER TO SPECS

RCP FLARED END SECTION

(FES)

PIPE SIZE

21" & LESS

24" TO 36"

42" TO 54"

60" & GREATER

"U" BOLT DIA.

1/2"

5/8"

3/4"

1"

WIDTH

24"

24"

24"

24"

"U" BOLT REQUIREMENTS

NOTES:

2 - "U" BOLT FASTENERS TO BE INSTALLED ACROSS EACH

JOINT, ONE EACH SIDE OF PIPE AT 60Á FROM THE TOP OF

THE PIPE. FASTEN FIRST THREE JOINTS AS SHOWN.

TRASH GUARD WITH 5/8" DIA.

RODS AT 6" ON CENTER.

FASTEN TO FES WITH 3

HOT DIPPED GALV. CLIPS

OUTFLOW

STABILIZATION

MAT - REFER

TO SPECS

PIPE BEDDING - PVC

NOTES:

TRENCH SIDEWALLS TO MEET O.S.H.A REQUIREMENTS.

UPPER 3 FT. OF BACKFILL SHALL BE COMPACTED TO AT LEAST 100%

STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY. BELOW THIS ELEVATION, BACKFILL

SHALL BE COMPACTED TO AT LEAST 95% STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY.

SEWER INSTALLATION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM D2321.

DEPTH (VARIES)

6" MIN.

1/8 O.D.

(6" MIN.)

O.D. + 2' (MAX)

PIPE DIA.

FINAL SUBGRADE

HAND TAMPED

SAND

PIPE BEDDING - RCP

NOTES:

TRENCH SIDEWALLS TO MEET O.S.H.A REQUIREMENTS.

UPPER 3 FT. OF BACKFILL SHALL BE COMPACTED TO AT LEAST 100%

STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY. BELOW THIS ELEVATION, BACKFILL

SHALL BE COMPACTED TO AT LEAST 95% STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY.

D
E

P
T

H
 
(
V

A
R

I
E

S
)

1
/
8
 
D

E
P

T
H

 
(
1
2
"
 
M

I
N

.
)

1
/
6
 
O

.
D

.

1
/
8
 
O

.
D

.
 
(
4
"
 
M

I
N

.
)

O.D. + 2' (MAX)

FINAL SUBGRADE

LIGHTLY

COMPACTED

FILL

COMPACTED CRUSHED ROCK

OR PEA GRAVEL - 100% PASSING

THE 

3

4

" SIEVE AND A MAXIMUM

OF 5% PASSING THE #10 SIEVE.

B-612 CURB AND GUTTER

NOTE:

DIRECTION OF TRANSVERSE GUTTER SLOPE TO MATCH DIRECTION OF ADJACENT PAVEMENT

SLOPE. CONSTRUCT WITH CURBING MACHINE.

12"

6
"

7
 
1
/
2
"

1
3
 
1
/
2
"

6"

12"

1

2

AGGREGATE BASE TO BE

PLACED BY PAVING

CONTRACTOR (4" MIN.)

7
"

FACE OF CURB

1

2

" RADIUS

3" RADIUS

SLOPE 

3

4

" PER FOOT TOWARDS

PAVEMENT ON HIGH SIDE OF

LOT/DRIVE (TIP OUT) - SLOPE 

3

4

" PER

FOOT TOWARDS BACK OF CURB FACE

ON LOW SIDE OF LOT/DRIVE (TIP BACK)

1

2

" RADIUS

1:3 BATTER

CONCRETE WALK

1
"

NOTE:   PROVIDE WIRE MESH REINFORCEMENT IN PANELS WITH

DIMENSIONS TO JOINTS GREATER THAN 6' - REINFORCEMENT SHALL BE

UNIFORMLY SUSPENDED 2" BELOW CONCRETE FINISH GRADE.

WALK WIDTH AS

LABELED ON PLAN

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

WALK FLUSH WITH TOP OF CURB AND PROVIDE

TOOLED EDGE (WITH EXPANSION JOINT)

5" CONCRETE WALK

MIN. 4" SAND BASE THICKENED TO

BOTTOM OF CURB WHERE APPLICABLE

TYPICAL AT ALL

GRASS AREAS

PREPARED SUBGRADE

PROVIDE 2% CROSS SLOPE (MAX.)

REFER TO GRADING PLAN FOR

DIRECTION

12"

M
I
N

.
 
4
"

D
E

P
T

H

C2.1
12

C2.1
9

4

PLAN VIEW OF PERPENDICULAR RAMP

DOME SPACING

DOME SECTION

3

2

2

1

NOTES:

SECTION A-A

ELEVATION OF RAMP

PEDESTRIAN CURB RAMP

3'-8"

2

CONCRETE

WALK

3'-8"

A

4

'

-

0

"

M

I

N

.

4

'

-

0

"

M

I

N

4
'
-
0
"
 
M

I
N4'-0" UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED

ON PLAN

5'-8" 5'-8"

2
'
-
0
"

4

3

6
'
-
0
"

(
6
"
 
C

U
R

B

4
'
-
0
"

(
4
"
 
C

U
R

B
)

CONCRETE WALK

A

6'-3" (6" CURB)

4'-2" (4" CURB)

4'-0" UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED

ON PLAN

6'-3" (6" CURB)

4'-2" (4" CURB)

1

6'-0" (6" CURB)

4'-0" (4" CURB)

4'-0"

7/8" - 1-7/16"

1/5"

50%-60% OF BASE

DIAMETER

5/8" MIN.

2
'
-
0
"

5/8" MIN.

15/16" (TYP.)

1 5/8" - 2 3/8"

1 5/8" - 2 3/8"

15/16" (TYP.)

6'-3"

(6" CURB & 0.08 FT./FT. SLOPE)

4'-2"

(4" CURB & 0.08 FT./FT. SLOPE)

4'-0"

6'-3"

(6" CURB & 0.08 FT./FT. SLOPE)

4'-2"

(4" CURB & 0.08 FT./FT. SLOPE)

1/2 INCH PREFORMED JOINT FILLER MATERIAL,  AASHTO M 213.

PROVIDE A PATH OF TRAVEL 4' 0"  WIDE BEHIND THE PEDESTRIAN RAMP.    A RELATIVELY

FLAT 4'  X 4'  LANDING  WILL ALLOW WHEELCHAIRS TO NAVIGATE AROUND THE PEDESTRIAN

RAMP.

6" TO 8" IS THE REQUIRED OFFSET OF THE DETECTABLE WARNINGS/ TRUNCATED DOME

AREA FROM THE FRONT FACE OF CURB, OR PLACE THE DETECTABLE WARNINGS AT THE

BACK OF CURB.

ADA REQUIRED TRUNCATED DOME AREA SHALL BE 2' 0" MIN. IN DIRECTION OF TRAVEL AND

SHALL EXTEND THE FULL WIDTH (4' 0" TYP.) OF THE CURB RAMP.  THIS 2' 0" BY 4' 0" WIDTH

(TYP.) TRUNCATED DOME AREA SHALL CONTRAST VISUALLY WITH THE ADJACENT WALKING

SURFACE.  THE ENTIRE TRUNCATED DOME AREA SHALL BE A LIGHT COLOR (LIGHT GRAY,

WHITE, OR YELLOW) WHEN THE ADJACENT SIDEWALK IS A DARK COLOR.  THE ENTIRE

TRUNCATED DOME AREA SHALL BE A DARK COLOR (RED, BLACK, DARK GRAY, OR BRIGHT

YELLOW) WHEN THE ADJACENT SIDEWALK IS A "WHITE" OR LIGHT GRAY CEMENT COLOR.

DISTURBED MINIMUM

OUTER LIMITS OF

CONCRETE WALK

BACK OF CURB

FRONT FACE

OF CURB

ROUND ALL SLOPED

INTERSECTIONS

0.08 FT./FT. SLOPE OF FLARED SIDE

CURB OR, CURB

AND GUTTER

0.083 FT./FT. OR FLATTER

0.02 FT./FT. MAX

DOME (TYP)

6
"

10
C2.1

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

9
"

1.5" BITUMINOUS WEAR COURSE

TACK COAT

1.5" BITUMINOUS BINDER COURSE

6" AGGREGATE BASE COURSE

12" SUBGRADE PREPARATION

SILT FENCE

NORMAL USE

POSTS:

(IF USED WITHOUT

SUPPORT FENCE)

  WOOD

2" SQ. (MIN)

@ 4' (MAX)

SPACING

  METAL

1.0 lbs/lf (MIN.) "T" OR

"U" SECTION @ 4'

(MAX) SPACING

D
IR

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F

R
U

N
O

F
F

 F
L

O

W

NOTE:  DEPENDING UPON CONFIGURATION, ATTACH TO WIRE MESH WITH

HOG RINGS, STEEL POSTS WITH TIE WIRES, OR WOOD POSTS WITH STAPLES

5' MIN. LENGTH POST

SILT FENCE FABRIC

OVERLAP FABRIC 6" AND

FASTEN @ 2' INTERVALS

EXTEND WIRE MESH INTO TRENCH

FABRIC ANCHORAGE

TRENCH BACKFILL WITH

TAMPED NATURAL SOIL

6" MIN.

6" MIN.

NATURAL SOIL

24" MIN. BURY DEPTH

30" MIN.

METAL STAKE OR

WOOD POST

OPTIONAL SUPPORT

FENCE (WIRE MESH)

127



HANOVER-KEY PLAN

A2.1

2015
HANOVER ELEMENTARY

ALTERATIONS AND ALTERATIONS

BOARD OF EDUCATION ISD # 877

LAURIE RAYMOND
TREASURER

CONSULTANTS

HALLBERG ENGINEERING, INC.
MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL ENGINEERS

1750 COMMERCE COURT
WHITE BEAR LAKE, MN 55110

651-748-1100
FAX 651-748-9370

SYMBOLS

MATERIALS

BURNISHED CONC BLK

ACOUSTIC BOARD

METAL

FINISHED WOOD

ROUGH WOOD

PLYWOOD

EARTH

PLASTER/GROUT

GYPSUM BOARD

GRAVEL

BITUMINOUS

CONCRETE

METAL STUD PARTITION

BATT INSULATION

RIGID INSULATION

CONCRETE BLOCK

BRICK

TERRAZZO

PRECAST CONCRETE

EXISTING CONST TO BE REMOVED

EXISTING CONST TO REMAIN

ELEVATION NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

DETAIL NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SECTION NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

WALL TYPE ELEVATION
MARKER

OPENING TAG

KITCHEN NOTES

PLAN NOTES

DEMO NOTES

MISCELLANEOUS NOTES

NO WORK IN SHADED AREAS
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

SUE LEE
CHAIR JEFF TROUT

DIRECTOR

KEN OGDEN
DIRECTOR

MELISSA BRINGS
VICE CHAIR STAN VANDER KOOI

DIRECTOR

AA

K44

18

44

1
A2.212

8

12
A6.0

1
A9.0

T1.0 TITLE SHEET

CIVIL PLANS

C1.1    REMOVALS PLAN
C1.2    SITE AND LANDSCAPE PLAN
C1.3    GRADING EROSION AND UTILITY PLAN
C2.1    DETAILS

ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

A2.0   CODE PLAN AND ANALYSIS - DOOR CLEARANCE DETAILS AND
            WALL TYPES
A2.1 DEMOLITION, ADDITION AND ALTERATION FLOOR PLANS AND NOTES
A3.0     OPENING AND ROOM FINISH SCHEDULES, DOOR AND FRAME ELEVATIONS
            ALUMINUM DOOR/FRAME AND WINDOW ELEVATIONS AND DETAILS
A4.0   EXTERIOR ELEVATION AND WALL SECTIONS
A4.1 WALL SECTIONS AND DETAILS
A6.0 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS AND MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS
A7.0 REFLECTED CEILING PLAN, NOTES AND MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS
A8.0   ROOF AND CANOPY PLANS AND DETAILS

STRUCTURAL PLANS

S0.1     GENERAL STRUCTURAL NOTES
S1.1     PARTIAL FOUNDATION PLAN, PARTIAL ROOF FRAMING PLAN AND
            CANOPY FRAMING  PLAN
S2.1     SECTIONS AND DETAILS
S2.2     SECTIONS AND DETAILS

MECHANICAL PLANS

M0.0    MECHANICAL TITLE SHEET
M1.1U  UNDER FLOOR PLUMBING DEMOLITION - PARTIAL FLOOR PLAN
M1.1P  PLUMBING AND HVAC PIPING DEMOLITION - PARTIAL FLOOR PLAN
M1.1V  VENTILATION DEMOLITION - PARTIAL FLOOR PLAN
M2.1    UNDER FLOOR PLUMBING - PARTIAL FLOOR PLAN
M3.1    PLUMBING AND HVAC PIPING - PARTIAL FLOOR PLAN
M4.1    FIRE PROTECTION - PARTIAL FLOOR PLAN
M5.1    VENTILATION - PARTIAL FLOOR PLAN
M6.1    MECHANICAL - PARTIAL ROOF PLAN AND ROOF TOP UNIT DETAILS
M7.1    MECHANICAL SCHEDULES
M8.1    MECHANICAL DETAILS
M8.2    MECHANICAL DETAILS

ELECTRICAL PLANS

E0.0 ELECTRICAL TITLE SHEET AMD SYMBOL INDEX
E1.0     ELECTRICAL OVERALL AND SITE PLAN
E2.0     PARTIAL ELECTRICAL DEMOLITION PLAN
E3.0     PARTIAL LIGHTING PLAN
E4.0     PARTIAL POWER AND SIGNAL PLAN
E5.0     PARTIAL TECHNOLOGY PLAN
E6.0     ELECTRICAL SCHEDULES
E7.0     TECHNOLOGY DETAILS
E8.0     ELECTRONIC SAFETY  AND SECURITY DETAILS

T1.0

DRL

TITLE SHEET

DRL

PATTI POKORNEY
CLERK

INNOVATIVE STRUCTURAL SOLUTIONS, P.A.
STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS
5279 KYLER AVENUE NE
ALBERTVILLE, MN 55301

763-425-9960
FAX 763-425-9958

Buffalo Hanover Montrose School District
ISD 877

Hanover, MN
A 
AFF ABOVE FINISH FLOOR
ADMIN ADMINISTRATION
AP ACCESS PANEL
ACB ACOUSTIC BOARD
ACBT ACOUSTIC BOARD TEGULAR
ACPNL ACOUSTIC PANEL
ACPLAST ACOUSTIC PLASTER
ACT ACOUSTIC TILE
ADD ADDENDUM
ADJ ADJACENT
ADBL ADJUSTABLE
ALT ALTERNATE
ALUM ALUMINUM
ANCH ANCHOR
AB ANCHOR BOLT
L ANGLE
APPROX APPROXIMATE
ARCH ARCHITECTURAL
AT ASPHALT TILE
A&G ASPHALT & GRAVEL
@ AT
AV AUDIO-VISUAL

B
BCS BABY CHANGING STATION
BKSP BACKSPLASH
BS BACKSTOP
BALL BALLASTED
BSMT BASEMENT
BB BASKETBALL
BM BEAM
BRG BEARING
BMK BENCHMARK
BTWN BETWEEN
BIT BITUMINOUS
BLK BLOCK
BLKG BLOCKING
BD BOARD
BBM BOND BEAM
BK BOOK OR BOOKSHELVES
BL BORROWED LIGHT
BFE BOTTOM OF FOOTING ELEVATION
B BOYS
BR BRICK
BLDG BUILDING
BUR BUILT UP ROOF
BURN BURNISHED
BBLK BURNISHED BLOCK
BO BY OWNER

C
CAB CABINET
CUH CABINET UNIT HEATER
CPT CARPET
CI CAST IRON
CS CAST STONE
CB CATCH BASIN
CLG CEILING
CEM CEMENT
CEMPL CEMENT PLASTER
CTR CENTER
CL CENTER LINE
CACB CERAMIC ACOUSTIC BOARD
C TO C CENTER TO CENTER
CT  CERAMIC TILE
CBD CHALKBOARD
C CHANNEL
CH CHASE
CHEM CHEMICAL
CLRM CLASSROOM
CLR CLEAR
CLO CLOSET
COL COLUMN
COMM COMMUNICATION
COMP COMPUTER
CONC CONCRETE
CMU CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT
CONC P CONCRETE PLANK
CONC T CONCRETE DOUBLE TEES
CBLK CONCRETE BLOCK
CONF CONFERENCE
CONST CONSTRUCTION
CM CONTRUCTION MANAGER
CONT CONTINUOUS
CONTR CONTRACTOR
CJ CONTROL JOINT
CC COMPUTER COUNTER
CORR CORRIDOR
COUNS COUNSELOR
CTOP COUNTERTOP
CSE COURSE
CUSP CUSPIDOR
CUST CUSTODIAN

D
DMT DEMOUNTABLE
DTL DETAIL
DET DETERMINE
DIA DIAMETER
DIM DIMENSION
DW DISHWASHER
DC DISPLAY CASE
DO DITTO (DUPLICATE)
DIV DIVISION
DR DOOR
DH DOUBLE HUNG
DSA DOUBLE STRENGTH A GRADE
DWLS DOWELS
DN DOWN
DS DOWNSPOUT
DT DRAIN TILE
DWG DRAWING
DRSG DRESSING
DF DRINKING FOUNTAIN
DC DRY CHEMICAL
DFO DRY FALL OUT

E
EA EACH
EF EACH FACE
EW EACH WAY
ED EDUCATION
ELEC ELECTRIC
EHD ELECTRIC HAND DRYER
EHRD ELECTRIC HAIR DRYER
EWC ELECTRIC WATER COOLER
ELEV ELEVATION
EVTR ELEVATOR
E ENAMEL
EP EPOXY PAINT

EQUIP EQUIPMENT
EC EQUIPMENT CONTRACTOR
EXIST EXISTING
EXP EXPANSION
EJ EXPANSION JOINT
EX EXPOSED
EX STR EXPOSED STRUCTURE
EXT EXTERIOR

F
FBR FACE BRICK
FT FEET
FV FIELD VERIFY
FFE FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION
FIN FINISHED
FA FIRE ALARM
FB FIRE BLANKET
FE FIRE EXTINGUISHER
FH FIRE HYDRANT
FHS FLATHEAD SCREW
FL FLOOR
FD FLOOR DRAIN
FP FOLDING PARTITION
FTG FOOTING
FDN FOUNDATION
FR FRAME
FRZR FREEZER
FURR FURRING

G
GALV GALVANIZED
GI GALVANIZED IRON
GA GAUGE
GEN GENERAL
G GIRLS
GL GLASS

GMU GLAZED MASONRY UNIT
GB GRAB BAR
GR GRANULAR
GP GREASEPROOF
GND GROUND
GYP GYPSUM BOARD

H
HDCP HANDICAP
HB HARDBOARD
H HARDENER
HDWE HARDWARE
HDWD HARDWOOD
HDR HEADER
HEAT HEATING
HT HEIGHT
HM HOLLOW METAL
HOR HORIZONTAL
HR HOUR

I
I I BEAM
IF INSIDE FACE
INSUL INSULATION

INT INTERIOR
INV INVERT
IPS IRON PIPE SIZE
ISO ISOMETRIC

J
JST JOIST
JBE JOIST BEARING ELEVATION

K
KC KEENE'S CEMENT
KP KICK PLATE
KG KINDERGARTEN
KIT KITCHEN
KS KNEESPACE
KO KNOCK OUT

LAB LABORATORY
LAM LAMINATED
LNDG LANDING
LAUN LAUNDRY
LS LAUNDRY SINK
LAV LAVATORY
L LENGTH
LT LIGHT
LP LIGHT PROOF
LWCB LIGHT WEIGHT CONCRETE BLOCK
LFC LINOLEUM FLOOR COVERING
LOC LOCATION
LK LOCK
LKR LOCKER
LLV LONG LEG VERTICAL
LSJ LONG SPAN JOIST
LVR LOUVER

MAG MAGNETIC
MHO MAGNETIC HOLD OPEN
MH MANHOLE
MFR MANUFACTURER
MO MASONRY OPENING
MB MARKER BOARD
MATL MATERIAL
MAX MAXIMUM
MECH MECHANICAL
MCO MECHANICAL OPENING
MC MEDICINE CABINET
MEMB MEMBRANE
M MENS
MAP METAL ACOUSTIC PANEL
ML METAL LATH
MEZZ MEZZANINE
MICRO MICROWAVE
MIN MINIMUM
MIR MIRROR
MISC MISCELLANEOUS
MS MOP STRIP
MULL MULLION
MT MOP TUB

N
NW NO WORK
NOM NOMINAL
NIC NOT IN CONTRACT
NTS NOT TO SCALE
NO NUMBER

O
OBS OBSCURE
OFF OFFICE

OC ON CENTER
OPG OPENING
OD OUTSIDE DIAMETER
OF OUTSIDE FACE
OA OVERALL

OS OVERFLOW SCUPPER

P
PT ENAMEL PAINT
PNL PANEL
PTD PAPER TOWEL DISPENSER
PTN PARTITION
PVM PAVEMENT
PS PENCIL SHARPENER
PERF PERFORATED
PERIM PERIMETER
P&G PITCH & GRAVEL
PLAS PLASTER
PLAST PLASTIC
P ACT PLASTIC ACOUSTIC TILE
PLAM PLASTIC LAMINATE
PL PLATE
PLUMB PLUMBING
PLY PLYWOOD
PPG POLISHED PLATE GLASS
PVC POLYVINYLCHLORIDE
PE PORCELAIN ENAMEL

LB (#) POUND
PCP PRECAST CONCRETE PLANK

PRE FAB PRE FABRICATED
PRE FIN PRE FINISHED
PWP PRECAST WALL PANEL
PRIN PRINCIPAL
PROP L PROPERTY LINE
PC PUTTY COAT

QT QUARRY TILE

R
RAD RADIUS
RC RAIN CHUTE
RL RAIN LEADER
RWL RAINWATER LEADER
RFM RECESSED FLOOR MAT
RECP RECEPTION
RCP REFLECTED CEILING PLAN
REF REFRIGERATOR
REINF REINFORCED
RCB REINFORCED CONCRETE BLOCK
RE RELOCATE EXISTING
REQD REQUIRED
RF RESILIENT FLOORING
RSF RESILIENT SHEET FLOORING
REV REVERSE

RD ROOF DRAIN
RV ROOF VENT
RM ROOM
RFS ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE
RO ROUGH OPENING
RHS ROUND HEAD SCREW
RUB RUBBER
RT RUBBER TILE
RST RUBBERIZED SPORT TILES

S
SF SAND FLOAT
SND SANITARY NAPKIN DISPENSER
SCH SCHEDULE
SCUP SCUPPER
SM SEAMLESS
SECY SECRETARY
SECT SECTION
SS SERVICE SINK
SHT SHEET
SH SHELF
SHWR SHOWER 
SIM SIMILAR
S SINK
SCP SKIM COAT PLASTER
SOG SLAB ON GRADE
SP SPECIAL
SPED SPECIAL ED
SCT SPECIAL COATINGS AND TOPPINGS
SPEC SPECIFICATION
SB SPLASH BLOCK
SQ SQUARE
S&V STAIN & VARNISH
SST STAINLESS STEEL
STD STANDARD
STL STEEL
SJ STEEL JOIST
STOR STORAGE
SFM STONE FACE MASONRY UNIT
STRUCT STRUCTURAL
SGFT STRUCTURAL GLAZED FACING TILE
SUSP SUSPENDED
SSF SYNTHETIC SPORT FLOORING

T
TB TACK BOARD
TS TACKSTRIP
TEL TELEPHONE
TEMP TEMPERATURE
TPD TEMPERED
TERR TERRAZZO
TH TEST HOLE
TPT TEXTURED PAINT
THRES THRESHOLD
TLT TOILET
TPG TOILET PAPER HOLDER
T&G TONGUE & GROOVE
TBE TOP BEARING ELEVATION
TDE TOP DECK ELEVATION
TFE TOP FOOTING ELEVATION
TC TOP OF CURB
TOM TOP OF MASONRY
TOP TOP OF PRECAST
TOS TOP OF SLAB
T TREAD
TV TUNNEL VENT
TYP TYPICAL
TZ TERRAZZO TILE

U
UC UNDERCUT
UH UNIT HEATER
UV UNIT VENTILATOR
U URINAL
UTIL UTILITY
UNO UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

V
VAR VARIED
VARN VARNISHED
VBD VELCRO BOARD
VSE VENEER SHELF ELEVATION
VENT VENTILATOR
VER VERIFY
VERT VERTICAL
VEST VESTIBULE
VCT VINYL COMPOSITION TILE
VF VINYL FABRIC

VCP VITREOUS CLAY PIPE
VB VOLLEYBALL

W
WSCT WAINSCOT
WR WARDROBE
WFTN WASH FOUNTAIN

WCAB WASTE CABINET
WC WATER CLOSET

WP WATER PROOF
WT WEIGHT
WWM WELDED WIRE MESH
W WIDE
WF WIDE FLANGE
WDW WINDOW
WGL WIRE GLASS
W/ WITH
W/O WITHOUT
WM WOMENS
WD WOOD
WDP WOOD PANELING
WI WROUGHT IRON

OFFICE WARDROBEOW

L

M

Q

GLASS FIBER REINFORCED GYPSUMGFRG

ORD OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN

RISERR

EQUALEQ

VINYL SHEET FLOORINGVSF

INTERACTIVE WHITE BOARDIWB

ABBREVIATIONS 

ANDERSON-JOHNSON ASSOCIATES, INC.
CIV1L ENGINEERS

7575 GOLDEN VALLEY ROAD
SUITE 200

GOLDEN VALLEY, MN 55427
(763)54-7129

FAX (763)544-0531

SUPERINTENDENT ISD # 877
SCOTT THIELMAN

North

A
 R

 C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 S

   
 R

 E
 G

 O
  +

  Y
 O

 U
 N

 G
 Q

 U
 I 

S 
T

76
01

 W
ay

za
ta

 B
ou

le
va

rd
   

Su
ite

 2
00

   
St

. L
ou

is
 P

ar
k,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

54
26

Ph
on

e:
 9

52
-5

44
-8

94
1 

  F
ax

: 9
52

-5
44

-0
58

5 
  a

ry
ar

ch
.c

om

Revised

Checked by
Date

Drawn by

I h
er

eb
y 

ce
rti

fy
 th

at
 th

is
 p

la
n 

w
as

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

m
e 

or
 u

nd
er

 m
y 

di
re

ct
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
th

at
 I 

am
 a

 d
ul

y
Li

ce
ns

ed
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
la

w
s

of
 th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 M

in
ne

so
ta

.

Sheet Title

C
om

m
is

si
on

 N
um

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Sheet Number

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

N
um

be
r

20
15

H
A

N
O

V
ER

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

IS
D

 #
87

7 
   

 H
an

ov
er

, M
N

20
52

02/09/15
00/00/00

PA
U

L 
Y

O
U

N
G

Q
U

IS
T

 1
30

31

 KEY NOTES 
DIVISION 03 CONCRETE
03 10 00 .A STOOP VOID FORM

03 30 00 .A FOOTING OR FOUNDATION WALL. SEE STRUCTURAL FOR SIZE,
DEPTH, AND REINFORCING

 .B CONCRETE SLAB ON GRADE - SEE STRUCTURAL
 .C 2" CONCRETE TOPPING
 .D FROST SLAB - SEE STRUCTURAL
 .E 1/2" EXPANSION MATERIAL
 .F VAPOR RETARDER
 .G BOND BREAK MATERIAL

.H KEY WAY
   .I  NOT USED

.J   WATERSTOP

DIVISION 04 MASONRY
04 20 00 .A FACE BRICK  TYPE A, TYPE B, ETC

.B CONCRETE BLOCK (SEE PLAN OR SECTIONS FOR THICKNESS) SEE
ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE AND ELEVATIONS FOR COLOR, SCORING,
FINISH AND PATTERNS - SEE OVERALL PLAN FOR FIRE RATING

 .C CONCRETE BLOCK BOND BEAM (SEE STRUCTURAL FOR SIZE AND
REINFORCING)

 .D SOLID CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT (NO CORES)
 .E SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

REINFORCING REQUIRED FOR ALL MASONRY WALLS. PROVIDE
HORIZONTAL JOINT REINFORCING 16" OC VERTICALLY
STARTING1'-4" ABOVE FFE 100'-0", UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

 .F GROUT SOLID
 .G FLASHING AND WEEPS
 .H 15 LB BLDG FELT BOND BREAKER

.I   NOT USED
 .J ADJUSTABLE VENEER ANCHORS AT 16" OC HORIZONTALLY
 .K CAVITY VENTILATOR, ALTERNATE W/WICKS @ 24" OC
 .L HORIZONTAL JOINT REINFORCING, SPACING AS SHOWN
 .M CONT 3/8" ETHAFOAM STRIP FULL WIDTH OF MASONRY
 .N GLAZED MASONRY UNIT - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC

.O NOT USED
 .P BURNISHED CONCRETE BLOCK - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC
 .Q DECORATIVE CONCRETE BLOCK - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC

04 72 00 .A CAST STONE - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC

DIVISION 05 METALS
05 10 00 .A STEEL ANGLE (SEE STRUCTURAL)
 .B STEEL BEAM (SEE STRUCTURAL)
 .C STEEL PLATE (SEE STRUCTURAL)
 .D STEEL CHANNEL (SEE STRUCTURAL)

.E  STEEL COLUMN (SEE STRUCTURAL)

05 20 00 .A STEEL JOIST (SEE STRUCTURAL)

05 30 00 .A 1-1/2" METAL DECK (SEE STRUCTURAL)
.B 1-1/2" METAL ACOUSTIC DECK (SEE STRUCTURAL)
.C 3" METAL DECK (SEE STRUCTURAL)

05 50 00 .A 1-1/4" NOM. DIA. STL. PIPE RAILING-WELD & GRIND SMOOTH (PAINT)
 .B STEEL GRATE TREADS (PAINT)
 .C MC 12 x 10.6 STRINGERS WITH CLOSED ENDS (PAINT)
 .D GRIND SMOOTH WELDS AND CUT EDGES (PAINT)
 .E STEEL PAN TREAD AND RISER (PAINT)
 .F 1 1/4" NOM DIA STEEL PIPE (PAINT)
 .G 1/4" x 1" STEEL BAR (PAINT)

DIVISION 06 CARPENTRY
06 20 00 .A UNTREATED WOOD BLOCKING
 .B 1/2" EXTERIOR TREATED PLYWOOD
 .C 3/4" EXTERIOR TREATED PLYWOOD
 .D MOISTURE TREATED WOOD BLOCKING SECURED TO SUBSTRATE
 .E SCREW 2x TO SUB-BLOCKING AT 16" OC
 .F 3/8" x 10" HOOKED END BOLT AT 32" OC INTO MASONRY JOINT OR

GROUTED BLOCK COURSE
 .G 3/8" x 3" CARRIAGE BOLT AT EACH ANGLE OR 32" OC MAX
 .H 1/2" x 4" EXPANSION BOLT AT 48" OC
 .I NOT USED.
 .J FIRE TREATED WOOD BLOCKING SECURED TO SUBSTRATE
 .K STRAP ANCHOR
 .L 1/2" FIRE RETARDANT PLYWOOD

06 25 00 .A ALUMINUM COVERED PLYWOOD
 .B CONTINUOUS SOFFIT VENT

DIVISION 07 THERMAL AND MOISTURE PROTECTION
07 21 00 .A RIGID OR PERIMETER INSULATION - SEE DRAWINGS FOR THICKNESS
 .B CAVITY WALL INSULATION. SEE DRAWINGS FOR THICKNESS
 .C FIBERGLASS BATT INSULATION FULL THICKNESS OF CAVITY
 .D FIBERGLASS LOOSE INSULATION PACKED IN VOIDS
 .E VAPOR BARRIER
 .F SAFING INSULATION
 .G  FURRED WALL INSULATION

.H MASONRY INSULATION (GRANULAR)

07 51 00 .A 4 PLY BUILT UP ROOFING SYSTEM
.B ROOF INSULATION - SEE ROOF PLAN FOR THICKNESS
.C VAPOR RETARDER
.D GRACE'S PERMABARRIER ALUMINUM FLASHING

 .E TAPERED  OR STEP INSULATION
 .F ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT
 .G OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT15 LB FELT
  .H MODIFIED ASPHALT MEMBRANE UNDERLAYMENT
 .I NOT USED

.J ROOFING SEALANT

.K ROOF EXPANSION JOINT COVER OR FLEXIBLE FLASHINGS

.L GRACE'S PERMABARRIER ALUMINUM FLASHING

.M 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT RATED ROOF/CEILING ASSEMBLIES)

.N 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT RATED ROOF/CEILING ASSEMBLIES)

.O NOT USED

.P PREFABRICATED INSULATED SMOKE HATCH, OR ROOF HATCH (SEE
PLAN)

07 52 00 .A MODIFIED BITUMENOUS ROOFING SYSTEM
.B ROOF INSULATION - SEE ROOF PLAN FOR THICKNESS
.C VAPOR RETARDER
.D 1/2" INSULATION COVER BOARD
.E TAPERED OR STEP INSULATION
.F ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT
.G OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT
.H MODIFIED ASPHALT MEMBRANE UNDERLAYMENT
.I NOT USED
.J ROOFING SEALANT

  .K ROOF EXPANSION JOINT COVER OR FLEXIBLE FLASHINGS
.L GRACE'S PERMABARRIER ALUMINUM FLASHING
.M 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT RATED ROOF/CEILING ASSEMBLIES)
.N 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT ACOUSTIC DECK OR RATED

ASSEMBLIES)
.O NOT USED
.P PREFABRICATED INSULATED SMOKE HATCH, OR ROOF HATCH (SEE

PLAN)

07 60 00 .A CONTINUOUS HOOK STRIP ANCHORED TO BLOCKING AT 16" OC
 .B PRE-FINISHED METAL FACIA OR CAP
 .C ANCHOR FACIA TO 2x WITH GASKETED SCREWS AT 2'-6" OC
 .D PRE-FINISHED METAL OVERFLOW SCUPPER, WITH PRE-FINISHED

METAL FLANGE ALL SIDES HEM EXPOSED EDGES
 .E PRE-FINISHED METAL FLASHING ANCHORED WITH GASKETED

SCREWS AT 12" OC
 .F PREFINISHED METAL DOWNSPOUT SECURE FLANGE TO WALL W/

LEAD SHIELD ANCHORS 2'-0" OC
 .G GASKETED SCREWS THRU MIDPOINT OF SLOTTED HOLES OR

BETWEEN SECTIONS OF FLASHING
 .H PREFINISHED METAL SCUPPER & LEADER

07 90 00 .A CAULKING
 .B PRE COMPRESSED FOAM SEALANT

DIVISION 08 DOORS AND WINDOWS
08 11 00 .A HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND/OR FRAME

08 14 00 .A WOOD DOOR

08 40 00 .A ALUMINUM ENTRANCE DOOR AND FRAME
 .B ALUMINUM  CURTAINWALL FRAME

08 40 10 .A ALUMINUM ENTRANCE DOOR AND FRAME

08 45 00 .A SKYLIGHT PANEL ASSEMBLY, FLASHING AND EAVE STRUT BY SKYLIGHT
SUPPLIER

 .B ANCHOR SKYLIGHT TO STEEL PLATE

08 51 00 .A ALUMINUM WINDOW

DIVISION 09 FINISHES
09 24 00 .A CEMENT PLASTER

09 27 13 .A INTERIOR COLUMN COVER

09 27 16 .A EXTERIOR COLUMN COVER

09 29 00 .A 6" - 20 GA STEEL STUDS AT 16" OC
 .B 3-5/8"  20 GA STEEL STUDS AT 16" OC
 .C 2-1/2"  25GA STEEL STUDS AT 24" OC
 .D 1-5/8"  25 GA STEEL STUDS AT 24" OC
 .E STEEL RUNNER ANCHORED TO STEEL BEAM, JOIST OR DECK
 .F 7/8" FURRING CHANNELS AT 16" OC
 .G FILLET WELD STUDS TO STEEL ANGLE OR BEAM, BOTH SIDES OF

STUD, FULL HEIGHT OF ATTACHMENT
 .H 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT

NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)
.I NOT USED
.J (2) LAYERS 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM

BOARD (EXCEPT REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED
CONSTRUCTION)

 .K (2) LAYERS EACH SIDE 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT
REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

.L 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT
REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .M (1) LAYER EACH SIDE 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT
REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .N (2) LAYERS EACH SIDE 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT REGULAR
GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .O NOT USED
.P 1/2" SHEATHING

 .Q 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD ON DRYWALL SUSPENSION SYSTEM
(EXCEPT REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .R EDGE BEAD
 .S CORNER BEAD
 .T "Z" FURRING @ 16" OC
 .U RESILIENT CHANNELS @ 16" OC
 .V ACOUSTIC BLANKETS

.W 1/2" CEMENT BOARD

.X DEFLECTION TRACK

09 30 00 .A CERAMIC TILE (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE FOR TYPE/LOCATIONS)
 .B SOLID SURFACE WINDOW STOOL

09 65 00 .A RUBBER BASE (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE)

09 68 00 .A CARPET (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE)

09 80 00 .A SUSPENDED ACOUSTICAL CEILING (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE)

DIVISION 10  SPECIALTIES
10 01 00 .A ENTRANCE MAT RECESSED

DIVISION 12  FURNISHINGS
12 35 50 .A CASEWORK (SEE PLAN AND INTERIOR ELEVATIONS)

DIVISION 22  PLUMBING
22 00 00 .A RAIN WATER LEADER (SEE MECHANICAL)

.B VENT STACK (SEE MECHANICAL)

DIVISION 23  MECHANICAL
23 00 00 .A MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT UNIT ANCHORED TO CURB WITH

GASKETED SCREWS (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .B PREFABRICATED ALUMINUM CURB FURNISHED BY MECHANICAL AND

INSTALLED BY GENERAL CONTRACTOR
 .C WELD CURB TO STEEL DECK OR CHANNEL (BY GENERAL

CONTRACTOR)
 .D PIPE (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .E VENT PIPE W/ INSECT SCREEN BY MECHANICAL @ GAS CURB ONLY -

OMIT @ CONDENSER CURB
 .F STACK OR FLUE WITH HOOD (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .G METAL LINING (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .H DUCT (SEE MECHANICAL)

DIVISION 31  SITEWORK
31 00 00 .A 6" MIN SAND CUSHION
 .B FINISH GRADE (SEE SITE PLAN)

.C COARSE FILTER AGGREGATE

DIVISION 33  UTILITIES
33 46 13 .A DRAIN TILE

NOTE: THESE KEYNOTES ARE TYPICAL MATERIALS AND CONDITIONS, BUT ARE NOT INTENDED
TO BE A COMPLETE LIST OF ALL ITEMS REQUIRED FOR THE PROJECT. REFER TO DRAWING
NOTES AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS.

SITE LOCATION
HANOVER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

274 LABEAU AVE NE
HANOVER, MN 55341

128



REMODELED AREA

NEW ADDITION

39

34

41

39

34

39

34

39

34

41

41

41

41

41

41

39

34

39

34

39

34

39

34

37

39

40

39

56

19 49

49

41

41

20

15

24

'B' OCCUPANCY

'B' OCCUPANCY

'B' OCCUPANCY

'A4' OCCUPANCY

'A3' OCCUPANCY

40

21

3

2

1

9

1

7

91

59

EXIT

EXIT

EXIT

EXIT

EXIT

EXIT

EXIT

EXIT
EXIT

EXISTING 1 HOUR FIRE BARRIER WALL
(NO ADDITIONAL WORK, UNO)

TRAVEL DISTANCE = 209' ACTUAL<250' ALLOWED

REMODELED AREA
SHOWN SHADED

2,375 SQUARE FEET
ADDITION AREA
SHOWN SHADED

2
A2.1

1
A2.1

12

90

SEPARATE "BUILDING"

RATING OF OPENING
(DOOR OR BORROWED

LIGHT/WINDOW)

MAXIMUM ROOM
OCCUPANT LOAD

NO EXIT DURING
CONSTRUCTION

FIRE EXTINGUISHER LOCATION
(SEE ENLARGED PLANS FOR
MOUNTING CONDITIONS)

CODE PLAN LEGEND

EXITING

8A

EXISTING 1 HOUR FIRE BARRIER WALL
(NO ADDITIONAL WORK, UNO)

RECYCLING AREA

1'-6"

1'-0"

MIN CLEARANCE
ON PULL SIDE

MIN CLEARANCE ON PUSH
SIDE IF CLOSER & LATCH
(0" WITHOUT CLOSER &
LATCH)

3 TYPICAL ADA DOOR CLEARANCES
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

CONCRETE BLOCK OR METAL
STUD/GYPSUM BOARD WALL

FRAME TYPE VARIES

DOOR OR
BORROWED
LIGHT

FRAME
OPENING

4" TYPICAL UNO

2 TYPICAL JAMB LOCATION
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

GENERAL WALL TYPE NOTES:

1. ALL METAL STUD WALLS ARE TYPE 1 UNLESS OTHERWISE ON
THE PLAN OR DETAILS.

2. ALL WALL TYPES ARE FROM FLOOR TO DECK ABOVE UNLESS
NOTED OTHERWISE (UNO).

3. ALL STEEL STUD WALLS SHALL HAVE 3 1/2" THERMAL
INSULATION FULL HEIGHT OF GYP BD (UNO) - SEE WALL TYPE
MODIFIERS.

4. SEE SPECIFICATIONS AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR
REINFORCING REQUIREMENTS AT CMU WALLS.

5. AT NON-RATED GYP BD WALL TYPES, REGULAR IN LIEU OF
TYPE 'X' GYP BD IS ACCEPTABLE.

6. PROVIDE TYPE 'M' OR 'S' MORTAR AT ALL 6" NON-BEARING
WALLS EXCEEDING 13'-0" TALL. EXTEND (1) #4 REBAR @ 24"
OC 4'-0" UP FROM FINISHED FLOOR - SEE STRUCTURAL.

7. SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR LOCATION OF CEMENT BOARD
AND MOISTURE RESISTANT GYP BD.

8. ALL WALL TYPES TO BE CONSTRUCTED PER APPROPRIATE UL
DESIGN AND GYPSUM ASSOCIATION FILE NUMBER - SEE
SPEC AND MFR LITERATURE.

9. EXISTING WALLS SHOWN SHADED

SEE
PLAN

NO THERMAL INSULATION - UNO

EXISTING MASONRY WALL WITH FURRING

3 1/8"

1 LAYER 5/8" TYPE - 'X' GYP BD ONE SIDE
2 1/2" METAL STUDS @ 16" ON EXISTING
MASONRY

NON-RATED2

NOTE: FURRING AND GYP BD
TO STOP 4" ABOVE ACB - UNO

5 5/8"

TYPICAL WALL

2 LAYERS 1/2" TYPE - 'X' GYP BD EACH
SIDE TO DECK - UNO

3 5/8" 20 GA STEEL STUDS AT 16" OC

THERMAL INSULATION

NON-RATED1

SEE
PLAN

THERMAL INSULATION - UNO

EXISTING MASONRY WALL WITH FURRING

4 1/4"

1 LAYER 5/8" TYPE - 'X' GYP BD ONE SIDE
3 5/8" METAL STUDS @ 16" ON EXISTING
MASONRY

NON-RATED4

NOTE: FURRING AND GYP BD
TO STOP 4" ABOVE ACB - UNO

SEE
PLAN

THERMAL INSULATION
UNO

EXISTING MASONRY WALL WITH FURRING

16 5/8"

2 LAYER 1/2" TYPE - 'X' GYP
BD ONE SIDE

3 5/8" METAL STUDS @
16" ON EXISTING MASONRY

NON-RATED6

NOTE: FURRING AND
GYP BD TO DECK

CHASE WALL NON-RATED

2 LAYERS 1/2" TYPE 'X' GYP BD
EACH SIDE TO DECK - UNO

THERMAL INSULATION - EACH SIDE

1'-9 1/4"

(2) ROWS 3 5/8" 20 GA STEEL
STUDS @ 16" OC

5
PLUMBING WALL NON-RATED

2 LAYERS 1/2" TYPE 'X' GYP BD
EACH SIDE TO DECK - UNO

THERMAL INSULATION -
EACH SIDE

2'-5 1/4"

(2) ROWS 3 5/8" 20 GA STEEL
STUDS @ 16" OC

3 7

SEE
PLAN

04 2000.B

PROVIDE UL CLASSIFIED BLOCK AS
REQUIRED FOR 1-HR AND 2-HR FIRE
RATED CMU WALLS

CMU WALL NON-RATED8

SEE
PLAN

NO THERMAL INSULATION
UNO

EXISTING MASONRY WALL WITH FURRING

6 1/2" CLEAR

2 LAYER 1/2" TYPE - 'X' GYP
BD ONE SIDE

3 5/8" METAL STUDS @
16" ON EXISTING MASONRY

NON-RATED10

SEE
PLAN

NO THERMAL INSULATION - UNO

1 5/8"

1 LAYER 5/8" GYP BD ON HAT CHANNELS
16" OC

SEE WALL TYPE MODIFIER FOR METHOD OF
FURRING ON CONCRETE OR CMU

NOTE: FURRING TO DECK AND GYP
BD TO STOP 4" ABOVE ACB - UNO

SEE
PLAN

NO THERMAL INSULATION
UNO

EXISTING MASONRY WALL WITH FURRING

1" CLEAR

2 LAYER 1/2" TYPE - 'X' GYP
BD ONE SIDE

3 5/8" METAL STUDS @
16" ON EXISTING MASONRY

NON-RATED9

NOTE: FURRING AND
GYP BD TO DECKNOTE: FURRING AND GYP BD TO

STOP 4" ABOVE ACB - UNO

North

A
 R

 C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 S

   
 R

 E
 G

 O
  +

  Y
 O

 U
 N

 G
 Q

 U
 I 

S 
T

76
01

 W
ay

za
ta

 B
ou

le
va

rd
   

Su
ite

 2
00

   
St

. L
ou

is
 P

ar
k,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

54
26

Ph
on

e:
 9

52
-5

44
-8

94
1 

  F
ax

: 9
52

-5
44

-0
58

5 
  a

ry
ar

ch
.c

om

Revised

Checked by
Date

Drawn by

I h
er

eb
y 

ce
rti

fy
 th

at
 th

is
 p

la
n 

w
as

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

m
e 

or
 u

nd
er

 m
y 

di
re

ct
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
th

at
 I 

am
 a

 d
ul

y
Li

ce
ns

ed
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
la

w
s

of
 th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 M

in
ne

so
ta

.

Sheet Title

C
om

m
is

si
on

 N
um

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Sheet Number

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

N
um

be
r

20
15

H
A

N
O

V
ER

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

IS
D

 #
87

7 
   

 H
an

ov
er

, M
N

20
52

02/09/15
00/00/00

PA
U

L 
Y

O
U

N
G

Q
U

IS
T

 1
30

31

BUILDING #1:

* MIXED OCCUPANCIES OF 'E', 'B' AND 'A3'
* IIB CONSTRUCTION
* ONE STORY 'E', 'B' & 'A3' CONSTRUCTION
* SEPARATED USE
* SPRINKLED FOR AREA
  A(T) =  [14,500 SF FOR 'E'; 23,000 SF FOR 'B'; 9,500 SF FOR 'A3']

  AREA MODIFICATIONS AND CALCULATIONS (SECTION 506):
  I(F) = 75% (F = 1505', P = 1505') = 1505/1505 = 1 - .25 = .75
  A(A) [A3] = 9,500 + [9.5K (.75)] + [9.5K (3)] = 45,125 SF ALLOWABLE
         ACTUAL AREA = 7,471 SF
   A(A) [B] = 23,000 + [23K (.75)] + [23K (3)] = 109,250 SF ALLOWABLE
         ACTUAL AREA = 3,456 SF
  A(A) [E] = 14,500 + [14.5K (.75)] + [14.5K (3)] = 68,875 SF ALLOWABLE
         ACTUAL AREA = 54,378 SF

RATIO CALCULATION FOR MIXED OCCUPANCIES: 508.3.3.2 ALLOWABLE AREA OF
EACH OCCUPANCY SHALL NOT EXCEED ONE

 56,049  [E] +    7,469  [A3] +   4,227   [B]= .81 + .16 + .03  = 1.0 = 1.0
 68,875            45,125            109,250

CODE ANALYSIS BASED 0N IBC 2006
(ALSO SEE SPEC SECTION 01400)

BUILDING AREA MODIFICATIONS AND CALCULATIONS: SECTION 506

OVERALL BUILDING EXITING   MAX OCCUPANT LOAD FOR WORST CASE SCENARIO;
OCCUPANT LOAD EQUALS 1567 MULTIPLIED BY FACTOR (.15), (BUILDING SPRINKLED
THROUGH-OUT)  DOORS REQUIRED; (1567 X .15) = 235" MINIMUM CLEAR EGRESS
WIDTH REQUIRED/32" = 7.35 = (8) 36" DOOR REQUIRED - (16) 36" DOORS
PROVIDED

GYM (A-4) EXITING   OCCUPANT LOAD EQUALS 481 MULTIPLIED BY FACTOR (.2),
(BUILDING SPRINKLED THROUGH-OUT)  DOORS REQUIRED; (481 X .2) = 96.2"
MINIMUM CLEAR EGRESS WIDTH REQUIRED/32" = 3.006 = (3) 36" DOOR REQUIRED
- (5) 36" DOORS PROVIDED

NOTE:   FOR EXITING PURPOSES ONLY
EXIT WIDTH HAS BEEN ANALYZED IN A WORST CASE SCENARIO HAVING ALL
CLASSROOMS, CAFETERIA/GYM, GYM AND OFFICES CALCULATED AS MAXIMUM
OCCUPANT ROOM LOADS AT THE SAME TIME.

EGRESS WIDTH REQUIREMENTS FOR EACH BUILDING:

MULTIPLIER FACTORS ARE FROM TABLE 1005.1 AND ASSEMBLY SECTION 1025.6.1

INCIDENTAL USE AREAS
TABLE 508.2

IN ALL NEW STORAGE ROOMS OVER 100 SQUARE FEET, SHALL BE PROTECTED WITH
A (1) FIRE BARRIER IN LIEU OF A AUTOMATIC FIRE-EXTINGUISHING SYSTEM - NO
REQUIRED RATED WALLS IN NEW ADDITION

ACCESSORY OCCUPANCIES

SECTION 508.3.1

AGGREGATE ACCESSORY OCCUPANCIES SHALL NOT OCCUPY MORE THAN 10% OF
THE AREA OF THE STORY IN WHICH THEY ARE LOCATED AND SHALL NOT EXCEED THE
TABULAR VALUES IN TABLE 503

ENTIRE FLOOR EQUALS 67,845 SQUARE FEET X (10%) = 6,784 SQUARE FEET
ALLOWED

ADMINISTRATION + KITCHEN AREA
ACTUAL FLOOR AREA EQUALS 2,162 SQUARE FEET + 2,065 SQUARE FEET =  4,227
SQUARE FEET < ALLOWABLE FLOOR AREA 6,784 SQUARE FEET

PER SECTION 508.3.1.3 - NO SEPARATION IS REQUIRED BETWEEN ACCESSORY
OCCUPANCIES OR THE MAIN OCCUPANCY.

PER TABLE 508.3.3 - NO SEPARATION IS REQUIRED BETWEEN 'E' OCCUPANY AND 'A'
OCCUPANCY.

PLUMBING FIXTURE COUNT

AVERAGE CALCULATION USED TO DETERMINE FIXTURE COUNT AS FOLLOWS:

OCCUPANT LOAD WILL BE DETERMINED BY THE AVERAGE OF: TOTAL ENROLLMENT
DESIGN PLUS MAX OCCUPANT ROOM LOADS.
          OCCCUPANT COUNTS
        A) TOTAL ENROLLMENT DESIGN = 417 STUDENTS

B) MAX OCCUPANT ROOM LOADS = 1413 OCCUPANTS

FIXTURE COUNT BASED ON AVERAGE BETWEEN ENROLLMENT DESIGN & MAX OCCUPANT ROOM LOAD =
(1413) MAX ROOM LOAD PLUS (417) ENROLLMENT DESIGN = 1830/2 = 915 OCCUPANTS
THE 915 OCCUPANT LOAD WILL BE USED TO DETERMINE FIXTURE COUNTS

MALE AND FEMALE FIXTURES = 915/2 = 458/50 (E OCCUPANCY) =
         10 FIXTURES EACH FOR MALES & FEMALES

GROUP 'E'
             FEMALE  458 / 50 = 10 FIXTURES

      REQUIRED                EXISTING & NEW
10 WATER CLOSETS        17 WATER CLOSETS
10 LAVATORIES              17 LAVATORIES

              MALE   458 / 50  = 10 FIXTURES

      REQUIRED                EXISTING & NEW
 10 WATER CLOSETS        6 WATER CLOSETS AND 13 URINALS
 10 LAVATORIES            16 LAVATORIES

          (10) UNISEX TOILETS ARE EXISTING THROUGH OUT FOR STAFF AND STUDENTS

 DRINKING FOUNTAINS
 TOTAL OCCUPANTS = 915 / 100 = 10 REQUIRED
 PER STATE AMENDMENT 2902.1 FOOTNOTE I, CAN SUBSTITUTE UP TO 50% FOR ANY OF THE FOLLOWING:
 (KITCHEN LINE, VENDINGS, STUDENT STORE, CONCESSION STAND AND AL-A-CART.

                          DRINKING FOUNTAINS = 5

A2.0

DRL

CODE PLAN AND
ANALYSIS -
DOOR
CLEARANCE
DETAILS AND
WALL TYPES

BR

1 CODE PLAN
SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

129



UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC LINE

UNDERGROUND
SANITARY SEWER LINE

1
'-4

"

4
'-8

"

EXISTING GRASS TO REMAIN
BEYOND THIS LINE

3A
A4.0

1A
A4.1

2A
A4.1

3
A4.1

29

42

20

3
6

5

4

2

1

7

2

8

14

16

12

11

13

4

14

14

15

17

18

9

10

6

28

21

9

19

20

42

21

41

30
27

22

26

22

23

29

31

2522

27 26

24

39

22 22

22

22

32

31

31
32

32

32

33

38

38

38

38

40

3736

34

FD

H
O

R
G

B

V
ER

T
G

B

1
'-6

"

L
H
D

C
P

M
IR

1
'-3

"PTD
HDCP

FD

H
O

R
G

B

V
ER

T
G

B

1
'-6

"

L
H
D

C
P

M
IR

1
'-3

" PTD
HDCP

S

W
C

H
D

C
P

W
C

H
D

C
P

FD

1
'-4

"
9
'-2

"

1
1
'-4

"
9
'-6

"

FD
L

H
D

C
P

S

1
A4.0

2
A4.0

4
A4.0

NOTE: REMODELED AREA AND
NEW CONSTRUCTION SHOWN
SHADED

3B
A4.0

7'-8"22'-0"

COPIER

1
A6.0

4
A6.0

5
A6.0

5
'-4

"
3
'-4

"
8
'-0

"
7
'-4

"
8
'-0

"
3
'-4

"
4
'-8

"
7
'-4

"

2
'-9
"±

VINYL TILE FLOORING CARPET FLOORING

WC
HDCP

L
HDCP

2
A6.0

2 1/2" 18'-9 1/2" 5'-5" 12'-4" 1'-4"

FD
L

H
D

C
P

6
A6.0

10
A6.0

11
A6.0

9A
A6.0

S

S

13
A6.0

12
A6.0

14
A6.0

TOILET
A117

EX CLASSROOM
A118

KINDERGARTEN
A115

CORR
A114

VESTIBULE
A100

MAIL/COPIER
A104

OFFICE MANAGER
A103

PRINCIPAL
A106

COTS
A109

OFFICE
A107

CONFERENCE
A108

TOILET
A110

NURSE
A111

ADMIN OFFICE
A101

CORR
A105

CORR
A112

CORR
A113

TOILET
A116

A117

A116

A115B

A
1
1
5
A

A101B

A
1
0
1
A

A100AA100B

W1

W1

W2

W1

W2

A
1
0
8

A106

A107

A109B

A109A A110

7
A6.0

8
A6.0

7
'-0

"

13'-8"1'-0" 14'-4"

1'-0"

1

1A

2

1

121

2

1

1

1

6

1

3
A6.0

5
A4.0

2B
A4.1

2
A4.0

16
A6.0

EW
C

H
D

C
P

EW
C

W
C

H
D

C
P

W
C

H
D

C
P

108'-7"
CLG ELE

108'-7"
CLG ELE

108'-6"
CLG ELE

108'-7"
CLG ELE

5

4

4
A4.1

5
A4.1

A
1
1
9
B

A
1
1
9
A

6
A4.1

6'-9"
8"

8
'-4

"
9
'-3

"
1
1
'-5

 1
/2

"+
1
9
'-2

"

1
1
'-7

"
1
5
'-5

"
9
'-5

"
1
2
'-2

"

7'-7"11'-2 1/2"

4
'-3

"

1
'-4

"

10'-0" R

6'-
0"

R7'-2" 2'-0" 7'-4 1/2"

7
'-6

 1
/2

"

3

SB BY OWNERPS

1

8
'-0

"

108'-7"
CLG ELE

2'-0"

10'-0" ±

4'-0"

3'-8"
4"

1B
A4.1

6
A4.0

7
A4.0

7
A7.0

4
A7.03

A7.0

12
A3.0

30
A3.0

VEST
A119

CORR
A120

1

7

7

9C
A6.0

6
' T

B

6
 1

/2
" C

LE
A
R
 F

V

1'-4"
4'-0"

10 10

12' MB

8
' M

B

6' MB 6' MB

9B
A6.0

3B
A6.0

3B
A6.0

8
A4.0

R

Q

J

4
A2.1

3
A2.1

WAITING
A102

2
A7.0

L

A

B

A

N

I

O O

O
P

G

P

K

DD

D

DH DH

C

B

E

C

M

H

6'-0"± TYP

Z

Z

AC
AA

AB

T

S

V

U

W

W

Y
Y

X

X

EQ

6'-8"

Q

AD

P

38'-1"

6'-2 1/2"

6
'-2

 1
/2

"

1
'-4

"

AE

SIM

THIS AREA OF
WORK IS UNDER
ALTERNATE #2

SIM

30
A3.0

HANOVER-KEY PLAN

A2.1

FD

S

1'-3"

1'-6"

WC
HDCP

L
HDCP

HOR
GB

VERT
GB

MIR

PT
D

H
D

C
P 8
' M

B

North

A
 R

 C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 S

   
 R

 E
 G

 O
  +

  Y
 O

 U
 N

 G
 Q

 U
 I 

S 
T

76
01

 W
ay

za
ta

 B
ou

le
va

rd
   

Su
ite

 2
00

   
St

. L
ou

is
 P

ar
k,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

54
26

Ph
on

e:
 9

52
-5

44
-8

94
1 

  F
ax

: 9
52

-5
44

-0
58

5 
  a

ry
ar

ch
.c

om

Revised

Checked by
Date

Drawn by

I h
er

eb
y 

ce
rti

fy
 th

at
 th

is
 p

la
n 

w
as

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

m
e 

or
 u

nd
er

 m
y 

di
re

ct
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
th

at
 I 

am
 a

 d
ul

y
Li

ce
ns

ed
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
la

w
s

of
 th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 M

in
ne

so
ta

.

Sheet Title

C
om

m
is

si
on

 N
um

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Sheet Number

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

N
um

be
r

20
15

H
A

N
O

V
ER

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

IS
D

 #
87

7 
   

 H
an

ov
er

, M
N

20
52

02/09/15
00/00/00

PA
U

L 
Y

O
U

N
G

Q
U

IS
T

 1
30

31

A2.1

DRL

DEMOLITION
ADDITION AND
ALTERATION
FLOOR PLANS
AND NOTES

...BR

2 ADDITION AND ALTERATION PLAN
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"1 DEMOLITION PLAN

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

3 ENLARGED TOILET PLAN
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

ENLARGED TOILET PLAN GENERAL NOTES:

1. SEE 1/8" SCALE PLANS FOR WALL TYPES.
2. SOLID PLASTIC PARTITIONS TYPICAL ( SECTION 10 01 00).
3. ALL WATER CLOSETS AND URINALS TO BE CENTERED BETWEEN

PARTITIONS - UNO.
4. ALL PAPER TOWEL DISPENSERS (PTD) TO BE SUPPLIED BY

OWNER AND INSTALLED BY CONTRACTOR.
5. ALL SOAP DISPENSERS, SOAP HOLDERS, TOILET PAPER

HOLDERS, AND SANITARY NAPKIN DISPOSALS (NOT SHOWN)
TO BE SUPPLIED BY OWNER AND INSTALLED BY CONTRACTOR.

6. ALL FLOOR DRAINS ARE 1" BELOW FFE - UNO.

4 ENLARGED TOILET PLAN
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

GENERAL NOTES:

1. SEE SHEET A2.1 FOR GENERAL NOTES.
2. SEE SHEET A2.0 FOR WALL TYPES.

PLAN NOTES: LETTERS SHOWN IN CIRCLES ON PLAN

A. RELOCATED LIGHT - SEE ELECTRICAL
B. NEW CONCRETE SIDEWALK WITH CONTROL JOINTS - SEE CIVIL
C. COLUMN FOR CANOPY ABOVE CANOPY
D. LOCATION OF CARD ACCESS
E. OUTLINE OF KALWALL CANOPY ABOVE - SEE 3/A8.0
F. CONCRETE STOOP - SEE STRUCTURAL.
G. EQUIPMENT, FILES OR FURNITURE BY OWNER. NO WORK BY

CONTRACTOR.
H. POWER DOOR ACTUATOR. SEE DIVISION 26 AND SECTION

08 7000.
I. ELECTRIC WATER COOLERS. SEE DIVISION 22.
J. FLOOR DRAIN. DO NOT SLOPE FLOOR IN EXISTING AREA. SLOPE

FLOOR 1" FOR NEW TOILET A110.  COORDINATE LOCATION
WITH MECHANICAL UNITS

K. FIN TUBE RADIATION. SEE DIVISION 22.
L. HOSE BIB. SEE DIVISION 22.
M. NEW FLAG POLE SEE 39/A6.0
N. CURTAIN AND TRACK (4 EQUAL SPACES)
O. SOFFIT ABOVE SEE DETAIL 5/A7.0
P. PARTIAL HEIGHT WALL
Q. CEILING HUNG PROJECTOR - SEE ELECTRICAL
R. PLANT NEW GRASS BLEND INTO EXISTING
S. 20' X 16' CARPET AREA
T. PAINT EXISTING/NEW HOLLOW METAL FRAME
U. NEW FLOORING, PAINT AND CEILING AND BASE SEE (RFS) A3.0
V. FILL-IN WALL WITH MATCHING CMU AND BRICK.  USE

SALVAGED BRICK FROM EXISTING EXTERIOR BRICK PIERS -
TOOTH-IN AND MATCH EXISTING COURSING

W. FILL-IN WALL WITH MATCHING MATERIAL, PAINT AND PROVIDE
NEW RUBBER BASE THIS WALL

X. PATCH IN MATCHING FLOORING AND CEILING
Y. PAINT AND NEW BASE THIS WALL
Z. NEW 2 X 2 LAY-IN CEILING TILE AND GRID LOWERED 7"+- TO

108'-7"+- ALIGN/BLEND WITH EXISTING CEILING AND GRIDS -
SEE ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL SHEETS FOR LOWERING OF
FIXTURES

AA. MATCH WIDTH OF EXISTING EXTERIOR WALL
AB. PATCH IN FLOORING AND CEILING TO MATCH EXISTING
AC. ALL CONSTRUCTION AT VESTIBULE A119 IS UNDER ALTERNATE

#2
AD. REPLACE EXISTING WIRE GLASS WITH NEW TACK BOARD

PANELS - SEE FRAME ELEVATION 'F' ON SHEET A3.0
AE. NEW 16" CMU

A

GENERAL FLOOR PLAN NOTES: ALL PLAN SHEETS

1. THE ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS SHOW PRINCIPAL AREAS AND
LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION WHERE WORK MUST BE
ACCOMPLISHED UNDER THIS CONTRACT. INCIDENTAL WORK
MAY BE NECESSARY IN AREAS NOT SHOWN ON THE
ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS DUE TO CHANGES AFFECTING
ELECTRICAL, MECHANICAL, AND PLUMBING ALONG WITH
OTHER SYSTEMS. THIS INCIDENTAL WORK SHALL BE PART OF
THIS CONTRACT, AND ALL TRADES SHALL INSPECT THESE
AREAS, ASCERTAIN WORK REQUIRED AND DO THE WORK IN
ACCORDANCE OF THE CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS AT NO
ADDITIONAL COST.

2. CONTRACTORS SHALL VISIT THE SITE DURING BIDDING TO
BECOME FAMILIAR WITH THE EXISTING CONDITIONS. THE
GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE, INSPECT AND FIELD
VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS, DIMENSIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO DEMOLITION AND CONSTRUCTION.
NOTIFY ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

3. DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS. NOTIFY ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY
OF ANY DISCEPANCIES.

4. WHEREVER OPENINGS ARE CUT THROUGH FIRE RATED
PARTITIONS, IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
CONTRACTOR FOR WHOM THE HOLE IS CUT TO PATCH AND
REPAIR ANY OPENING TO MAINTAIN THE INTEGRITY OF THE
FIRE RATING.

5. GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO CHECK MECHANICAL DRAWINGS
FOR EXISTING PIPES AND DUCTS FURRED IN WALLS. VERIFY
SIZE AND LOCATION WITH MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR PRIOR
TO PROCEEDING WITH ALTERATIONS.

6. SEE SHEET A2.0 FOR WALL TYPES.
7. ALL WALLS TO STRUCTURE ABOVE - UNO.
8. SEE MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, AND STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL DEMO AND CONSTRUCTION NOTES.
9. DIMENSION TO GRID LINES, NOMINAL MASONRY, CENTER OF

STRUCTURAL STEEL, CENTER OF METAL STUD WALLS, OR
FACE OF STUD AT FURRING - UNO.

10. SEE DETAIL 2/A2.0 FOR TYPICAL INTERIOR HM FRAME
LOCATION. SEE DETAIL 3/A2.0 FOR TYPICAL ADA DOOR
CLEARANCE.

11. PROVIDE BRACING IN ALL NEW WALLS FOR EXISTING AND NEW
CABINETS SUPPORTS.

12. SEE A6.0 FOR TYPICAL, MISCELLANEOUS FLOOR
TRANSITIONS, RECESSED LIGHT FIXTURES, AND CONTROL
JOINTS AND OTHER DETAILS.

13. ALL CMU EDGES AND CORNERS TO HAVE BULL NOSE
14. ALL SOAP DISPENSERS, SOAP HOLDERS, TO BE SUPPLIED BY

OWNER AND INSTALLED BY CONTRACTOR.
15. ALL PAPER TOWEL DISPENSERS (PTD) TO BE SUPPLIED BY

OWNER AND INSTALLED BY CONTRACTOR.
16. PROVIDE BRACING IN ALL NEW WALLS FOR EXISTING AND NEW

CABINETS SUPPORTS.
17. NEW ELECTRIC STRIKES AND LOCKS INSTALLED ON NEW AND

EXISTING DOORS AT ENTRANCES AS NOTED.  SEE HARDWARE
SPECIFICATION AND ELECTRICAL SHEETS.

GENERAL DEMOLITION NOTES:

1. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO VISIT THE SITE AND FIELD
VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS.

2. ALL DISCONNECTS BY DIVISIONS 22, 23, AND 26.
3. SEE MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR RELATED

DEMOLITION AND PREP WORK.
4. CONTRACTORS SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATION WITH ALL

TRADES FOR THE DEMOLITION ON THESE PROJECTS.
5. DASHED LINES INDICATE ITEMS TO BE REMOVED/SALVAGED SUCH AS

WALLS, CABINETS, ETC.  SOLID LINES INDICATE ITEMS TO REMAIN SUCH
AS WALLS, ETC.

6. ALL CUTTING TO START AND END AT EXISTING COURSING

DEMO NOTES: NUMBERS SHOWN IN SQUARES ON PLAN

1. DEMO EXTERIOR HOSE BIB SEE MECHANICAL
2. DEMO EXTERIOR LIGHT AND SALVAGE FOR REUSE
3. DEMO BOLLARD
4. DEMO CONCRETE STOOP DOWN TO FOOTING SEE

3A/A4.0
5. REMOVE DOOR, HARDWARE, FRAME AND THRESHOLD -

PREP FOR NEW FRAME AND FLOORING
6. DEMO SIDEWALK - SEE CIVIL
7. DEMO SPLASH BLOCK
8. EXISTING RAIN LEADER - SEE MECHANICAL
9. DEMO EXISTING STONE AND ALL LANDSCAPING
10. DEMO FLAG POLE, BASE AND FOOTING
11. DEMO EXISTING WINDOWS
12. DEMO EXISTING SILL/WALL BELOW WINDOWS TO FLOOR -

PREP FOR NEW DOOR/WINDOW FRAME
13. DEMO EXISTING CEILING/ROOF SYSTEM
14. DEMO EXISTING ENTRANCE DOORS/FRAME, THRESHOLD -

SALVAGE ALL POWER DOOR OPERATORS AND
ACCESSORIES FOR REUSE

15. DEMO EXISTING BRICK PIERS DOWN TO FOOTING -
SALVAGE BRICK FOR REUSE

16. DEMO COUNTER AND GLASS SLIDING WINDOW SYSTEM
17. DEMO EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB UP TO EXTERIOR DOORS
18. DEMO EXISTING CANOPY IN ITS ENTIRETY - SEE DETAILS

1A, 2A AND 3/A4.1
19. DEMO EXISTING GRASS/SUB SOIL AND PREP FOR NEW

CONCRETE SIDEWALK - SEE CIVIL
20. ANY DAMAGE TO REMAINING EXISTING CONCRETE

SIDEWALKS/CURBS/DRIVEWAY DURING CONSTRUCTION
WILL BE REPAIRED AT CONTRACTORS COST

21. DEMO EXISTING CEILING TILE/GRID - PREP FOR NEW
CEILING TILE/GRID AT ELEVATION 108'-7"+- TO MATCH
ALIGN AND BLEND INTO EXISTING CEILING GRIDS - SEE
ELECTRICAL/MECHANICAL SHEETS FOR OTHER DEMO
ITEMS

22. OUTLINE OF DOOR(S), FRAME, AND HARDWARE TO BE
REMOVED. SALVAGE HARDWARE TO OWNER.

23. REMOVE DOOR(S) AND HARDWARE. FRAME TO REMAIN.
SALVAGE HARDWARE TO OWNER.

24. OUTLINE OF MASONRY WALLS AS SHOWN TO DECK (TYP).
FILL, GRIND CONCRETE FLOOR SMOOTH AND PATCH TO
MATCH EXISTING FINISH MATERIAL.  TYPICAL FOR ENTIRE
AREA SHOWN DASHED. SEE MECHANICAL, PLUMBING AND
ELECTRICAL SHEETS FOR ALL RELATED DEMOLITION.

25. DEMO DEMOUNTABLE WALLS AS SHOWN. TYPICAL FOR
ENTIRE AREA SHOWN DASHED.  SEE MECHANICAL,
PLUMBING AND ELECTRICAL SHEETS FOR ALL RELATED
DEMOLITION.

26. DEMO ALL CASEWORK/COUNTERS TYPICAL FOR ENTIRE
AREA SHOWN DASHED

27. SINK AND ALL RELATED PLUMBING TO BE REMOVED BY
DIVISION 22. SEE MECHANICAL FOR EXTENT OF WORK
AND LOCATION.

28. DEMO CEILING IN ITS ENTIRETY. LIGHTS TO BE REMOVED
BY DIVISION 26. STRUCTURE TO BE EXPOSED FOR NEW
DUCTWORK INSTALLATION. TYPICAL FOR ENTIRE AREA
SHOWN DASHED SEE MECHANICAL, PLUMBING AND
ELECTRICAL SHEETS FOR ALL RELATED DEMOLITION

29. ACB TILE AND GRID TO REMAIN.
30. CUT AND REMOVE EXISTING DOOR, HARDWARE AND HM

DOOR FRAME - SEE FRAME ELEVATION 'F' ON SHEET A3.0
31. ANY ASBESTOS FOUND ON THIS PROJECT TO BE

REMOVED AND DISPOSED OF BY OWNERS ABATEMENT
COMPANY.

32. REMOVE EXISTING CARPET, VINYL TILE AND BASE. PATCH,
FILL AND GRIND CONCRETE SMOOTH FOR NEW FINISHES.
TYPICAL FOR ENTIRE AREA SHOWN DASHED

33. REMOVE MARKER AND TACK BOARDS.  PREPARE
REMAINING WALL SURFACES BY FILLING, PATCHING AND
GRINDING SMOOTH FOR NEW FINISHES.  SALVAGE
MARKER BOARDS TO OWNER IF IN GOOD CONDITION.

34. DEMO FLOORING, BASE, AND CEILING AS REQUIRED FOR
NEW WALL.  SALVAGE TACK BOARD AND STRIP FOR
REUSE.  COORDINATE WITH MECHANICAL

35. NOT USED
36. MECHANICAL DEMO WORK SEE MECHANICAL SHEETS
37. ELECTRICAL DEMO WORK SEE ELECTRICAL SHEETS.
38. GC TO FILL IN AREAS SHOWN HATCHED WITH CONCRETE -

BLEND INTO AND ALIGN WITH TOP OF EXISTING CONCRETE
SLAB - SEE MECHANICAL SHEETS FOR AREAS REMOVED
BY THEIR DIVISION

39. DEMO ALL TOILET FIXTURES AND PLUMBING, MIRRORS,
GRAB BARS ETC IN THESE AREAS

40. CUT/DEMO EXISTING CMU WALL AND PREPARE ALL
SURFACES FOR NEW CONSTRUCTION

41. DEMO (SHOWN DASHED) BOTH SETS OF EXISTING
ENTRANCE DOORS, FRAME, THRESHOLD, HARDWARE,
SEAT, WALL, PLASTER CEILING, CONCRETE CURBS, AND
(3) LOCKERS INCLUDING TOPS.  PATCH IN ALL SURFACES
TO MATCH EXISTING AND PREP ALL SURFACES FOR NEW
CONSTRUCTION.  THIS IS UNDER ALTERNATE #2

1

130



NOTE: SEE SCHEDULE FOR GLASS

6"6"

FLOOR
LINE

8" 9"

SEE SCH

3
'-6

"
2
'-1

0
"

8
"

S
EE

 S
C
H
ED

U
LE

SEE SCH

8
"

2
'-1

0
"

8
"

2
'-0

"
1
0
"

SEE SCH

2
"

S
EE

 S
C
H
ED

U
LE

2"

SEE SCH

DOOR TYPES
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

DOOR FRAMES
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

1 2 3

A
2"

4
"

S
EE

 S
C
H
ED

U
LE

2"

SEE SCH
B

2"

S
EE

 S
C
H
ED

U
LE

4
"

D
EQ SEE SCH

4"4"

12'-0" ±
FIELD VERIFY

1
'-0

"
2
'-0

"
4
"

3
'-8

"

2"2"

EQ

FLOOR
LINE

NOTE: SEE SCHEDULE FOR GLASS

DOOR FRAMES
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

EX
IS

TI
N
G

2
"

F
2"2"

15'-4" ±

2"

34 1/2"34 1/2"

2"

32 1/2"

4"

32 1/2"

2"

36"

NOTE: WELD MATCHING NEW VERTICAL MULL
REMOVE EXISTING WIRE GLASS AND REPLACE
WITH NEW 3/4" FIRE TREATED PLYWOOD
AND COVER WITH NEW TACK SURFACE
WITH BACKER BOARD PANELS BOTH SIDES (10 11 00)

2
 3

/4
" 2
'-0

"
2
"

4
'-6
"±

REMOVE EXISTING DOOR FRAME AND PROVIDE NEW
DOOR FRAME WELD AND GRIND SMOOTH

NOTE: INTENT IS TO CHANGE DOOR SWING - PROVIDE A 2"
RABBET ON CORRIDOR SIDE TO ALLOW FOR A 1 3/4" DOOR
PROVIDE EQUAL RABBETS

NOTE: PREP AND
PAINT ENTIRE FRAME

12'-0" EXIST FRAME TO REMAIN 3'-4"
REMOVE

14
A3.0

15
A3.0

FI
EL

D
 V

ER
IF

Y

S
EE

 S
C
H
ED

U
LE

2
"

G
SEE SCH

2"2"2"2"

8'-0" ±
FIELD VERIFY

1
'-0

"
2
'-0

"
4
"

3
'-8

"

SEE SCH8"

ALL EXISTING METAL FACE PANELS PREP AS REQUIRED FOR NEW PAINT

S
EE

 S
C
H
ED

U
LE

4
"

C
EQ EQ SEE SCH

2"2"2"2"

8'-4" ±
FIELD VERIFY

1
0
"

2
'-2

"
4
"

3
'-8

"

CARD
ACCESS

ACTUATOR

CARD
ACCESS
BOTH
SIDES

S
EE

 S
C
H
ED

U
LE

4
"

E
2"2"

7'-6"

2"

SEE SCHSEE SCH

NOTE: SEE SCHEDULE FOR GLASS

CARD
ACCESS

CARD
ACCESS

GLASS TO
REMAIN IN
THIS FRAME

6
A3.0

13
A3.0

5 3/4"

2
"

1/2"

8" NOM
OR THICKER

SEE PLAN

8" NOM
OR THICKER

SEE PLAN

NOTE:
AT 6" STUD WALLS
PROVIDE 9" HM FRAME

1/2"

5 3/4"

6 3/4"

5 5/8"

5 5/8"

6 3/4"

2
"

NOTE:
AT 6" STUD WALLS PROVIDE
9" HM FRAME

6 TACK BOARD DETAIL
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"4 HM HEAD @ CMU WALL

SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0" 9 HM HEAD @ STUD WALL
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

5 HM JAMB @ CMU WALL
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0" 10 HM JAMB @ STUD WALL

SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

5 3/4"

8" NOM
OR THICKER

SEE PLAN

2
"

VARIES

5 3/4"

11 HM HEAD @ CMU/FURRING
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

12 HM JAMB @ CMU/FURRING
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

04 20 00.C

07 90 00.A
BOTH SIDES

12 GA REINF @
SPANS OF 48"
OR GREATER

DOOR OR BL
(SEE ELEV)

09 29 00.K
09 29 00.B
07 21 00.C

07 90 00.A
BOTH SIDES

12 GA REINF @
SPANS OF 48"
OR GREATER

DOOR OR BL
(SEE ELEV)

METAL STUD
HEADER

09 29 00.K
09 29 00.B
07 21 00.C

DOOR OR BL
(SEE ELEV)

07 90 00.A
BOTH SIDES

WALL ANCHOR
- PROVIDE AS
SPECIFIED

07 90 00.A
BOTH SIDES

DOOR OR BL
(SEE ELEV)

WALL ANCHOR
- PROVIDE AS
SPECIFIED

CONCRETE
BLOCK -
GROUT SOLID
@ LINTEL BRG

BULLNOSE
CORNER

09 29 00.J
09 29 00.C
07 21 00.C

DOOR OR BL
(SEE ELEV)

WALL ANCHOR
- PROVIDE AS
SPECIFIED

AT NEW CONCRETE
BLOCK - GROUT
SOLID @ LINTEL
BRG

BULLNOSE
CORNER

07 90 00.A
BOTH SIDES

09 29 00.O

5 3/4"
OR 6 3/4"

2
" O

R
 4

" S
EE

 E
LE

V

5 3/4"" OR
6 3/4"

CLIP TO CONCRETE SLAB @
BOTTOM OF VERTICAL MULLION

S
EE

EL
EV

8 INTERIOR HM SILL
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

7 HM MULLION/MUNTIN
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

12 GA REINF @
SPANS OF 48"
OR GREATER

DOOR OR BL
(SEE ELEV)

GLASS @ BL

07 9000.A
BOTH SIDES

GLASS @ HM
FRAME

PROVIDE
ROUGH BUCK
AND ANCHOR
AS REQD

5 3/4"

GROUT FULL

DOOR OR BL
(SEE ELEV)

07 9000.A -
BOTH SIDES

MATCH
EXIST

15 JAMB DETAIL @ EXISTING WALLS
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0"

WELD AND GRIND
SMOOTH BOTH SIDES

14 HM JAMB DETAIL AT EXISTING
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

THERE MAYBE AN
EXISTING STEEL TUBE

MATCH
EXISTING

2
"

13 HEAD @ EXISTING WALL WITH LINTEL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0"

07 9000.A -
BOTH SIDES

ANCHOR INTO
EXISTING WALL
AS REQUIRED

EXISTING FRAME

NEW FRAME

ANCHOR TO STEEL
TUBE

ANCHOR INTO
EXISTING WALL
AS REQUIRED

CORRIDOR SIDE

PROVIDE EQUAL RABBETS

STUD SIZE VARIES-SEE
WALL TYPE 2, 7 & 9
SEE PLAN DETAIL X/X.X

STUD SIZE VARIES-SEE
WALL TYPE 2, 7 & 9
SEE PLAN DETAIL X/X.X

2
"

8" NOM
OR THICKER

SEE PLAN

VARIES

NEW OR EXIST
04 20 00.C

07 90 00.A
BOTH SIDES

12 GA REINF @
SPANS OF 48"
OR GREATER

DOOR OR BL
(SEE ELEV)

METAL STUD
HEADER
09 29 00.O

09 29 00.J
09 29 00.C
07 21 00.C

2
"

5 3/4"

EXIST HM

EXTENDED STOPS
BOTH SIDES

EXIST PANEL TO
REMAIN

3/4" FIRETREATED
PLYWOOD

CLIP ANGLE

1/4" CORK ON 1/2"
GYP BD BOTH SIDES

FLOOR
LINE

ALUMINUM WINDOW ELEVATIONS
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

2
'-8

"
4
'-8

"

7
'-4

"

3'-4"

2
'-8

"
4
'-8

"

7
'-4

"

3'-5"

W1

3'-5"
2" 2"2"

W2

2
'-8

"
6
'-4

"

9
'-0

"

3'-5" FV

W3

FIELD VERIFY ALL OPENINGS BEFORE MANUFACTURING

SEE PLAN

SEE PLAN

3" 4 1/2"

4 1/2"3"

NOTE: FILL ALL FRAMES (JAMB,
SILL AND HEAD) WITH FOAM
INSULATION. (TYP)

SEE PLAN

3" 4 1/2"

M
O

 V
A
R
IE

S
S
EE

 E
LE

V
A
TI

O
N
S

26 WDW HEAD @ EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" 4250

28 WDW JAMB @ EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" 4250

29 WDW SILL @ EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" 4250

SEE EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS FOR

MASONRY TYPE

04 20 00.K

07 90 00.A&B BOTH
SIDES BY 08 51 00

1" X 4" ALUM TRIM BY
08 51 00

08 51 00.A
W/INSULATED GLAZING
& INTEGRAL BLINDS

04 20 00.C

SEE EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS FOR

MASONRY TYPE

07 90 00.A&B BOTH
SIDES BY 08 51 00

06 20 00.D
ANCHORS BY 08 51 00
(TYP) HEAD, JAMB & SILL

1" X 4" ALUM TRIM BY
08 51 00

08 51 00.A
W/INSULATED GLAZING
& INTEGRAL BLINDS

CONCRETE BLOCK -
GROUT SOLID @
LINTEL BEARING

SEE EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS FOR

MASONRY TYPE

07 90 00.A

0.125" EXTRUDED
ALUMINUM SILL AND

FASTENER BY
08 51 00

08 51 00.A
W/INSULATED GLAZING
& INTEGRAL BLINDS

1" X 4" ALUM TRIM BY
08 51 00

ROUTE SILL AT
ANCHORS. ANCHORS
BY 08 51 00

06 20 00.D

SOLID SURFACE STOOL W/
EASED EDGES IN 1/8" BED OF
SILICON ADHESIVE

04 20 00.B

SEE PLAN

3" 4 1/2"

27 WDW HEAD @ EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" 4250

SEE EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS FOR

MASONRY TYPE

07 90 00.A&B BOTH
SIDES BY 08 51 00

1" X 4" ALUM TRIM BY
08 51 00

08 51 00.A
W/INSULATED GLAZING
& INTEGRAL BLINDS

05 10 00.B&C

04 20 00.B

05 10 00.A

INCLUDE FLASHING
OVER TOP OF ANGLE

SEE PLAN

04 20 00.G - EXPOSE
FLASHING

04 20 00.K

04 20 00.G - EXPOSE
FLASHING

EXTEND FLASHING
OVER BEAM

NOTE: FILL ALL FRAMES (JAMB,
SILL AND HEAD) WITH FOAM
INSULATION. (TYP)

NOTE: FILL ALL FRAMES (JAMB,
SILL AND HEAD) WITH FOAM
INSULATION. (TYP)

NOTE: FILL ALL FRAMES (JAMB,
SILL AND HEAD) WITH FOAM
INSULATION. (TYP)

NOTE: MATCH EXISTING 2004
ADDITION BRICK DESIGN AND
ALIGN WITH COURSING. (TYP)

24
TYPICAL
EXTERIOR THRESHOLD
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" T-14650

SEE PLAN

SLOPE AWAY

3"

4"

22
A3.0

03 30 00.B

04 20 00.C

EXTEND RFM TRIM
UNDER THRESHOLD

ALUMINUM THRESHOLD
- SHIM SOLID BELOW

10 01 00.A  - SEE
ROOM FINISH
SCHEDULE

FACE OF WALL

FACE OF DOOR
08 40 10.A

(1") 07 21 00.A

03 30 00.D

6 1/4" OR
6 1/2"

6 1/2"

6 1/2"

25 MULLIONS ALUMINUM ENTRANCE/STOREFRONT
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0"

HORIZONTAL MULLION

2
"

2
"

08 40 10.A W/
INSULATED GLAZING &
THERMAL FRAME

6 1/2"

VERTICAL MULLION

2
"

08 40 10.A W/
INSULATED GLAZING &
THERMAL FRAME

18 HEAD @ EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0"

SEE PLAN

3" 6 1/2"

T-14650

19
ALUM DOOR
JAMB @ EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" T-14650

SEE EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS FOR

MASONRY TYPE

07 90 00.A&B BOTH
SIDES BY 08 40 10

08 40 10.A
W/INSULATED GLAZING

05 10 00.B&C

04 20 10.A

SHIM AS NECESSARY
BY 08 40 10

04 20 00.K

04 20 00.G - EXPOSE
FLASHING

EXTEND FLASHING
OVER BEAM

20
ALUM DOOR
JAMB @ CMU WALL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" T-14650

2
"

8" NOM
OR THICKER

SEE PLAN

07 90 00.A & B BOTH
SIDES BY 08 40 10.A

SHIM AS REQUIRED BY
08 40 10.A

08 40 10.A

ANCHOR AS SPECIFIED BY
08 40 10.A

CONCRETE BLOCK - GROUT
SOLID @ LINTEL BRG

BULLNOSE
CORNER

8" NOM
OR THICKER

SEE PLAN

05 10 00.B&C

07 90 00.A&B BOTH SIDES
BY 08 40 10

08 40 10.A W/
INSULATED GLAZING

04 20 00.B

SEE PLAN

6 1/2"3"

NOTE: FILL ALL FRAMES (JAMB, SILL AND HEAD) WITH FOAM INSULATION. (TYP)

SEE EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS FOR

MASONRY TYPE

06 20 00.D

07 90 00.A&B BOTH
SIDES BY 08 40 10

SHIM AS NECESSARY
BY 08 40 10

08 40 10.A

CONCRETE BLOCK -
GROUT SOLID @
LINTEL BEARING

16
ALUM ENTRANCE FRAME
HEAD @ CMU WALL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" T-14650

SHIM AS REQUIRED BY
08 40 10.A

6 1/2"

6 1/2"

USE AT ALL EXTERIOR HM FRAMES

21
HM EXTERIOR DOOR
BUTT REINFORCING
SCALE: 6" = 1'-0"

PL 1 1/2" X 3/16" X 9"  & 1 1/2"
X 1 1/2" X 3/16"  X 6' 8 "
LONG ANGLE WELDED TO
BOTH FACES OF FRAME-DRILL
AND TAP AS REQUIRED PER
BUTT TEMPLATE

BUTT

SHIM AS
REQUIRED TO
SET FLUSH

22
EXTERIOR DOOR
THRESHOLD DETAIL
SCALE: 6" = 1'-0"

8137 BAR 2

WELD
NUMBERS BY NATIONAL GUARD. CUT AND WELD AS
REQUIRED TO FLUSH OUT WITH DOOR FRAMES BY
MANUFACTURER.

BAR 2

DOOR

DOOR SWEEP

OUTLINE OF DOOR
FRAME BEYOND

8147 RIPPED
TO 5 3/4"

23
INTERIOR DOOR
THRESHOLD DETAIL
SCALE: 6" = 1'-0"

8137BAR 2

WELD
NUMBERS BY NATIONAL GUARD. CUT AND WELD AS
REQUIRED TO FLUSH OUT WITH DOOR FRAMES BY

MANUFACTURER.

BAR 2

DOOROUTLINE OF DOOR
FRAME BEYOND

8147 RIPPED
TO 5 3/4"

RECESSED FLOOR MAT
& TRIM BY 10 01 00

RECESSED FLOOR MAT
& TRIM BY 10 01 00

17BWDW SILL @ EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" 4250

SEE PLAN

3" 4 1/2"

17AWDW HEAD @ EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" 4250

SEE EXTERIOR
ELEVATION 9/A4.0 FOR

MASONRY TYPE

07 90 00.A&B BOTH
SIDES BY 08 51 00

1" X 4" ALUM TRIM BY
08 51 00

08 51 00.A
W/INSULATED GLAZING
& INTEGRAL BLINDS

05 10 00.B&C

04 20 00.B

04 20 00.K

04 20 00.G - EXPOSE
FLASHING

EXTEND FLASHING
OVER BEAM

NOTE: FILL ALL FRAMES (JAMB,
SILL AND HEAD) WITH FOAM
INSULATION. (TYP)

SEE PLAN

SEE PLAN

SEE 9/A4.0 FOR EXTERIOR
ELEVATION SHOWING
MASONRY TYPE

ANGLE ROWLOCK BRICK
SILL-USE EPOXY MORTAR

CUT .125" ALUMINUM SILL
TO PROFILE OF CURVED
WALL BELOW - SET BACK 1"
FROM WALL EDGE BY
08 51 00

08 51 00.A
W/INSULATED GLAZING

& INTEGRAL BLINDS

1" X 4" ALUM TRIM BY
08 51 00

ROUTE SILL AT
ANCHORS. ANCHORS

BY 08 51 00

06 20 00.D

SOLID SURFACE STOOL W/
EASED EDGES IN 1/8" BED OF

SILICON ADHESIVE

04 20 00.B NOTE: FILL ALL FRAMES (JAMB,
SILL AND HEAD) WITH FOAM

INSULATION. (TYP)
NOTE: MATCH EXISTING 2004
ADDITION BRICK DESIGN AND
ALIGN WITH COURSING. (TYP)

M
O

 V
A
R
IE

S
S
EE

 E
LE

V
A
TI

O
N
S

NOTE: FOR MORE NOTES SEE
DETAILS 2, 3 & 4/A7.0

DOOR OR BL
(SEE ELEV)

07 9000.A & B
ANCHOR INTO
EXISTING WALL
AS REQUIRED

EXIST CMU WALL

6 3/4"

1/2"

07 90 00.A & B
BOTH SIDES

SEE WALL TYPE 7

30 HM JAMB DETAIL AT EXISTING
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

North

A
 R

 C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 S

   
 R

 E
 G

 O
  +

  Y
 O

 U
 N

 G
 Q

 U
 I 

S 
T

76
01

 W
ay

za
ta

 B
ou

le
va

rd
   

Su
ite

 2
00

   
St

. L
ou

is
 P

ar
k,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

54
26

Ph
on

e:
 9

52
-5

44
-8

94
1 

  F
ax

: 9
52

-5
44

-0
58

5 
  a

ry
ar

ch
.c

om

Revised

Checked by
Date

Drawn by

I h
er

eb
y 

ce
rti

fy
 th

at
 th

is
 p

la
n 

w
as

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

m
e 

or
 u

nd
er

 m
y 

di
re

ct
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
th

at
 I 

am
 a

 d
ul

y
Li

ce
ns

ed
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
la

w
s

of
 th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 M

in
ne

so
ta

.

Sheet Title

C
om

m
is

si
on

 N
um

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Sheet Number

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

N
um

be
r

20
15

H
A

N
O

V
ER

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

IS
D

 #
87

7 
   

 H
an

ov
er

, M
N

20
52

02/09/15
00/00/00

PA
U

L 
Y

O
U

N
G

Q
U

IS
T

 1
30

31

A3.0

DRL

OPENING AND
ROOM FINISH
SCHEDULES,
DOOR AND
FRAME
ELEVATIONS,
ALUMINUM
DOOR/FRAME
AND WINDOW
ELEVATIONS
AND DETAILS

BR

AREA - HANOVER ELEMENTARY ADDITION AND ALTERATION

OPENING SCHEDULE
DOOR OR BORROWED LITE FRAME RATING DETAILS ON SHEET A3.0 HARDWARE NOTES

OPENING TYPE GLASS TYPE SIZE MATL TYPE MATL (MINUTES) HEAD JAMB SILL THRESHOLD SET
A100A 1 1" INSUL TEMP (2) 3'-6" X 7 ALUM E ALUM ~ 18 20 ~ 24 01 A, B

A100B 1 1/4" TEMP (2) 3'-6" X 7 ALUM E ALUM ~ 16 20 ~ 22 SIM 02 A, B

A101A 1 1/4" TEMP 3 X 7 WD C HM ~ 11 12 8 ~ 03 A, B

A101B 1 1/4" TEMP 3 X 7 WD D HM ~ 11 SIM 12 SIM 8 ~ 10 A, B

A106 3 1/4" TEMP 3 X 7 WD A HM ~ 9 10 ~ ~ 07
A107 3 1/4" TEMP 3 X 7 WD A HM ~ 9 10 ~ ~ 07

A108 3 1/4" TEMP 3 X 7 WD A HM ~ 9 10 ~ ~ 07

A109A 3 1/4" TEMP 3 X 7 WD B HM ~ 11 SIM 12 SIM ~ ~ 09 B
A109B 2 ~ 3 X 7 WD A HM ~ 9 10 ~ ~ 08

A110 2 ~ 3 X 7 WD A HM ~ 9 10 ~ ~ 06
A115A 3 1/4" TEMP 3 X 7 WD EX EX ~ EX EX ~ ~ 11 VERIFY DOOR SIZE
A115B 2 ~ 3 X 7 WD F EX/HM ~ 13 14 & 15 ~ ~ 04 VERIFY DOOR SIZE

A116 2 ~ 3 X 7 WD A HM ~ 9 10 ~ ~ 05
A117 2 ~ 3 X 7 WD B HM ~ 4 5 ~ ~ 05

A119A 1 1" INSUL TEMP (2) 3'-4" X 7 HM G HM ~ 13 15 ~ ~ 12 A, B

A119B 1 1/4" TEMP (2) 3'-4" X 7 HM G HM ~ 9 10 ~ ~ 13

A, B

A. CARD ACCESS
B. ELECTRIFIED

GENERAL NOTES:

AREA - HANOVER ELEMENTARY ADDITIONS AND ALTERATIONS
ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE

ROOM FLOOR BASE WALLS CEILINGS ROOM
NUMBER NAME MATL FINISH MATL HT MATL FINISH MATL FINISH HT NOTES

A100 VESTIBULE CONC MAT RUB 4" EX & CMU PT CMU ACB 3 ~ 8'-10" 4

A101 ADMIN OFFICE CONC CPT RUB 4" EXP/GYP PT ACB 3 ~ 8'-10" ~
A102 WAITING CONC CPT RUB 4" BLK/GYP PT ACB 3 ~ 8'-10" ~
A103 OFFICE MANAGER CONC CPT RUB 4" BLK/GYP PT ACB 3 ~ 8'-2" ~
A104 MAIL/COPIER CONC CPT RUB 4" EXP/GYP PT ACB 3 ~ 8'-2" ~
A105 CORR CONC CPT RUB 4" GYP PT ACB 3 ~ 8'-2" ~
A106 PRINCIPAL CONC CPT RUB 4" BLK/GYP PT ACB 3 ~ 8'-6" ~
A107 OFFICE CONC CPT RUB 4" BLK/GYP PT ACB 3 ~ 8'-2" ~
A108 CONFERENCE CONC CPT RUB 4" EXP/GYP PT ACB 3 ~ 8'-6" ~
A109 COTS CONC VET RUB 4" GYP PT ACB 3 ~ 8'-6" ~
A110 TOILET CONC CT CT 4" GYP CT/PT GYP PT 8' 1
A111 NURSE CONC VET RUB 4" GYP PT ACB 3 ~ 8'-6" ~
A112 EX CORR CONC EX RUB 4" EX EX EX EX EX ~
A113 EX CORR CONC EX RUB 4" EX EX EX EX EX ~
A114 CORR CONC VT TO MATCH RUB 4" EX PT ACB 3 ~ 8'-10" OR REUSE EX VT
A115 KINDERGARTEN CONC VET/CPT RUB 4" EX/GYP PT ACB 2 ~ 8'-6" MATCH EX HT

A116 TOILET CONC CT CT 4" GYP/EX CT/PT GYP PT 8' 1
A117 TOILET CONC CT CT 4" GYP/EX CT/PT GYP PT 8' 1
A118 EX KINDERGARTEN EX EX EX ~ EX EX EX EX EX PATCH/PT WALLS

A119 KINDERGARTEN VEST EX MAT RUB 4" EX & GYP PT GYP ACB 1 ~ 8' ~
A120 CORRIDOR EX EX EX ~ EX EX ACB1 ~ 8'-7" +- ~

GENERAL NOTES
A. CEILING HEIGHTS ARE FROM FINISH FLOOR FOR THE APPLICABLE FLOOR.
B. GYPSUM BOARD SOFFITS AND CEILINGS TO BE PAINTED, UNO.
C. ALL CT BASE TO BE SANITARY COVE.
D. PROVIDE TRANSITIONS BETWEEN ALL NEW AND NEW/EXISTING FINISH FLOORINGS.
E. SEE REFLECTED CEILING PLAN AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR CEILING TYPE
F. PROVIDE 4" RUBBER BASE AT ALL CASEWORK.
G. TOOTH IN MASONRY TO MATCH EXISTING COURSING.

NOTES
1. 4 X 4 CT WAINSCOT UP TO 3'-4" AFF - PAINT ABOVE TO BE EPOXY
2. TOUCH UP MATERIAL AS NECESSARY TO CREATE UNIFORM APPEARANCE WHERE NEW OPENING OR BLOCK INFILL IS LOCATED.
3. DO NOT PAINT EXISTING BRICK. CLEAN EXISTING BRICK.
4. PREPARE AND CLEAN EXISTING BRICK WALL. SEE SPECIFICATIONS.
5. SEE REFLECTED CEILING PLAN - CEILING HEIGHT AND MATERIALS VARY.

131



4
"

6
"

1
0
'-0

"
1
'-1

0
 5

/8
"

A112

3A DEMO AT EXISTING WALL SECTION @ CORR A112 AND EXTERIOR STOOP
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

4
"

6
"

1
0
'-0

"
1
'-1

0
 5

/8
"

A113

1 EXISTING WALL SECTION @ OLD CORR A113
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

FFE
100'-0"4

"
6
"

1
0
'-0

"
1
'-1

0
 5

/8
"

A112

2 EXISTING WALL SECTION @ CORR A112 AND NEW ADDITION
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

8
'-6

"
2
'-0

"

1'-2"

BOND BEAM

NOTE: EXISTING
CONSTRUCTION
SHOWN SHADED

CLG ELEV
108'-6"

JBE
111'-11 5/8"+-

TDE
112'-3 5/8"+-

EXISTING
CORRIDOR

DEMO ROOF EDGE
CAP

A109
NEW

ADDITION

1
'-7

 1
/2

"

1
'-9
 7
/8
" ±

6
"

4
"

09 8000.A

03 3000.B
03 3000.F
31 0000.A

A101
ADMIN OFFICE

JBE
112-0"+-

TDE
112'-4"+-

FFE
100'-0"

8
'-6

"
2
'-0

"

8" BOND BEAM

CLG ELEV
108'-6"

JBE
111'-11"+-

TDE
112'-3"+-

DEMO ROOF EDGE
CAP

A109
COTS ROOM

1
'-7

 1
/2

"

1
'-9
 7
/8
" ±

1'-2"

1
0
'-0

"
1
'-1

0
 5

/8
"

A112

3B EXISTING WALL SECTION @ CORR A112 AND NEW ADDITION
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

2 2

NOTE: EXISTING
CONSTRUCTION SHOWN
SHADED TYPICAL FOR ALL
WALL SECTIONS AND
DETAILS

2

4
"

6
"

DEMO DOOR AND FRAME

DEMO AS REQUIRED FOR
NEW CONSTRUCTION

CLG ELEV
108'-10"

11
A8.0

11
A8.0

11
A8.0

03 3000.B
03 3000.F
31 0000.A

03 3000.B
03 3000.F
31 0000.A

NEW DOOR
AND FRAME
SWING INTO
CORRIDOR

04200.A TYPE-A
RUNNING BOND
(TYP) W/ CLIPPED
HEADER

CJ CJ CJ CJCJCJ

04200.A TYPE-A
ROWLOCK COURSE

04200.A TYPE-A
STACKED BOND (TYP)

04200.A TYPE-A
STACKED BOND
(TYP)

07600.B

8 EAST ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

NOTE: NEW CONSTRUCTION
SHOWN SHADED

CJ

70'-11"± NEW CONSTRUCTION

VES
99'-4" & VARIES

FFE
100'-0"

HEAD
107'-4"

SILL
102'-8"

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION EXISTING MULI USEEXISTING ECFE DEPARTMENT

CJ CJ

KALWALL CANOPY

NEW FLAG POLE
AND LOCATION
SEE PLAN

A100A

CENTER LINE OF CANOPY COLUMN W/
CENTER OF EXISTING WALL

CANOPY GUTTER
SLOPE DOWN 1 1/2"
PER FOOT

TOC
114'-4"

TOC
116'-10" LIGHTS

HANOVER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
274 LABEAU AVE NE

11
A4.1 9

A4.0

TYP @ CURVED WALL

NOTE: MATCH ALL EXISTING BRICK
COURSING, TYPES AND SIZES

10
A4.0

CJ

5
A4.0

6
A4.06

A4.1

4
"

6
"

1
3
'-9

 1
/2

"
1
'-6

 1
/2

"
V
A
R
IE

S

1'-2"

A103

4 EXISTING WALL SECTION @ SIBLING CARE A103 AND CONFERENCE A108
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

8
" 0

4
 2

0
0
0
.A

/F
6
0
 C

S
E 

=
 1

3
'-4

"
0
4
 2

0
0
0
.A

 -
 T

YP
E 

A

6
"

4
"

1'-4"

5
MODULAR BRICK
NEW EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

1
A8.0

VSE
99'-4"

1
6
.5

 C
S
E 

@
 8

" =
 1

1
'-0

"

0
4
 2

0
0
0
.B

3
.5

 C
S
E 

@
 8

" =
 2

'-4
"

0
4
 2

0
0
0
.B

2
'-0

"

1
3
'-4

"

1
1
'-4

"

04 2000.C
05 1000.A

05 2000.A

09 8000.A

(3")
07 2100.B
04 2000.E

04 2000.G

24
A6.0

03 3000.B
03 3000.F
31 0000.A

(2")
07 2100.A

04 2000.C

A106
OFFICE

FFE
100'-0"

JBE
111'-0"

TDE
111'-4"

TOM
113'-4"

CLG ELEV
108'-6"

1
4
'-0

"
C
LI

PP
ED

 H
EA

D
ER

 E
V
ER

Y 
6
TH

 C
O

U
R
S
E 

S
TA

R
TI

N
G

 1
 B

R
IC

K 
C
O

U
R
S
E 

B
EL

O
W

 F
FE

V
ER

IF
Y 

A
N
D

 M
A
TC

H
 E

XI
S
TI

N
G

 P
A
TT

ER
N

TOM WALL BEYOND 
113'-4"

6
"

4
"

1
3
'-4

"09 8000.A

03 3000.B
03 3000.F
31 0000.A

A108
CONFERENCE

8
" 0

4
 2

0
0
0
.A

/F
6
0
 C

S
E 

=
 1

3
'-4

"
0
4
 2

0
0
0
.A

 -
 T

YP
E 

A

6
"

4
"

1'-4"

6
MODULAR BRICK
EXTERIOR CAVITY WALL @ WINDOW
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

VSE
99'-4"

1
6
.5

 C
S
E 

@
 8

" =
 1

1
'-0

"

0
4
 2

0
0
0
.B

3
.5

 C
S
E 

@
 8

" =
 2

'-4
"

0
4
 2

0
0
0
.B

2
'-0

"

1
3
'-4

"

1
1
'-4

"

04 2000.C

05 1000.A

05 2000.A

09 8000.A

(3")
07 2100.B
04 2000.E

04 2000.G

24
A6.0

03 3000.B
03 3000.F
31 0000.A

(2")
07 2100.A

04 2000.C

A111
OFFICE

FFE
100'-0"

JBE
111'-4"+-

TDE
111'-8"+-

TOM
113'-4"

CLG ELEV
108'-10"

1
4
'-0

"
C
LI

PP
ED

 H
EA

D
ER

 E
V
ER

Y 
6
TH

 C
O

U
R
S
E 

S
TA

R
TI

N
G

 1
 B

R
IC

K 
C
O

U
R
S
E 

B
EL

O
W

 F
FE

V
ER

IF
Y 

A
N
D

 M
A
TC

H
 E

XI
S
TI

N
G

 P
A
TT

ER
N

2
'-0

"
4
'-8

" M
O

8
" 0

4
 2

0
0
0
.A

/F

6
0
 C

S
E 

=
 1

3
'-4

"
0
4
 2

0
0
0
.A

 -
 T

YP
E 

A

6
"

4
"

1'-4"

7
MODULAR BRICK
CURVED EXTERIOR CAVITY  WALL 
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

1
A8.0

VSE
99'-4"

1
7
 C

S
E 

@
 8

" =
 1

1
'-4

"

0
4
 2

0
0
0
.B

3
 C

S
E 

@
 8

" =
 2

'-0
"

0
4
 2

0
0
0
.B

1
'-8

"

1
3
'-4

"

1
1
'-8

"

04 2000.C

05 1000.A

05 2000.A

09 8000.A

(3")
07 2100.B
04 2000.E

04 2000.G

24
A6.0

03 3000.B
03 3000.F
31 0000.A

(2")
07 2100.A

04 2000.C

A111
OFFICE

FFE
100'-0"

JBE
111'-4"

TDE
111'-8"

TOM
113'-4"

CLG ELEV
108'-10"

1
4
'-0

"
C
LI

PP
ED

 H
EA

D
ER

 E
V
ER

Y 
6
TH

 C
O

U
R
S
E 

S
TA

R
TI

N
G

 1
 B

R
IC

K 
C
O

U
R
S
E 

B
EL

O
W

 F
FE

V
ER

IF
Y 

A
N
D

 M
A
TC

H
 E

XI
S
TI

N
G

 P
A
TT

ER
N

2
'-0

" T
YP

E 
A

S
O

LD
IE

R
6
'-0

" M
O

8
"

PA
TT

ER
N

17B
A3.0

17A
A3.0

8
" T

YP
E 

A
R
O

W
LO

C
K

FIN TUBE SEE
MECHANICAL

3
'-4

" T
YP

E 
A

S
O

LD
IE

R
8
" T

YP
E 

A
R
O

W
LO

C
K

8
" T

YP
E 

A
R
O

W
LO

C
K

2
'-0

"
8
"

PA
TT

ER
N

VARIES-FIELD
VERIFY

1
A8.0

27
A3.0

29
A3.0

26
A3.0

CONCRETE
SIDEWALK
SEE CIVIL

NOTE: EXISTING
CONSTRUCTION SHOWN
SHADED TYPICAL FOR ALL
WALL SECTIONS AND
DETAILS

CLG ELEV
108'-6"

TDE
VARIES

15
A8.0

25
A6.0

26
A6.0

26
A6.0

JBE
111'-0"

TDE
111'-4"

03 30 00.E
(TYP)

04 20 0A TYPE A
SOLDIER COURSE

04 20 0A TYPE A
STACK BOND (3) COURSES

10 BRICK ELEVATION PATTERN
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

FACE BRICK TYPE 'A'

SOLIDER BRICK TYPE 'A'

07 60 00.B

ROWLOCK BRICK TYPE 'A'

CEILING LINE 108'-10"

ROWLOCK BRICK TYPE 'A'

PATTERN BRICK TYPE 'A' SEE
10/A4.0

ROWLOCK BRICK TYPE 'A'

SOLDIER BRICK TYPE 'A'

ROWLOCK BRICK TYPE 'A'

FACE BRICK TYPE 'A'

NOTE: CLIPPED HEADERS
EVERY 6TH COURSE MATCH
EXISTING BRICK TYPE 'A'

FLOOR LINE 100'-0"2
'-0

"
8
"

6
'-0

"
4
'-0

"
8
"

9 ENLARGED PARTIAL CURVED WALL ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

ALUMINUM WINDOW

CENTER LINE OF CANOPY
COLUMN BEYOND

CURVED AREA

8
" VSE

2
'-0

"
8
"

4
"

1
"

2'-8"

10" 1'-0" 10"

11 CANOPY BASE ELEVATION
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

42
A6.0

41
A6.0

40
A6.0

CAST STONE CAP SEE
SECTION 03 31 00

STEEL TUBE SEE
STRUCTURAL SHEETS
FINISH WITH SPECIAL
COATINGS SECTION

SOLDIER COURSE
BRICK TYPE 'A'

4" CLIPPED HEADERS AT
CORNERS BRICK TYPE 'A'

FACE BRICK TYPE 'A'

4" 9 C @ 2 1/4" = 2'-0" 4"

North

A
 R

 C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 S

   
 R

 E
 G

 O
  +

  Y
 O

 U
 N

 G
 Q

 U
 I 

S 
T

76
01

 W
ay

za
ta

 B
ou

le
va

rd
   

Su
ite

 2
00

   
St

. L
ou

is
 P

ar
k,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

54
26

Ph
on

e:
 9

52
-5

44
-8

94
1 

  F
ax

: 9
52

-5
44

-0
58

5 
  a

ry
ar

ch
.c

om

Revised

Checked by
Date

Drawn by

I h
er

eb
y 

ce
rti

fy
 th

at
 th

is
 p

la
n 

w
as

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

m
e 

or
 u

nd
er

 m
y 

di
re

ct
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
th

at
 I 

am
 a

 d
ul

y
Li

ce
ns

ed
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
la

w
s

of
 th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 M

in
ne

so
ta

.

Sheet Title

C
om

m
is

si
on

 N
um

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Sheet Number

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

N
um

be
r

20
15

H
A

N
O

V
ER

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

IS
D

 #
87

7 
   

 H
an

ov
er

, M
N

20
52

02/09/15
00/00/00

PA
U

L 
Y

O
U

N
G

Q
U

IS
T

 1
30

31

A4.0

DRL

EXTERIOR
ELEVATION AND
WALL SECTIONS

BR

GENERAL EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES: FOR ALL EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
1. MASON TO COORDINATE WITH ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR THE LOCATION OF ALL

EXTERIOIR MOUNTED LIGHT FIXTURES.
2. EXTERIOR AND INTERIOR CONTROL JOINTS SEE DETAILS 22 & 23/A6.0.
3. HATCH PATTERNS SHOWN FOR MATERIAL LOCATIONS. HATCH DOES NOT REFLECT

ACTUAL MATERIAL COURSING, QUANTITIES, OR SIZE.
4. STEPPED VSE - CORRDINATE FINAL GRADE

 KEY NOTES 
DIVISION 03 CONCRETE
03 10 00 .A STOOP VOID FORM

03 30 00 .A FOOTING OR FOUNDATION WALL. SEE STRUCTURAL FOR SIZE,
DEPTH, AND REINFORCING

 .B CONCRETE SLAB ON GRADE - SEE STRUCTURAL
 .C 2" CONCRETE TOPPING
 .D FROST SLAB - SEE STRUCTURAL
 .E 1/2" EXPANSION MATERIAL
 .F VAPOR RETARDER
 .G BOND BREAK MATERIAL

.H KEY WAY
   .I  NOT USED

.J   WATERSTOP

DIVISION 04 MASONRY
04 20 00 .A FACE BRICK  TYPE A, TYPE B, ETC

.B CONCRETE BLOCK (SEE PLAN OR SECTIONS FOR THICKNESS) SEE
ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE AND ELEVATIONS FOR COLOR, SCORING,
FINISH AND PATTERNS - SEE OVERALL PLAN FOR FIRE RATING

 .C CONCRETE BLOCK BOND BEAM (SEE STRUCTURAL FOR SIZE AND
REINFORCING)

 .D SOLID CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT (NO CORES)
 .E SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

REINFORCING REQUIRED FOR ALL MASONRY WALLS. PROVIDE
HORIZONTAL JOINT REINFORCING 16" OC VERTICALLY
STARTING1'-4" ABOVE FFE 100'-0", UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

 .F GROUT SOLID
 .G FLASHING AND WEEPS
 .H 15 LB BLDG FELT BOND BREAKER

.I   NOT USED
 .J ADJUSTABLE VENEER ANCHORS AT 16" OC HORIZONTALLY
 .K CAVITY VENTILATOR, ALTERNATE W/WICKS @ 24" OC
 .L HORIZONTAL JOINT REINFORCING, SPACING AS SHOWN
 .M CONT 3/8" ETHAFOAM STRIP FULL WIDTH OF MASONRY
 .N GLAZED MASONRY UNIT - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC

.O NOT USED
 .P BURNISHED CONCRETE BLOCK - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC
 .Q DECORATIVE CONCRETE BLOCK - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC

04 72 00 .A CAST STONE - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC

DIVISION 05 METALS
05 10 00 .A STEEL ANGLE (SEE STRUCTURAL)
 .B STEEL BEAM (SEE STRUCTURAL)
 .C STEEL PLATE (SEE STRUCTURAL)
 .D STEEL CHANNEL (SEE STRUCTURAL)

.E  STEEL COLUMN (SEE STRUCTURAL)

05 20 00 .A STEEL JOIST (SEE STRUCTURAL)

05 30 00 .A 1-1/2" METAL DECK (SEE STRUCTURAL)
.B 1-1/2" METAL ACOUSTIC DECK (SEE STRUCTURAL)
.C 3" METAL DECK (SEE STRUCTURAL)

05 50 00 .A 1-1/4" NOM. DIA. STL. PIPE RAILING-WELD & GRIND SMOOTH (PAINT)
 .B STEEL GRATE TREADS (PAINT)
 .C MC 12 x 10.6 STRINGERS WITH CLOSED ENDS (PAINT)
 .D GRIND SMOOTH WELDS AND CUT EDGES (PAINT)
 .E STEEL PAN TREAD AND RISER (PAINT)
 .F 1 1/4" NOM DIA STEEL PIPE (PAINT)
 .G 1/4" x 1" STEEL BAR (PAINT)

DIVISION 06 CARPENTRY
06 20 00 .A UNTREATED WOOD BLOCKING
 .B 1/2" EXTERIOR TREATED PLYWOOD
 .C 3/4" EXTERIOR TREATED PLYWOOD
 .D MOISTURE TREATED WOOD BLOCKING SECURED TO SUBSTRATE
 .E SCREW 2x TO SUB-BLOCKING AT 16" OC
 .F 3/8" x 10" HOOKED END BOLT AT 32" OC INTO MASONRY JOINT OR

GROUTED BLOCK COURSE
 .G 3/8" x 3" CARRIAGE BOLT AT EACH ANGLE OR 32" OC MAX
 .H 1/2" x 4" EXPANSION BOLT AT 48" OC
 .I NOT USED.
 .J FIRE TREATED WOOD BLOCKING SECURED TO SUBSTRATE
 .K STRAP ANCHOR
 .L 1/2" FIRE RETARDANT PLYWOOD

06 25 00 .A ALUMINUM COVERED PLYWOOD
 .B CONTINUOUS SOFFIT VENT

DIVISION 07 THERMAL AND MOISTURE PROTECTION
07 21 00 .A RIGID OR PERIMETER INSULATION - SEE DRAWINGS FOR THICKNESS
 .B CAVITY WALL INSULATION. SEE DRAWINGS FOR THICKNESS
 .C FIBERGLASS BATT INSULATION FULL THICKNESS OF CAVITY
 .D FIBERGLASS LOOSE INSULATION PACKED IN VOIDS
 .E VAPOR BARRIER
 .F SAFING INSULATION
 .G  FURRED WALL INSULATION

.H MASONRY INSULATION (GRANULAR)

07 51 00 .A 4 PLY BUILT UP ROOFING SYSTEM
.B ROOF INSULATION - SEE ROOF PLAN FOR THICKNESS
.C VAPOR RETARDER
.D GRACE'S PERMABARRIER ALUMINUM FLASHING

 .E TAPERED  OR STEP INSULATION
 .F ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT
 .G OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT15 LB FELT
  .H MODIFIED ASPHALT MEMBRANE UNDERLAYMENT
 .I NOT USED

.J ROOFING SEALANT

.K ROOF EXPANSION JOINT COVER OR FLEXIBLE FLASHINGS

.L GRACE'S PERMABARRIER ALUMINUM FLASHING

.M 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT RATED ROOF/CEILING ASSEMBLIES)

.N 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT RATED ROOF/CEILING ASSEMBLIES)

.O NOT USED

.P PREFABRICATED INSULATED SMOKE HATCH, OR ROOF HATCH (SEE
PLAN)

07 52 00 .A MODIFIED BITUMENOUS ROOFING SYSTEM
.B ROOF INSULATION - SEE ROOF PLAN FOR THICKNESS
.C VAPOR RETARDER
.D 1/2" INSULATION COVER BOARD
.E TAPERED OR STEP INSULATION
.F ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT
.G OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT
.H MODIFIED ASPHALT MEMBRANE UNDERLAYMENT
.I NOT USED
.J ROOFING SEALANT

  .K ROOF EXPANSION JOINT COVER OR FLEXIBLE FLASHINGS
.L GRACE'S PERMABARRIER ALUMINUM FLASHING
.M 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT RATED ROOF/CEILING ASSEMBLIES)
.N 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT ACOUSTIC DECK OR RATED

ASSEMBLIES)
.O NOT USED
.P PREFABRICATED INSULATED SMOKE HATCH, OR ROOF HATCH (SEE

PLAN)

07 60 00 .A CONTINUOUS HOOK STRIP ANCHORED TO BLOCKING AT 16" OC
 .B PRE-FINISHED METAL FACIA OR CAP
 .C ANCHOR FACIA TO 2x WITH GASKETED SCREWS AT 2'-6" OC
 .D PRE-FINISHED METAL OVERFLOW SCUPPER, WITH PRE-FINISHED

METAL FLANGE ALL SIDES HEM EXPOSED EDGES
 .E PRE-FINISHED METAL FLASHING ANCHORED WITH GASKETED

SCREWS AT 12" OC
 .F PREFINISHED METAL DOWNSPOUT SECURE FLANGE TO WALL W/

LEAD SHIELD ANCHORS 2'-0" OC
 .G GASKETED SCREWS THRU MIDPOINT OF SLOTTED HOLES OR

BETWEEN SECTIONS OF FLASHING
 .H PREFINISHED METAL SCUPPER & LEADER

07 90 00 .A CAULKING
 .B PRE COMPRESSED FOAM SEALANT

DIVISION 08 DOORS AND WINDOWS
08 11 00 .A HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND/OR FRAME

08 14 00 .A WOOD DOOR

08 40 00 .A ALUMINUM ENTRANCE DOOR AND FRAME
 .B ALUMINUM  CURTAINWALL FRAME

08 40 10 .A ALUMINUM ENTRANCE DOOR AND FRAME

08 45 00 .A SKYLIGHT PANEL ASSEMBLY, FLASHING AND EAVE STRUT BY SKYLIGHT
SUPPLIER

 .B ANCHOR SKYLIGHT TO STEEL PLATE

08 51 00 .A ALUMINUM WINDOW

DIVISION 09 FINISHES
09 24 00 .A CEMENT PLASTER

09 27 13 .A INTERIOR COLUMN COVER

09 27 16 .A EXTERIOR COLUMN COVER

09 29 00 .A 6" - 20 GA STEEL STUDS AT 16" OC
 .B 3-5/8"  20 GA STEEL STUDS AT 16" OC
 .C 2-1/2"  25GA STEEL STUDS AT 24" OC
 .D 1-5/8"  25 GA STEEL STUDS AT 24" OC
 .E STEEL RUNNER ANCHORED TO STEEL BEAM, JOIST OR DECK
 .F 7/8" FURRING CHANNELS AT 16" OC
 .G FILLET WELD STUDS TO STEEL ANGLE OR BEAM, BOTH SIDES OF

STUD, FULL HEIGHT OF ATTACHMENT
 .H 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT

NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)
.I NOT USED
.J (2) LAYERS 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM

BOARD (EXCEPT REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED
CONSTRUCTION)

 .K (2) LAYERS EACH SIDE 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT
REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

.L 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT
REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .M (1) LAYER EACH SIDE 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT
REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .N (2) LAYERS EACH SIDE 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT REGULAR
GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .O NOT USED
.P 1/2" SHEATHING

 .Q 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD ON DRYWALL SUSPENSION SYSTEM
(EXCEPT REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .R EDGE BEAD
 .S CORNER BEAD
 .T "Z" FURRING @ 16" OC
 .U RESILIENT CHANNELS @ 16" OC
 .V ACOUSTIC BLANKETS

.W 1/2" CEMENT BOARD

.X DEFLECTION TRACK

09 30 00 .A CERAMIC TILE (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE FOR TYPE/LOCATIONS)
 .B SOLID SURFACE WINDOW STOOL

09 65 00 .A RUBBER BASE (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE)

09 68 00 .A CARPET (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE)

09 80 00 .A SUSPENDED ACOUSTICAL CEILING (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE)

DIVISION 10  SPECIALTIES
10 01 00 .A ENTRANCE MAT RECESSED

DIVISION 12  FURNISHINGS
12 35 50 .A CASEWORK (SEE PLAN AND INTERIOR ELEVATIONS)

DIVISION 22  PLUMBING
22 00 00 .A RAIN WATER LEADER (SEE MECHANICAL)

.B VENT STACK (SEE MECHANICAL)

DIVISION 23  MECHANICAL
23 00 00 .A MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT UNIT ANCHORED TO CURB WITH

GASKETED SCREWS (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .B PREFABRICATED ALUMINUM CURB FURNISHED BY MECHANICAL AND

INSTALLED BY GENERAL CONTRACTOR
 .C WELD CURB TO STEEL DECK OR CHANNEL (BY GENERAL

CONTRACTOR)
 .D PIPE (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .E VENT PIPE W/ INSECT SCREEN BY MECHANICAL @ GAS CURB ONLY -

OMIT @ CONDENSER CURB
 .F STACK OR FLUE WITH HOOD (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .G METAL LINING (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .H DUCT (SEE MECHANICAL)

DIVISION 31  SITEWORK
31 00 00 .A 6" MIN SAND CUSHION
 .B FINISH GRADE (SEE SITE PLAN)

.C COARSE FILTER AGGREGATE

DIVISION 33  UTILITIES
33 46 13 .A DRAIN TILE 132



4
"

6
"

1B NEW VESTIBULE A100
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

NOTE: SHADED
AREA TO REMAIN

NOTE: EXIST BRICK-
BLOCK WALL AND
FOOTING TO REMAIN

EXISTING CONCRETE
SLAB ON GRADE TO
REMAIN

NOTE: SHADED
AREA TO REMAIN

4
"

6
"

NOTE: SHADED
AREA TO REMAIN

DEMO BRICK PIER
AND FOUNDATION
WALL

EXISTING ROOF
SYSTEM TO BE
REMOVED

DEMO EXISTING
CONCRETE SIDEWALK
AND PART OF STOOP

2A EXISTING CANOPY DEMOLITION
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

EXISTING ROOF EDGE SYSTEM
TO BE REMOVED FOR NEW
BLOCK AND ROOF ABOVE

4
"

6
"

NOTE: SHADED
AREA TO REMAIN

NEW HM FRAME SEE
SHEET A3.0

2B NEW VESTIBULE A100
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

EXISTING ROOF EDGE SYSTEM
TO BE REMOVED FOR NEW
BLOCK AND ROOF ABOVE

108'-8"
CMU ELEV

108'-10"
CLG

4
"

6
"

1A EXISTING VESTIBULE
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

NOTE: SHADED
AREA TO REMAIN

NOTE: THIS BRICK
AND BLOCK WALL
AND FOOTING TO
REMAIN

EXISTING ROOF
SYSTEM TO BE
REMOVED

EXISTING CONCRETE
SLAB ON GRADE TO
REMAIN

EXISTING ROOF EDGE SYSTEM
TO BE REMOVED FOR NEW
BLOCK AND ROOF ABOVE

REMOVE EXISTING
SOIL PER
SPECIFICATIONS

03 3000.B
03 3000.F
31 0000.A

4
"

6
"

03 3000.B
03 3000.F
31 0000.A

FFE
100'-0"

108'-10"
CLG

NOTE: EXISTING
CONSTRUCTION SHOWN
SHADED TYPICAL FOR ALL
WALL SECTIONS AND
DETAILS

VARIES
TDE

EXISTING ROOF EDGE SYSTEM
TO BE REMOVED FOR NEW
BLOCK AND ROOF ABOVE

VARIES
TDE

VARIES
TDE

VARIES
TDE

4
A8.0

4
A8.0

21
A8.0

4
A8.0 4

A8.0 21
A8.0

TOM
113'-4"

TOM
113'-4"

TOM
113'-4"

TOM
113'-4"

4
"

6
"

3 EXISTING CANOPY DEMOLITION
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

NOTE: SHADED
AREA TO REMAIN

DEMO BRICK PIER
AND FOUNDATION
WALL

EXISTING ROOF
SYSTEM TO BE
REMOVED

DEMO EXISTING
CONCRETE SIDEWALK

JBE
111'-6"+-

TDE
111'-10"+-

TOM
113'-4"

CLG ELEV
108'-10"

8
" 0

4
 2

0
0
0
.A

/F

6
0
 C

S
E 

=
 1

3
'-4

"
0
4
 2

0
0
0
.A

 -
 T

YP
E 

A

6
"

4
"

1'-4"

6
MODULAR BRICK
NEW EXTERIOR ENTRANCE
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

1
A8.0

VSE
99'-4"

2
0
 C

S
E 

@
 8

" =
 1

3
'-4

"

0
4
 2

0
0
0
.B

04 2000.A

05 1000.A

05 2000.A

09 8000.A

(3")
07 2100.B
04 2000.E

A111
OFFICE

FFE
100'-0"

1
4
'-0

"
C
LI

PP
ED

 H
EA

D
ER

 E
V
ER

Y 
6
TH

 C
O

U
R
S
E 

S
TA

R
TI

N
G

 1
 B

R
IC

K 
C
O

U
R
S
E 

B
EL

O
W

 F
FE

V
ER

IF
Y 

A
N
D

 M
A
TC

H
 E

XI
S
TI

N
G

 P
A
TT

ER
N

18
A3.0

VARIES

6 1/2" 3"

6 1/2" 3"

8
'-8

" M
O

FFE
100'-0"

8
'-1

0
"

BOND BEAM

CLG ELEV
108'-10"

JBE
112'-0"+-

TDE
112'-4"+-

DEMO ROOF EDGE
CAP

A114
CORRIDOR

1
'-9
 7
/8
" ±

4
"

6
"

1
0
'-0

"
1
'-1

1
"

A101

4 WALL SECTION @ CORR A101 AND CORR A114
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

FFE
100'-0"

8
'-1

0
"

STEEL BEAM
LINTEL

CLG ELEV
108'-10"

TDE
VARIES

A114
CORRIDOR

5 EXISTING STOOP DEMO AND NEW INTERIOR VESTIBULE WALL
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

A100
VESTIBULE

16
A3.0

8
" 4

"
6
"

24
A3.0

NOTE: EXISTING
CONSTRUCTION SHOWN
SHADED TYPICAL FOR ALL
WALL SECTIONS AND
DETAILS

DOOR A100B

DOOR A100A

4
A8.0

21
A8.0

26
A6.0

EXIST CMU

NEW CMU SEE
1B/A4.1

1'-0"
OVERHANG

NOTE: PROVIDE SEPARATION
BETWEEN DISSIMILAR METALS
BY SECTION 08 45 00

7 CANOPY SIDE EDGE DETAIL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" 8 CANOPY TOP EDGE DETAIL

SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" 9 CANOPY BOTTOM EDGE AND GUTTER DETAIL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0"

TBE
VARIES

08 45 00.A

PANEL CONNECTORS
BY 08 45 00

END CAP
FLASHING BY

08 45 00

ALUMINUM CLIPS AND
FASTENERS BY 08 45 00

ANGLE SUPPORT AND
FASTENERS BY 08 45 00

TBE
114'-4"

ALUMINUM CLIPS AND
FASTENERS BY 08 45 00

ANGLE SUPPORT AND
FASTENERS BY 08 45 00

NOTE: PROVIDE SEPARATION
BETWEEN DISSIMILAR METALS
BY SECTION 08 45 00

08 45 00.A @ 1.5:12
PITCH

END CAP FLASHING
BY 08 45 00

05 10 00.B  SEE
SPECIAL COATING
SECTION FOR
FINISH (TYP)

.125 ALUM
GUTTER PAINTED
BY 08 45 00

HEAT TAPE BY
08 45 00

ALUMINUM CLIPS AND
FASTENERS BY 08 45 00

ANGLE SUPPORT AND
FASTENERS BY 08 45 00

NOTE: PROVIDE SEPARATION
BETWEEN DISSIMILAR METALS

BY SECTION 08 45 00

08 45 00.A @ 1.5:12
PITCH

END CAP
FLASHING BY

08 45 00

05 10 00.B
SEE SPECIAL

COATINGS
SECTION FOR

FINISH (TYP)

05 10 00.B
SEE SPECIAL

COATINGS
SECTION FOR

FINISH (TYP)

11
A4.0

8
A4.1

05 10 00.E FINISH BY
SPECIAL COATINGS
SECTION

1.5
12

North

A
 R

 C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 S

   
 R

 E
 G

 O
  +

  Y
 O

 U
 N

 G
 Q

 U
 I 

S 
T

76
01

 W
ay

za
ta

 B
ou

le
va

rd
   

Su
ite

 2
00

   
St

. L
ou

is
 P

ar
k,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

54
26

Ph
on

e:
 9

52
-5

44
-8

94
1 

  F
ax

: 9
52

-5
44

-0
58

5 
  a

ry
ar

ch
.c

om

Revised

Checked by
Date

Drawn by

I h
er

eb
y 

ce
rti

fy
 th

at
 th

is
 p

la
n 

w
as

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

m
e 

or
 u

nd
er

 m
y 

di
re

ct
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
th

at
 I 

am
 a

 d
ul

y
Li

ce
ns

ed
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
la

w
s

of
 th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 M

in
ne

so
ta

.

Sheet Title

C
om

m
is

si
on

 N
um

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Sheet Number

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

N
um

be
r

20
15

H
A

N
O

V
ER

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

IS
D

 #
87

7 
   

 H
an

ov
er

, M
N

20
52

02/09/15
00/00/00

PA
U

L 
Y

O
U

N
G

Q
U

IS
T

 1
30

31

A4.1

DRL

WALL SECTIONS
AND DETAILS

BR

 KEY NOTES 
DIVISION 03 CONCRETE
03 10 00 .A STOOP VOID FORM

03 30 00 .A FOOTING OR FOUNDATION WALL. SEE STRUCTURAL FOR SIZE,
DEPTH, AND REINFORCING

 .B CONCRETE SLAB ON GRADE - SEE STRUCTURAL
 .C 2" CONCRETE TOPPING
 .D FROST SLAB - SEE STRUCTURAL
 .E 1/2" EXPANSION MATERIAL
 .F VAPOR RETARDER
 .G BOND BREAK MATERIAL

.H KEY WAY
   .I  NOT USED

.J   WATERSTOP

DIVISION 04 MASONRY
04 20 00 .A FACE BRICK  TYPE A, TYPE B, ETC

.B CONCRETE BLOCK (SEE PLAN OR SECTIONS FOR THICKNESS) SEE
ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE AND ELEVATIONS FOR COLOR, SCORING,
FINISH AND PATTERNS - SEE OVERALL PLAN FOR FIRE RATING

 .C CONCRETE BLOCK BOND BEAM (SEE STRUCTURAL FOR SIZE AND
REINFORCING)

 .D SOLID CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT (NO CORES)
 .E SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

REINFORCING REQUIRED FOR ALL MASONRY WALLS. PROVIDE
HORIZONTAL JOINT REINFORCING 16" OC VERTICALLY
STARTING1'-4" ABOVE FFE 100'-0", UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

 .F GROUT SOLID
 .G FLASHING AND WEEPS
 .H 15 LB BLDG FELT BOND BREAKER

.I   NOT USED
 .J ADJUSTABLE VENEER ANCHORS AT 16" OC HORIZONTALLY
 .K CAVITY VENTILATOR, ALTERNATE W/WICKS @ 24" OC
 .L HORIZONTAL JOINT REINFORCING, SPACING AS SHOWN
 .M CONT 3/8" ETHAFOAM STRIP FULL WIDTH OF MASONRY
 .N GLAZED MASONRY UNIT - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC

.O NOT USED
 .P BURNISHED CONCRETE BLOCK - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC
 .Q DECORATIVE CONCRETE BLOCK - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC

04 72 00 .A CAST STONE - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC

DIVISION 05 METALS
05 10 00 .A STEEL ANGLE (SEE STRUCTURAL)
 .B STEEL BEAM (SEE STRUCTURAL)
 .C STEEL PLATE (SEE STRUCTURAL)
 .D STEEL CHANNEL (SEE STRUCTURAL)

.E  STEEL COLUMN (SEE STRUCTURAL)

05 20 00 .A STEEL JOIST (SEE STRUCTURAL)

05 30 00 .A 1-1/2" METAL DECK (SEE STRUCTURAL)
.B 1-1/2" METAL ACOUSTIC DECK (SEE STRUCTURAL)
.C 3" METAL DECK (SEE STRUCTURAL)

05 50 00 .A 1-1/4" NOM. DIA. STL. PIPE RAILING-WELD & GRIND SMOOTH (PAINT)
 .B STEEL GRATE TREADS (PAINT)
 .C MC 12 x 10.6 STRINGERS WITH CLOSED ENDS (PAINT)
 .D GRIND SMOOTH WELDS AND CUT EDGES (PAINT)
 .E STEEL PAN TREAD AND RISER (PAINT)
 .F 1 1/4" NOM DIA STEEL PIPE (PAINT)
 .G 1/4" x 1" STEEL BAR (PAINT)

DIVISION 06 CARPENTRY
06 20 00 .A UNTREATED WOOD BLOCKING
 .B 1/2" EXTERIOR TREATED PLYWOOD
 .C 3/4" EXTERIOR TREATED PLYWOOD
 .D MOISTURE TREATED WOOD BLOCKING SECURED TO SUBSTRATE
 .E SCREW 2x TO SUB-BLOCKING AT 16" OC
 .F 3/8" x 10" HOOKED END BOLT AT 32" OC INTO MASONRY JOINT OR

GROUTED BLOCK COURSE
 .G 3/8" x 3" CARRIAGE BOLT AT EACH ANGLE OR 32" OC MAX
 .H 1/2" x 4" EXPANSION BOLT AT 48" OC
 .I NOT USED.
 .J FIRE TREATED WOOD BLOCKING SECURED TO SUBSTRATE
 .K STRAP ANCHOR
 .L 1/2" FIRE RETARDANT PLYWOOD

06 25 00 .A ALUMINUM COVERED PLYWOOD
 .B CONTINUOUS SOFFIT VENT

DIVISION 07 THERMAL AND MOISTURE PROTECTION
07 21 00 .A RIGID OR PERIMETER INSULATION - SEE DRAWINGS FOR THICKNESS
 .B CAVITY WALL INSULATION. SEE DRAWINGS FOR THICKNESS
 .C FIBERGLASS BATT INSULATION FULL THICKNESS OF CAVITY
 .D FIBERGLASS LOOSE INSULATION PACKED IN VOIDS
 .E VAPOR BARRIER
 .F SAFING INSULATION
 .G  FURRED WALL INSULATION

.H MASONRY INSULATION (GRANULAR)

07 51 00 .A 4 PLY BUILT UP ROOFING SYSTEM
.B ROOF INSULATION - SEE ROOF PLAN FOR THICKNESS
.C VAPOR RETARDER
.D GRACE'S PERMABARRIER ALUMINUM FLASHING

 .E TAPERED  OR STEP INSULATION
 .F ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT
 .G OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT15 LB FELT
  .H MODIFIED ASPHALT MEMBRANE UNDERLAYMENT
 .I NOT USED

.J ROOFING SEALANT

.K ROOF EXPANSION JOINT COVER OR FLEXIBLE FLASHINGS

.L GRACE'S PERMABARRIER ALUMINUM FLASHING

.M 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT RATED ROOF/CEILING ASSEMBLIES)

.N 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT RATED ROOF/CEILING ASSEMBLIES)

.O NOT USED

.P PREFABRICATED INSULATED SMOKE HATCH, OR ROOF HATCH (SEE
PLAN)

07 52 00 .A MODIFIED BITUMENOUS ROOFING SYSTEM
.B ROOF INSULATION - SEE ROOF PLAN FOR THICKNESS
.C VAPOR RETARDER
.D 1/2" INSULATION COVER BOARD
.E TAPERED OR STEP INSULATION
.F ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT
.G OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT
.H MODIFIED ASPHALT MEMBRANE UNDERLAYMENT
.I NOT USED
.J ROOFING SEALANT

  .K ROOF EXPANSION JOINT COVER OR FLEXIBLE FLASHINGS
.L GRACE'S PERMABARRIER ALUMINUM FLASHING
.M 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT RATED ROOF/CEILING ASSEMBLIES)
.N 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT ACOUSTIC DECK OR RATED

ASSEMBLIES)
.O NOT USED
.P PREFABRICATED INSULATED SMOKE HATCH, OR ROOF HATCH (SEE

PLAN)

07 60 00 .A CONTINUOUS HOOK STRIP ANCHORED TO BLOCKING AT 16" OC
 .B PRE-FINISHED METAL FACIA OR CAP
 .C ANCHOR FACIA TO 2x WITH GASKETED SCREWS AT 2'-6" OC
 .D PRE-FINISHED METAL OVERFLOW SCUPPER, WITH PRE-FINISHED

METAL FLANGE ALL SIDES HEM EXPOSED EDGES
 .E PRE-FINISHED METAL FLASHING ANCHORED WITH GASKETED

SCREWS AT 12" OC
 .F PREFINISHED METAL DOWNSPOUT SECURE FLANGE TO WALL W/

LEAD SHIELD ANCHORS 2'-0" OC
 .G GASKETED SCREWS THRU MIDPOINT OF SLOTTED HOLES OR

BETWEEN SECTIONS OF FLASHING
 .H PREFINISHED METAL SCUPPER & LEADER

07 90 00 .A CAULKING
 .B PRE COMPRESSED FOAM SEALANT

DIVISION 08 DOORS AND WINDOWS
08 11 00 .A HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND/OR FRAME

08 14 00 .A WOOD DOOR

08 40 00 .A ALUMINUM ENTRANCE DOOR AND FRAME
 .B ALUMINUM  CURTAINWALL FRAME

08 40 10 .A ALUMINUM ENTRANCE DOOR AND FRAME

08 45 00 .A SKYLIGHT PANEL ASSEMBLY, FLASHING AND EAVE STRUT BY SKYLIGHT
SUPPLIER

 .B ANCHOR SKYLIGHT TO STEEL PLATE

08 51 00 .A ALUMINUM WINDOW

DIVISION 09 FINISHES
09 24 00 .A CEMENT PLASTER

09 27 13 .A INTERIOR COLUMN COVER

09 27 16 .A EXTERIOR COLUMN COVER

09 29 00 .A 6" - 20 GA STEEL STUDS AT 16" OC
 .B 3-5/8"  20 GA STEEL STUDS AT 16" OC
 .C 2-1/2"  25GA STEEL STUDS AT 24" OC
 .D 1-5/8"  25 GA STEEL STUDS AT 24" OC
 .E STEEL RUNNER ANCHORED TO STEEL BEAM, JOIST OR DECK
 .F 7/8" FURRING CHANNELS AT 16" OC
 .G FILLET WELD STUDS TO STEEL ANGLE OR BEAM, BOTH SIDES OF

STUD, FULL HEIGHT OF ATTACHMENT
 .H 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT

NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)
.I NOT USED
.J (2) LAYERS 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM

BOARD (EXCEPT REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED
CONSTRUCTION)

 .K (2) LAYERS EACH SIDE 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT
REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

.L 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT
REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .M (1) LAYER EACH SIDE 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT
REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .N (2) LAYERS EACH SIDE 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT REGULAR
GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .O NOT USED
.P 1/2" SHEATHING

 .Q 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD ON DRYWALL SUSPENSION SYSTEM
(EXCEPT REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .R EDGE BEAD
 .S CORNER BEAD
 .T "Z" FURRING @ 16" OC
 .U RESILIENT CHANNELS @ 16" OC
 .V ACOUSTIC BLANKETS

.W 1/2" CEMENT BOARD

.X DEFLECTION TRACK

09 30 00 .A CERAMIC TILE (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE FOR TYPE/LOCATIONS)
 .B SOLID SURFACE WINDOW STOOL

09 65 00 .A RUBBER BASE (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE)

09 68 00 .A CARPET (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE)

09 80 00 .A SUSPENDED ACOUSTICAL CEILING (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE)

DIVISION 10  SPECIALTIES
10 01 00 .A ENTRANCE MAT RECESSED

DIVISION 12  FURNISHINGS
12 35 50 .A CASEWORK (SEE PLAN AND INTERIOR ELEVATIONS)

DIVISION 22  PLUMBING
22 00 00 .A RAIN WATER LEADER (SEE MECHANICAL)

.B VENT STACK (SEE MECHANICAL)

DIVISION 23  MECHANICAL
23 00 00 .A MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT UNIT ANCHORED TO CURB WITH

GASKETED SCREWS (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .B PREFABRICATED ALUMINUM CURB FURNISHED BY MECHANICAL AND

INSTALLED BY GENERAL CONTRACTOR
 .C WELD CURB TO STEEL DECK OR CHANNEL (BY GENERAL

CONTRACTOR)
 .D PIPE (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .E VENT PIPE W/ INSECT SCREEN BY MECHANICAL @ GAS CURB ONLY -

OMIT @ CONDENSER CURB
 .F STACK OR FLUE WITH HOOD (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .G METAL LINING (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .H DUCT (SEE MECHANICAL)

DIVISION 31  SITEWORK
31 00 00 .A 6" MIN SAND CUSHION
 .B FINISH GRADE (SEE SITE PLAN)

.C COARSE FILTER AGGREGATE

DIVISION 33  UTILITIES
33 46 13 .A DRAIN TILE

10 CANOPY SECTION
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

133



NOTE: PROVIDE ONE @ EACH PS NOTE ON
PLAN, (MIN ONE PER CLASSROOM WHERE
NOT NOTED)

3" x 1/2" x 1/8" x 4" ALUMINUM
CHANNEL BY SECTION 05 50 00 -
REMOVE ALL BURRS

FIELD DRILL AND TAP FOR
OWNERS PENCIL SHARPENER

2 - #10 - 1 1/2" FHMS IN LEAD
SHIELDS

HORIZONTAL
MORTAR JOINT

MAP-TAK MT-1

CORK INSERT

MAP HOOKS
36" OC

SEE
ELEVATION FOR
DIM

SEE ELEV
FOR DIM
AND
MATERIAL

PANEL
DIM

SEE ELEV
FOR DIM
AND
MATERIAL

PANEL
DIMENSION

J-111
CHALK
TRAY

SEE ELEVATION
FOR DIM AND
MATERIAL

PANEL
DIMENSION

J-5 PERIMETER
TRIM

J-2 MAP
RAIL

CORK
INSERT

MAP
HOOKS
36" OC

J-5 PERIM
TRIM

3/16" TYP
5/16" AT HEAD

27 MAP TACK STRIP
SCALE: 6" = 1'-0" 29 MAP TACK TRIM

SCALE: 6" = 1'-0"

 

 

 

28 EDGE TRIM
SCALE: 6" = 1'-0" 30 CHALK TRAY

SCALE: 6" = 1'-0"

 
 

   

 

 

3
'-4

"
M

A
X 

A
FF

31 PENCIL SHARPENER PLATE
SCALE: 6" = 1'-0"

37
CERAMIC TILE (CT)/CARPET (CPT)
TRANSITION DETAIL
SCALE: 6" = 1'-0"

CERAMIC TILE (CT) CARPET (CPT)

SOLID SURFACE
THRESHOLD BY

09 30 00

LIGHTING BY
DIVISION 26

WIRE HANGERS @ 2'-0"
OC ALL SIDES OF FIXTURE
BY SECTION 09 80 00

SUPPORTING GRID MEMBER
BY SECTION 09 80 00

ACB- SEE SECTION 09 80 00

32 RECESSED TROFFER
SCALE: 3" = 1'-0"

S
EE

 R
FS

FO
R
 H

T
S
EE

 R
FS

S
EE

 R
FS

FO
R
 H

T

34 COVED CT / QT BASE
SCALE: 3" = 1'-0"

33 RUBBER BASE @ CARPET
SCALE: 3" = 1'-0" 35 COVED RUBBER BASE

SCALE: 3" = 1'-0"

36
SRT (OR CONC)/CARPET
FLOOR TRANSITION
SCALE: 3" = 1'-0" 38

RFM/CPT
FLOOR TRANSITION
SCALE: 3" = 1'-0"

SRT OR CONCRETE
(OR VCT)

SNAP-DOWN
DIVIDER/EDGING

CARPET

TRANSITION TRACK

RECESSED
FLOOR MAT BY
10 01 00

ALUM FRAME
EDGE BY RFM
MFR

CARPET

OUTLINE OF
DOOR

TRANSITION
TRACK

SNAP-DOWN
DIVIDER/EDGING

CT OR QT - SEE
RFS

COVED CT OR QT
BASE - SEE RFS
FOR HEIGHT

CARPET

NO COVE

SEE RFS

DEPRESS
SLAB 1/4"

1 LAYER GYP BD
(BOTH SIDES) SEE TYP
WALL TYPES FOR THICK

@ FIRE-RATED CONST: PROVIDE MFR
TESTED ASSEMBLY USING SAFING INSUL
OR GYP RATED CJ- ADJUST STUD POSITION
AND SPACING AS REQD FOR APPROVED
ASSEMBLY

1 5/8"

DRYWALL CORNER BEAD AND
JOINT COMPOUND

PACK WITH SOUND
ATTENUATION BATTS

3 5/8" STL STUDS
16" OC-UNO

TAPE AND JOINT
COMPOUND/
REINFORCEMENT

3 5/8" ST STUDS 16" OC

PACK WITH SOUND
ATTENUATION BATTS FULL
THICKNESS OF STUDS
(NON-RATED CONST)

SEALANT CONTINUOUS
(BOTH SIDES)

E-Z STRIP CJ
(BOTH SIDES)

ALLOW GYP BD TO SLIDE
ON OVERTRACK

CONT OVERTRACK W/ 3"
LEG - ANCHOR TO
STRUCTURE @ 24" OC

FILL VOIDS WITH
INSULATION

1
 1

/2
" E

J
1
 3

/8
" M

IN
1
 5

/8
" M

IN
FILL FLUTE VOIDS W/ SAFING
INSULATION PROVIDE FIRE CAULKING
EACH SIDE AT FIRE RATED WALLS

STEEL ANGLE EA SIDE, ATTACH TO
STRUCT ABOVE (1'∠ - 4' OC) SEE STRUCT
FOR ANGLE SIZE & ATTACH CONTINUOUS
ANGLES ONLY AT EXPOSED LOCATIONS

1" SPACE FOR STRUCT OR DECK
DEFLECTION. FILL VOIDS WITH SAFING
INSUL PROVIDE FIRE CAULKING EACH
SIDE AT FIRE RATED WALLS

STEEL DECK (SIM @ BEAM
OR PLANK - NO FLUTES)

AT JOISTS PERPENDICULAR TO WALL
ALLOW 1" DEFLECTION CLEARANCE
AROUND WEB & CHORD
PENETRATIONS FILL VOIDS W/ SAFING
INSUL PROVIDE FIRE CAULKING EACH
SIDE AT FIRE RATED WALLS

DEEP LEG DEFLECTION
TRACK - ATTACH STUDS
TO THIS TRACK

STEEL
DECK

FASTENERS

18 DRYWALL CORNER
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0" 19 DRYWALL CONTROL JOINT

SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0" 20 DRYWALL TO DECK
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0" 21 BLOCK TO DECK

SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

SEE TYPICAL INTERIOR CJ DETAILS

ROD & CAULK  (NO MORTAR IN
FACE SHELL HEAD JOINT)

ROD & CAULK (NO MORTAR
IN FACE SHELL HD JOINTS)

BRICK TIES 16" OC
VERTICALLY

ROD & CAULK
(NO MORTAR IN JOINT)

1/4" MESH GALV
HDWE CLOTH EA

SECOND COURSE

S
EE

PL
A
N

S
EE

PL
A
N

HORIZONTAL REINFORCING
(DOES NOT CROSS CJ)

HORIZONTAL REINFORCING
(DOES NOT CROSS CJ)

1
 C

S
E

M
IN

CAVITY VENT @
24" OC -

ALTERNATE W/ROPE
WICK - SEE SPEC

FLASHING - 8" MIN
VERTICAL, 1" INTO
JOINT FORM END

DAMS

1'-4"
UNO

22 CONTROL JOINT - EXTERIOR
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0" 23 CONTROL JOINT - EXTERIOR

SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0" 24
MODULAR BRICK
FLASH/WEEPS AT BLOCK
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

(3") 07 21 00.B
OVER FLASHING

GROUT FULL

03 30 00.F

04 20 00.D

(3") 07 21 00.B

(2")
07 21 00.A

CAVITY VENT @
24" OC -

ALTERNATE W/ROPE
WICK - SEE SPEC

FLASHING - 8" MIN
VERTICAL, 1" INTO
JOINT FORM END

DAMS

25
MODULAR BRICK
LINTEL FLASH/WEEP @ BLOCK
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

EXPOSE FLASHING

(3") 07 21 00.B

BENT PLATE - SEE
STRUCTURAL

26
MODULAR BRICK
LINTEL FLASH/WEEP @ BLOCK
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

CAVITY VENT @
24" OC -

ALTERNATE W/ROPE
WICK - SEE SPEC

FLASHING - 8" MIN
VERTICAL, 1" INTO
JOINT FORM END

DAMS

EXPOSE FLASHING

(3") 07 21 00.B

05 10 00.B
05 10 00.C

SLOPE DOWN 1" (TYP)

CJ

CJ

CJCJ

CAULK CJ WITH
SILICONE (TYP)

CAULK PERIMETER
WITH SILICONE (TYP)

CAST STONE CAP - 4 PIECES
(SECTION 03 30 00

2
'-8

"

1
'-4

"

40 CANOPY CAP PLAN
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0"

STEEL COLUMN SEE
STRUCTURAL

CL OF COLUMN

2'-8"

1'-4"

1/2" ETHAFOAM AROUND
ENTIRE PERIMETER OF
COLUMN

CJ

CJ

CJCJ

BRICK

4" CMU BACKUP

ADJUSTABLE TIES @ 16" OC
VERTICAL @ EACH SIDE -
WELD TO COLUMN

2
'-8

"

8
"

41 HORIZONTAL SECTION THROUGH CANOPY PIER
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0"

STEEL COLUMN SEE
STRUCTURAL

CL OF COLUMN

2'-8"

8" 8"

8
"

17 NOT USED
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

8
"

2
'-0

"
9
 C

S
E 

@
 2

 1
/4

"
8
"

4
"

1
"

2'-8"

FFE
100'-0"

WRAP COLUMN WITH 1/2"
ETHAFOAM

CAST STONE CAP
(SEE 03 30 00)

RAKE & CAULK
HORIZONTAL JOINT

PIN CAST STONE TO CMU
- GROUT SOLID

ADJUSTABLE TIES @ 16"
OC

SLAB ON GRADE - VERIFY
ELEVATION

FLASH AND WEEPS
AROUND PERIMETER

SILICONE CAULK
PERIMETER OF TUBE

STEEL TUBE SEE
STRUCTURAL

1" SLOPECL COL

GROUT SOLID

CONCRETE PIER
FOUNDATION-STEEL PLATE
- 2" GROUT AND ANCHOR
RODS - SEE STRUCTURAL

SOLDIER COURSE-USE 4"
CILPPED HEADERS @
CORNERS

42 VERTICAL SECTION THROUGH CANOPY PIER
SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

03 30 00.E
(TYP)

8" GOLD ANODIZED ALUMINUM BALL,
FLUSH SEAMS, ANCHOR TO POLE

ALUMINUM REVOLVING TRUCK

TAPERED ALUMINUM POLE

(2) 9" CAST ALUMINUM CLEATS

ALUMINUM FLASHING COLLAR

2" DEEP WATER PROOF COMPOUND

(4) HARDWOOD WEDGES - REMOVE
AFTER TAMPING SAND
16 GA GALV CORRUGATED STEEL
TUBE
APPLY ASPHALT EMULSION TO
FLAGPOLE BELOW GRADE

SCREENED DRY SAND - TAMPED
AFTER ALIGNING POLE

3000 PSI CONCRETE
(4) WELDED STEEL CENTERING
WEDGES

STEEL PLATE - 18" x 18" x 1/2" -
WELD TO 3/4" STEEL ROD

STEEL PLATE - 8" x 8" x 1/2" - WELD
TO 3/4" STEEL ROD

3 1/2"

4
'-0

"

4
'-8

"

8
"

2'-8"

12"
DIA

8"
DIA

2
'-4

"

4
0
'-0

"

39 FLAG POLE & BASE
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

4'-0"
5607

4
'-0

"

4'-0"
5607

3'-0"
5606

3'-0"
5606

3'-0"
5606

4'-0"
5607

4
'-0

"

4'-0"
5607

11 KINDERGARTEN CLASSROOM
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"10 KINDERGARTEN CLASSROOM

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

18" DEEP18" DEEP
2" FILLER

3 WORK SPACE
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"2 WORK SPACE

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"1 SCHOOL OFFICE
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

6 NURSE
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"5 NURSE

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"4 PRINCIPAL OFFICE
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

24" DEEP

9500

SEE-THRU MAIL
BOXES (56)

4'-0" 4'-0"

3
'-0

"
2
'-3

"

9500

1

5

24" DEEP

3'-2"

OUTLINE OF COPIER
BEYOND

LOW WALL

2'-9"
1002

2'-9"
1002

24" DEEP

9500

2'-6"
1002 2" FILLER

4'-0"4'-0"

3
'-0

"
2
'-3

"

9500

1

4
5

4"

3'-2"

SEE-THRU MAIL
BOXES (56)

3'-0"

5262

3'-0"3'-0"

11625281M

3'-0"

1102

3'-0"

1102

3'-0"

1102
24" DEEP

3 1/2" 3'-0" 3'-0" 3 1/2"

EQ
FILLER

EQ
FILLER

1

4
4

5

5

P-LAM ADJUSTABLE
SHELVES

LOW WALL

1102
2'-9"

1102
2'-9" 3'-3 1/2"

KNEE
SPACE

1

1'-6"
1215

1'-6"
1215

3052
3'-0"

3052
2'-9"

3052
2'-9"2"

2"
FILLER

2"
FILLER

55

1102
3'-0"

24" DEEP 24" DEEP 24" DEEP

3'-0"

2
'-6

"

1'-2" 2'-0"

2"FILLER

3002
3'-0"

1132

3052
3'-0"

3052
3'-0"

4 9 2

4

1'-6"
1215

1'-6"
1215

3'-0"

KNEE
SPACE

3'-0"2'-0"

2
'-6

"
2
'-0

"
2
'-6

"

FULL WALL FOR
PRIVACY CALLS

OPEN TO VIEW
COTS AREA
BEYOND

LATERAL FILES
2'-8" 5'-10"

KNEE
SPACE

2'-9"
1002

2'-9"
1002

2'-6"
10022" FILLER

4

2'-9"2'-9"
1351

2'-6"
2" FILLER1351 1351

77

5
5

7 7 7 TYPTYP

TYP

TYP

TYP
7TYP

9

4

77

5
4

4

TYP TYP

2
'-1

0
"

7
'-0

"

PROVIDE LOCKS PROVIDE LOCKSPROVIDE LOCKS

2'-0"

18

NOTE:PROVIDE
REQUIRED BRACING
FOR COUNTER (TYP)

NOTE:PROVIDE SUPPORTING
ANGLE AT BACK

4'-0"3'-0"
1002
3'-0" 3'-0"

3102

SINK

4'-0"

2
'-0

"

3
'-0

"
1
'-1

0
"49

3'-0"3'-0" 3'-0" 3'-0"
3102 3102 3102

1002 1002 1002
24" DEEP

45

9A KINDERGARTEN CLASSROOM
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

2
'-2

"

2

2" FILLER

2" FILLER

4
5

7 TYP

3052

1132

SINK W/
BUBBLER

16

3'-0"

12 RECEPTION DESK 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

142
'-6

"

14

7

1
'-3

"

2
'-6

"

7

1

1
'-3

"

3
'-9

"

13 RECEPTION DESK 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

P-LAM COLOR 1 & 2
3MM THICK PVC COLOR 3 & 4

19

19
2'-6" 1'-6"

1002 1350

1'-6"

1350

3'-7" 5'-6" 3'-7"

1 P-LAM COLOR 1 & 2

3MM THICK PVC
COLOR 3 & 4

3
'-9

"

3
'-9

"

2
"

2
'-6

"

2
"

2
'-4

 3
/4

"
1
 1

/4
"

1
'-1

"

1
'-1

"

9 1/2"

77

14
A4.0

15
A4.0

14 RECEPTION DESK 
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" 15 RECEPTION DESK 

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

12
A4.0

P-LAM
BACK

7 TYP

PROVIDE LOCKS PROVIDE LOCKS PROVIDE LOCKS

PROVIDE LOCKS

SINK

3'-7" 3'-7"

PROVIDE GROMMET EACH
SIDE IN COUNTER

24" DEEP

2'-0" 2'-0"

8 COT ROOM
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

3'-0"

5062
24" DEEP

2"
FILLER

4

5

7
'-0

"

PROVIDE LOCKS

3'-0"

5062

7 TOILET
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

PROVIDE LOCK

6'-0"

1
'-6

"

COT BY OWNER

3
'-6

"

3
'-0

"
1
'-6

"

1
'-0

"16

RAIN WATER
PIPING SEE

MECH

3'-0"
1002
3'-0" 3'-0"

1002 1002 1002
24" DEEP

16 KINDERGARTEN CLASSROOM
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

2
'-2

"

1

5

7 TYP
3'-0"

52632"
FILLER

5

7TYP
3'-0"

5062

4

7
'-0

"

4'-0"
1410
35" DEEP

3'-6"
1260
1'-6"

1260
1'-6"

1260
1'-6"MB 6'-0"

SEE FLOOR PLAN

2
'-0

"
4
'-0

"

MARKERBOARD

MARKERBOARD W/ MAP TACK
STRIP AT TOP - SEE DETAILS

27, 28, 29 & 30/A6.0

9C MARKERBOARD/SMARTBOARD
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

CUT HOLE IN SIDE OF
CABINET FOR RAIN
WATER PIPE
COORDINATE W/
MECHANICAL

NOTE: TOTAL
LOCKERS (28)

3'-0"
5606

6'-0"

1
'-1

0
"

4
'-0

"

9B TYPICAL TACKBOARD
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

2
'-0

"
5
'-0

"

1'-6"
3062

2"
FILLER

8'-0" & 12'-0",
SEE FLOOR PLAN

3
'-0

"
4
'-0

"

MARKERBOARDS
W/ TACKSTRIP AT TOP

MARKERBOARD W/ MAP TACK
STRIP AT TOP - SEE FLOOR PLAN

FOR SIZE-SEE DETAILS
27, 28, 29 & 30/A6.0

3B TYPICAL MARKERBOARD/TACKBOARD
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

MB 6'-0"
SEE FLOOR PLAN

MARKERBOARD SMARTBOARD
BY OWNER

5'-5 1/4"

4
'-1

 1
/2

"

5
'-0

"

North

A
 R

 C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 S

   
 R

 E
 G

 O
  +

  Y
 O

 U
 N

 G
 Q

 U
 I 

S 
T

76
01

 W
ay

za
ta

 B
ou

le
va

rd
   

Su
ite

 2
00

   
St

. L
ou

is
 P

ar
k,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

54
26

Ph
on

e:
 9

52
-5

44
-8

94
1 

  F
ax

: 9
52

-5
44

-0
58

5 
  a

ry
ar

ch
.c

om

Revised

Checked by
Date

Drawn by

I h
er

eb
y 

ce
rti

fy
 th

at
 th

is
 p

la
n 

w
as

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

m
e 

or
 u

nd
er

 m
y 

di
re

ct
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
th

at
 I 

am
 a

 d
ul

y
Li

ce
ns

ed
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
la

w
s

of
 th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 M

in
ne

so
ta

.

Sheet Title

C
om

m
is

si
on

 N
um

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Sheet Number

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

N
um

be
r

20
15

H
A

N
O

V
ER

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

IS
D

 #
87

7 
   

 H
an

ov
er

, M
N

20
52

02/09/15
00/00/00

PA
U

L 
Y

O
U

N
G

Q
U

IS
T

 1
30

31

• ALL NUMBERS ARE TAKEN FROM LSI CORPORATION OF AMERICA, INC. 1996 CATALOG, 8TH
EDITION

• FURNISH SCRIBE/FILLER PANELS AT ANY GAPS, TOPS, AND SIDES.
• ALL ITEMS LISTED TO BE PROVIDED BY CASEWORK CONTRACTOR, UNO
• LOCK ALL DOORS AND DRAWERS AT ART AND SCIENCE CASEWORK, EXCEPT SINK CABINET
• OPEN UNITS TO HAVE ADJUSTABLE SHELVES - TYPICAL UNO, SEE PRODUCT NUMBERS
• PROVIDE LABELS AND HOLDERS AT ALL SCIENCE CASEWORK DRAWERS AND CUPBOARDS
• SEE SPECIFICATION FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND REQUIREMENTS
• PROVIDE LOCKS AT ALL WARDROBES - TYPICAL

GENERAL NOTES: CASEWORK

1. PLAM COUNTERTOP
2. PLAM COUNTERTOP AND 4" HIGH BACKSPLASH
3. 4" HIGH PLAM SIDE SPLASH
4. FINISHED END
5. FILLER PANEL - SCRIBE TO WALL
6. SCRIBE
7. RUBBER BASE ON CASEWORK - BY GENERAL CONTRACTOR
8. LOCK ON DOORS AND DRAWERS AS INDICATED BY CIRCLE FOR LOCK OR NOTED
9. SINKS AND FAUCETS - BY MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR
10. POWER OR DATE RECEPTACLE BY ELEC OR COMM CONTRACTORS
11. 2" x 2" STEEL ANGLE AT EACH END OF COUNTERTOP
12. SUPPORT BRACKETS AT 3'-0" ± OC - UNO
13. KNEE SPACE
14. KEYBOARD TRAY
15. 2" GROMMETS - UNO
16. PAPER TOWEL HOLDER - BY OWNER
17. COPIER - BY OWNER
18. REFRIGERATOR - BY OWNER
19. 1" P-LAM PANEL
20. 2" THICK CHANGING TABLE PAD

GENERAL NOTES: KEYNOTES: CASEWORK - INDICATED W/ NUMBER IN CIRCLE 12

A6.0

DRL

INTERIOR
ELEVATIONS
AND
MISCELLANEOUS
DETAILS

BR

134



TOILET
A117

EX CLASSROOM
A118

KINDERGARTEN
A115

CORR
A114

VESTIBULE
A100

MAIL/COPIER
A104

OFFICE MANAGER
A103

PRINCIPAL
A106

COTS
A109

OFFICE
A107

CONFERENCE
A108

TOILET
A110

NURSE
A111

ADMIN OFFICE
A101

CORR
A105

CORR
A112

CORR
A113

TOILET
A116

6
A7.0

ACB #1

ACB #2

ACB #3

ACB #3

ACB #3

VEST
A119

CORR
A120

ACB #3
108'-6"
CEILING HT 108'-10"

CEILING HT

108'-10"
CEILING HT

108'-10"
CEILING HT

108'-2"
CEILING HT

108'-2"
CEILING HT

108'-6"
CEILING HT

108'-7"
CEILING HT

108'-2"
CEILING HT

108'-6"
CEILING HT

108'-6"
CEILING HT

108'-6"
CEILING HT

WAITING
A102

5
A7.0

5
A7.0

5
A7.0

SIM

HANOVER-KEY PLAN

A2.1

RCP GENERAL NOTES:

2' x 4' RECESSED FLUORESCENT
FIXTURE (SEE DETAILS)

RECESSED INCANDESCENT FIXTURE

CEILING MOUNTED EXIT LIGHT -
SEE DIV 26 FOR EXIT PLAN

AIR DIFFUSER

RETURN AIR

2' x 2' RECESSED FLUORESCENT
FIXTURE (SEE DETAILS)

1' x 4' RECESSED FLUORESCENT
FIXTURE (SEE DETAILS)

PENDANT FLUORESCENT FIXTURE

GYPSUM BOARD
CEILING OR SOFFIT

DESIGNATION DESCRIPTION

NEW 2'x2' ACB CEILING - SEE SECTION
09 80 00 AND RFS FOR TYPES

32
A6.0

RCP GENERAL NOTES:

1. VERIFY MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL SIZE, TYPE, LOCATION,
QUANTITY, ETC WITH MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

2. ACB CEILINGS VARIES AFF SEE REFLECTED CEILING PLAN AND
RFS. GYPSUM BOARD CEILINGS 8'-0" AFF UNO.

3. VERIFY SIZES OF MECHANICAL SYSTEMS WITH MECHANICAL
PLANS.

4. GRIDS ARE CENTERED IN ROOMS UNO.

1
'-4

"

3
 5

/8
"

4
 3

/4
"

7
 5

/8
"

10'-0" R

BRICK
CAVITY

BLOCK

OUTLINE OF CURVED WALL
BELOW AND ABOVE-USE 8 X 8
04 20 00.B

SOLID SURFACE STOOL
ALUM SNAP TRIM

USE 8 X 8 04 20 00.BN
TYP AT CURVED WALL

ROWLOCK BRICK SILL

3'-5" ±
 WINDO

W

3'-
5" 
± 
WIN
DO
W

3'
-5
" ±
 W
IN
DO
W

3
'-5
" ±
 W
IN
D
O
W

.125 ALUM BENT
COVER

CUT .125 ALUM SILL
TO PROFILE OF CURVE

ACTUATOR AND CARD
ACCESS LOCATION

OUTLINE OF CURVED
WALL BELOW

NOTE: SILICONE ALL JOINTS

STEEL TUBE SEE STRUCTURE
SHEETS

NOTE: FILL ALL CAVITIES WITH
INSULATION

3
A7.0

4
A7.03

3

3

3

WINDOW TYPES SEE
SHEET A3.0 (TYP)

FIN TUBE SEE MECHANICAL

.125 ALUMINUM BREAK METAL BY
08 10 00.A TYP

07 90 00.A CONTINUOUS AT
PERIMETER OF ALUMINUM SILL
AND ROWLOCK BRICK

07 90 00.A & B

CONCRETE BLOCK GROUT SOLID
@ LINTEL BEARING

07 90 00.A & B BOTH SIDES TYP

1 X 4 SNAP TRIM BY 08 51 00.A

INSULATED GLAZING AND
INTEGRAL BLINDS  BY 08 51 00.A

SOLID SURFACE STOOL W/ EASED
EDGES IN 1/8" BED OF SILICONE
ADHESIVE

SEE EXTERIOR WALL TYPE

.125 ALUMINUM SILL CUT AT
SAME PROFILE AS CURVED WALL
BY 08 10 00.A TYP

ANCHORS BY 08 10 00.A TYP AT
HEAD, JAMBS AND SILL

06 20 00.D

3 ALUMINUM WINDOW JAMB DETAIL
SCALE: 3" = 1'-0"

NOTE: FILL ALL FRAMES (JAMBS,
HEAD AND SILL) WITH FOAM
INSULATION (TYP)

1
'-4

"

OUTLINE OF WALL BELOW

EDGE OF ROWLOCK
BRICK

.125 ALUMINUM BREAK METAL BY 08 10 00.A
CAULK AT ALL PERIMETERS (TYP)

07 90 00.A CONTINUOUS AT
PERIMETER OF ALUMINUM SILL
AND ROWLOCK BRICK

GANG BOX FOR ACTUATOR AND CARD ACCESS
IS ALSO LOCATED IN THIS JAMB COORDINATE
SIZE OF HOLES REQUIRED FOR EACH

.125 ALUMINUM SILL CUT AT
SAME PROFILE AS CURVED WALL
BY 08 10 00.A TYP

ANCHORS BY 08 10 00.A TYP AT
HEAD, JAMBS AND SILL

.125 ALUMINUM BREAK METAL TYP

1 X 4 SNAP TRIM BY 08 51 00.A

INSULATED GLAZING AND
INTEGRAL BLINDS  BY 08 51 00.A

SOLID SURFACE STOOL W/ EASED
EDGES IN 1/8" BED OF SILICONE
ADHESIVE

NOTE: FILL ALL FRAMES (JAMBS,
HEAD AND SILL) WITH FOAM
INSULATION (TYP)

4 ALUMINUM WINDOW JAMB DETAIL
SCALE: 3" = 1'-0"

07 90 00.A & B

OUTLINE OF WALL BELOW

2 1/2" X 3" STEEL TUBE COLUMN
SEE STRUCTURAL SHEETS

OUTLINE OF WALL BELOW

3"±

3" 
±

EDGE OF ROWLOCK
BRICK-USE EPOXY
MORTAR

1
0
 1

/8
"

1"

5 SOFFIT DETAIL 
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

GYP
8'-0"

ACB
8'-2"

09 29 00.B
TO DECK

09 80 00.A 09 29 00.K

09 29 00.S EACH SIDE

ALIGN WITH LINE OF WALL BEYOND

09 80 00.A

ABC
8'-10"

4
" T

YP

4
" T

YP

09 29 00.B TO DECK

109'-2"
CEILING ELEV

108'-7"+-
CEILING ELEV

EXISTING CONSTRUCTION
SHOWN SHADED

ALIGN WITH EXISTING
GRID BEYOND

MATCH HEIGHT WITH
EXISTING CEILING BEYOND

09 80 00.A

09 80 00.A

6 SOFFIT DETAIL 
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

ACB
8'-2"

09 80 00.A @
A105 & A104

1
'-4

"

2'-0" 1'-4" 1'-4"

8
"

BULL NOSE EDGES
AND CORNERS OF
CMU (TYP)

BULL NOSE EDGES
AND CORNERS OF
CMU (TYP)

16" CMU WITH
WALL TYP #7

7 ENLARGE PLAN AT ENTRANCE
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

North

A
 R

 C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 S

   
 R

 E
 G

 O
  +

  Y
 O

 U
 N

 G
 Q

 U
 I 

S 
T

76
01

 W
ay

za
ta

 B
ou

le
va

rd
   

Su
ite

 2
00

   
St

. L
ou

is
 P

ar
k,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

54
26

Ph
on

e:
 9

52
-5

44
-8

94
1 

  F
ax

: 9
52

-5
44

-0
58

5 
  a

ry
ar

ch
.c

om

Revised

Checked by
Date

Drawn by

I h
er

eb
y 

ce
rti

fy
 th

at
 th

is
 p

la
n 

w
as

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

m
e 

or
 u

nd
er

 m
y 

di
re

ct
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
th

at
 I 

am
 a

 d
ul

y
Li

ce
ns

ed
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
la

w
s

of
 th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 M

in
ne

so
ta

.

Sheet Title

C
om

m
is

si
on

 N
um

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Sheet Number

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

N
um

be
r

20
15

H
A

N
O

V
ER

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

IS
D

 #
87

7 
   

 H
an

ov
er

, M
N

20
52

02/09/15
00/00/00

PA
U

L 
Y

O
U

N
G

Q
U

IS
T

 1
30

31

A7.0

DRL

REFLECTED
CEILING PLAN,
NOTES AND
MISCELLANEOUS
DETAILS

...BR

1 REFLECTED CEILING PLAN
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

2 LARGE PLAN OF WINDOWS AT CURVED WALL 
SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

135



4 ROOF EDGE DETAIL
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0"1 ROOF DETAIL

SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

6'-0" SQUARE SUMP

CL
DRAIN

CL

8 ROOF DRAIN
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

07 5100.F SET BY 07 5100,
CONNECT BY DIVISION 22

05 30 00.A

05 10 00.A
SST STRAP

22 00 00.A

COORDINATE
W/ DIVISION 22

CL

07 51 00.B

BUR BUR

BUR

3 MECHANICAL CURB
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" BUR

* COORDINATE WITH MECH

8
" M

IN

06 20 00.A

05 30 00.A
23 00 00.B
05 10 00.A

07 21 00.A

23 00 00.A

07 5100.A

23 00 00.B

07 51 00.H

3" 3"

CAP SHEET

5 PLUMBING VENT
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

FLASHING CEMENT

GALV STACK FLASHING
- SET IN BED OF
SEALANT

22 00 00.B

BUR

07 2100.D&E

07 51 00.A

07 51 00.C
05 30 00.A

3"3" 6"
CAP SHEET

07 51 00.B

METAL FLASHING - SET IN BED
OF SEALANT

CAP SHEET

07 51 00.E
07 51 00.A

07 51 00.C

7 OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0" BUR

6'-0" SQUARE SUMP

CL
DRAIN

CL
07 51 00.G SET BY 07 5100,
CONNECT BY DIVISION 22

05 30 00.A

05 10 00.A
SST STRAP
 22 00 00.A

COORDINATE
W/ DIVISION 22

CL

07 51 00.E
METAL FLASHING - SET IN BED
OF SEALANT

CAP SHEET
07 51 00.A

07 51 00.B

07 51 00.B
07 51 00.C

07 51 00.C

EXISTING CAVITY FLASHING BEYOND -
COVERED BY NEW ADDITION

EXISTING CAVITY FLASHING
@ CORNER

NEW
CAVITY

FLASHING

INSERT FLASHING
INTO CMU

9 NEW TO EXIST CAVITY FLAHING
SCALE: NTS

CORNER CAVITY FLASHING FROM
NEW ONTO EXISTING.  REMOVE AND
REPLACE EXISTING BRICK TO INSTALL .
SEE SECTION 04 20 00 FOR MATERIALS, ETC.

3/4" PERLITE

6 PENETRATION POCKET @ CANOPY SUPPORT
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

SHEET METAL PITCH PAN -
SET IN BED OF SEALANT
AND ANCHOR TO
BLOCKING

23 00 00.D

07 51 00.A

07 51 00.C
05 30 00.A

3"3" 4"
CAP SHEET

07 51 00.B

FILL WITH PITCH
POCKET FILLER

FLASHING CEMENT

06 20 00.A

NON-SHRINK GROUT

3/4" PERLITE 3/4" PERLITE

3/4" PERLITE

10 ROOF EDGE DETAIL
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

11 ROOF EDGE DETAIL
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0" BUR

BUR

12 ROOF EDGE DETAIL
SCALE:NTS BUR 13 OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN

SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0" BUR

16  CAP DETAIL @ EXISTING CURB
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

15 ROOF EDGE DETAIL
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

3/4" PERLITE

3/4" PERLITE3/4" PERLITE

4
"

M
IN

EXIST WALL

NEW ADDITIONEXISTING

PREFIN SHEET METAL
SHROUD

3
"

3
"

6"

CL OF COLUMN

 SILICONE SEALANT

PITCH POCKET
FILLER

GALVANIZED PITCH
POCKET BOX

NEW ROOFING
& INSUL

COLUMN BEARING
PLATE

CUT BOND BEAM
FROM LINTEL BLOCK

N
EW

 W
A
LL

EX
IS

TI
N
G

 W
A
LL

SEALANT

PREFIN METAL
FLASHING OVER
UNDERLAYMENT
MEMBRANE

PATCH INTO
EXISTING BUILT
UP ROOFING

3
"

3
"

07 51 00.C

2

82 6

ROOFING TYP
TEMP WEIGHT

TEMP 15# FELT

SPIKE WOOD
BLOCKS TOGETHER

SEAL

18 TEMP WATER CUT-OFF
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

1
"

14 MECHANICAL CURB @ EXISTING ROOF
SCALE: 1 1/2" = 1'-0"

8
" M

IN

05 30 00.A
23 00 00.B

07 21 00.A

23 00 00.A

23 00 00.B

EXTEND 07 51 00.H UP
AND OVER CURB

07 53 00.D

07 53 00.B
EXISTING

LAP NEW BASE
SHEET OVER
EXISTING ROOFING

1'-6"

07 53 00.D
EXISTING

BUR

OPENING CUT IN EXISTING STEEL JOIST &
DECK - COORDINATE W/ MECHANICAL
& STRUCTURAL

6" MIN
3" 3"

HEMMED EDGE

3/4" PERLITE

07 51 00.C

GRACE ULTRA (ROOFING
UNDERLAYMENT) EXTEND UP
AND OVER BLOCKING

07 51 00.H

OVERLAP EXIST
BUR WITH

07 51 00.H

2" MIN

4
" M

IN

PREFIN SHEET METAL
SHROUD

07 60 00.C
07 60 00.B
07 60 00.A

DEMO EXISTING METAL
CAP AND KEEPER STRIP

HEMMED EDGE

07 60 00.E

HEMMED EDGE

07 60 00.E

3" 3"

06 20 00.A

06 20 00.A

07 51 00.A
07 51 00.B

07 51 00.C

05 10 00.A
05 30 00.A

SHADED AREA
DENOTES EXISTING

SHADED AREA
DENOTES EXISTING

SHADED AREA
DENOTES EXISTING

SHADED AREA
DENOTES EXISTING

SHADED AREA
DENOTES EXISTING SHADED AREA

DENOTES EXISTING

BUILT UP
ROOFING

(EXISTING) TO
REMAIN

(1") 07 51 00.B

3/4" PLYWOOD
07 60 00.B
07 60 00.A

17 MECHANICAL CURB  DETAIL @ IINERTIA PAD
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

8
" M

IN

06 20 00.A
07 21 00.A

23 00 00.A

23 00 00.B

07 51 00.H

CAP SHEET
(FELT BASE
FLASHING)

3"3"
3/4" PERLITE

4
"

1
"

4" CONC SLAB
(SEE STRUCT)
1" CONFORM
DECK (SEE
STRUCT)

23 00 00.B
05 30 00.A

07 51 00.B
07 51 00.C

07 51 00.A

3"3"

1
"

07 51 00.E

END MEMBRANE
BEHIND HOOK STRIP

07 60 00.B
07 60 00.A

04 20 00.A

FOAM JOINT TIGHT

04 2000.E

06 20 00.F

EXTEND 07 5100.H
UP AND OVER
BLOCKING

04 20 00.E

06 2000.A
45° OVERLAP IN BLOCKING
- SCREW TO EACH OTHER

@ 12" OC
07 6000.C

FOAM JOINT TIGHT
06 2000.F

07 5100.A

SILL SEALER

06 2000.D

CAP SHEET
(FELT BASE
FLASHING)

FOAM JOINT TIGHT

07 5100.C
07 5100.B

05 1000.A
05 3000.A

04 2000.C
05 2000.A

HEMMED EDGE

SHADED AREA
DENOTES EXISTING

2
"

07 53 00.E

07 53 00.D
3/4" PERLITE
07 53 00.B

07 53 00.K SET BY
07 53 00, CONNECT

BY DIVISION 22

1'-6"

3"3"

NOTE: (PATCHING EXIST BUR)
OVER THE  NEW BASE SHEET
INSTALL 3 ADDITIONAL LAYERS
OF FELTS OVERLAPPING THE
END OF THE PREVIOUS BY A
MIN 6" (SEE SPEC SECTION)

NOTE: SEE SHEET M6.1 FOR LOCATION
AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

NOTE: SEE SHEET M6.1 FOR LOCATION
AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

06 20 00.A

3" 3"

3"3"

(1/2") PLYWOOD (FIRE
TREATED @ 24"

VERTICAL OR HIGHER)

FIRE TREATED BLOCKING)

FIRE TREATED BLOCKING)

1/2" EXTRUDED
POLYSTYRENE

(1/2") PLYWOOD (FIRE
TREATED @ 24"
VERTICAL OR HIGHER)
ATTACHED TO BRICK

NOTE: (PATCHING EXIST BUR)
OVER THE  NEW BASE SHEET
INSTALL 3 ADDITIONAL LAYERS
OF FELTS OVERLAPPING THE
END OF THE PREVIOUS BY A
MIN 6" (SEE SPEC SECTION)

NOTE: (PATCHING EXIST BUR) OVER THE  NEW BASE SHEET
INSTALL 3 ADDITIONAL LAYERS OF FELTS OVERLAPPING THE
END OF THE PREVIOUS BY A MIN 6" (SEE SPEC SECTION)

07 60 00.B
07 60 00.A

EXTEND 07 5100.H
UP AND OVER

BLOCKING

1
"

07 51 00.E

END MEMBRANE
BEHIND HOOK STRIP

SEE DETAIL 1/A8.0 FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

07 51 00.A

NOTCH BOND BEAM
(SEE STRUCTURAL)

05 10 00.A

04 20 00.C

06 20 00.A
05 30 00.B

07 53 00.D

3/4" PERLITE

FOAM JOINT TIGHT (TYP)

07 60 00.E

HEMMED EDGE

HEMMED EDGE

07 60 00.E

HEMMED EDGE

07 51 00.B
07 62 00.F

FIRE TREATED BLOCKING

1 1/2" EXTRUDED
POLYSTYRENE

(1/2") PLYWOOD (FIRE
TREATED @ 24"
VERTICAL OR HIGHER)

FIRE TREATED WOOD
BLOCKING
(2 1/2") 07 2100.B

04 2000.C
TDE

VARIES

TOM
113'-4"

TOM (EXISTING)
110'-8" (FIELD VERIFY)

3/4" PERLITE

07 60 00.B
CAP SHEET (FELT BASE
FLASHING)

END 07 51 00.H
UNDER 07 60 00.E

07 60 00.C

HEMMED EDGE

07 60 00.B

06 20 00.A

06 20 00.A

07 60 00.E

07 60 00.E

HEMMED EDGE

04 20 00.C
STEEL PLATE
(SEE STRUCTURAL)

END 07 51 00.H
UNDER 07 60 00.E

3/4" PERLITE
07 51 00.A

07 51 00.B

05 30 00.A
05 20 00.A

05 10 00.A

STEEL PLATE
(SEE STRUCTURAL)

(11/2") O7 21 00.C

3"3"

SEE DETAIL 4/A8.0 FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

DASHED LINES INDICATE
DEMOLITION OF ROOF EDGE
CONDITION AND CANT TO
ACCEPT NEW WALL

FIRE TREATED
BLOCKING

1 1/2" EXTRUDED
POLYSTYRENE

FOAM JOINT TIGHT
(1/2") PLYWOOD (FIRE

TREATED @ 24"
VERTICAL OR HIGHER)

FIRE TREATED
BLOCKING

FOAM JOINT TIGHT

DETAIL 4/A8.0 PROFILE
(TOM 113'-4")

WRAP ALL ROOF EDGE SURFACES
W/UNDERLAYMENT MEMBRANE

PRIOR TO COVERING W/
PREFINISHED METAL

CANT

DETAIL 11/A8.0 PROFILE

CANT AND PATCH
INTO EXISTING BUR

TOM 111'-105
8"±

SLOPE DOWN 10 5/8"
SLOPE 39' (2.275%) SLOPE

DOWN SPOUT/GUTTER
FROM CANOPY RUN OFF
OUTLINE OF CANOPY ABOVE
SEE CANOPY PLAN

6
A2.1

JOIST BELOW FOR CANOPY SUPPORT
ABOVE - SEE STRUCTURAL SHEETS

20 ROOF PLAN
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

3
2
'-7

"%
%

1
8
'-8

"

RD

4"

4

4

EX
IS

T
TO

M111'-10 5/8"

TO
M113'-4"

TD
E 

=
 1

1
2
'-3

 5
/8

"
JB

E 
=

 1
1
1
'-1

1
 5

/8
"

TD
E 

=
 1

1
1
'-4

"
JB

E 
=

 1
1
1
'-0

"

TDE = 111'-9 1/8"
JBE = 111'-5 1/8"
top of masonry = 113'-4"
top of insulation = 112'-1 1/8"

OS

TO
M113'-4"

O
S

O
S

ROOF SCREEN BY MECHANICAL
SEE M6.1

FIELD VERIFY
LOCATION

FIELD VERIFY
LOCATION

7
A8.0

8
A8.0

1
A8.0

11
A8.0

1
A8.0

15
A8.0

6
A8.0

13
A8.0

13
A8.0

1
A8.0

10
A8.0

4
A8.0

11
A8.0

SIM

12
A8.3

TD
E 

=
 1

1
2
'-4

"
JB

E 
=

 1
1
2
-0

"

STRUCTURAL TUBES
(PAINTED)

28'-0"

30'-0"

32'-0"

S
LO

PE
 D

O
W

N STEEL TUBES
(PAINTED)

5' X 10' KALWALL
PANELS

COLUMNS BELOW

19 CANOPY ROOF PLAN
SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

GUTTER (PAINTED)
THIS AREA WILL
SPILL ON ROOF
BELOW SLOPE DOWN

GUTTER END
OPEN

5' X 10' KALWALL PANELS

STRUCTURAL TUBES
(PAINTED)

9
A4.1

2
4
'-8
 3
/4
" ±

2
0
'-0

"

5
'-1

"
4
'-1

0
 1

/4
" 4

'-1
0
 1

/4
"4

'-1
0
 1

/4
"

5
'-1

"

8
A4.1

7
A4.1

TYP AT BOTH ENDS

X
X.XX

X
X.XX

LEGEND

ROOF PLAN GENERAL NOTES:
1. REFER TO DIVISION 15 AND 16 DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL ROOF PENETRATIONS NOT
      INDICATED HERE.
2. SEE M6.1 FOR NEW VTR & PRV IN EXISTING ROOF.
3. ALL NEW ROOF AREAS BUILT UP ROOF UNO.
4. FIELD VERIFY NEW OVERFLOW SCUPPER DRAIN LOCATIONS.
5. SEE TYPICAL DETAILS FOR ENTIRE PROJECT: 2,3,5,18.

ROOF PLAN KEYNOTES: LETTERS SHOWN IN CIRCLES ON PLAN

A. CENTER WALKWAY PAD UNDER GUTTER RUN OFF.

ROOF DRAIN ( SEE DETAIL
8/A8.0)

OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN
( SEE DETAIL 7/A8.0 - 2"
ABOVE ROOF MEMBRANE)

THERMAL INSULATION
THICKNESS. PROVIDE 4" AT
ALL ROOFS UNO.

TOP OF MASONRY

EXISTING TOP OF MASONRY

ROOF SLOPE INDICATORS

SLOPED INSULATION ABOVE
THERMAL INSULATION.
INSULATION TO SLOPE 1/2" PER
FOOT UNO.

MECHANICAL OPENING - SEE
MECHANICAL (SEE DETAIL 3/A8.0)

MECHANICAL VENT OR STACK -
SEE MECHANICAL (SEE DETAIL
5/A8.0)

WALKWAY PADS - SEE
SPECIFICATIONS

HATCHED AREA OF ROOFS
INDICATE EXISTING ROOF

A

TO
M 100'-0"

EX
IS

T
TO

M 100'-0"

4

RD

UP

RD ORD

3/4"

4"

07 6000.A

SECTION ELEVATION

PLAN

2 FASCIA JOINT COVER
SCALE: 3" = 1'-0"

07 9000.A

07 6000.G

07 6000.C
07 6000.B

North

A
 R

 C
 H

 I 
T 

E 
C

 T
 S

   
 R

 E
 G

 O
  +

  Y
 O

 U
 N

 G
 Q

 U
 I 

S 
T

76
01

 W
ay

za
ta

 B
ou

le
va

rd
   

Su
ite

 2
00

   
St

. L
ou

is
 P

ar
k,

 M
in

ne
so

ta
 5

54
26

Ph
on

e:
 9

52
-5

44
-8

94
1 

  F
ax

: 9
52

-5
44

-0
58

5 
  a

ry
ar

ch
.c

om

Revised

Checked by
Date

Drawn by

I h
er

eb
y 

ce
rti

fy
 th

at
 th

is
 p

la
n 

w
as

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

m
e 

or
 u

nd
er

 m
y 

di
re

ct
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
th

at
 I 

am
 a

 d
ul

y
Li

ce
ns

ed
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
la

w
s

of
 th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 M

in
ne

so
ta

.

Sheet Title

C
om

m
is

si
on

 N
um

be
r

Pr
oj

ec
t T

itl
e

Sheet Number

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

N
um

be
r

20
15

H
A

N
O

V
ER

 E
LE

M
EN

TA
R

Y
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
LT

ER
A

TI
O

N
S

IS
D

 #
87

7 
   

 H
an

ov
er

, M
N

20
52

02/09/15
00/00/00

PA
U

L 
Y

O
U

N
G

Q
U

IS
T

 1
30

31

A8.0

DRL/PP

ROOF PLAN AND
DETAILS

BR

 KEY NOTES 
DIVISION 03 CONCRETE
03 10 00 .A STOOP VOID FORM

03 30 00 .A FOOTING OR FOUNDATION WALL. SEE STRUCTURAL FOR SIZE,
DEPTH, AND REINFORCING

 .B CONCRETE SLAB ON GRADE - SEE STRUCTURAL
 .C 2" CONCRETE TOPPING
 .D FROST SLAB - SEE STRUCTURAL
 .E 1/2" EXPANSION MATERIAL
 .F VAPOR RETARDER
 .G BOND BREAK MATERIAL

.H KEY WAY
   .I  NOT USED

.J   WATERSTOP

DIVISION 04 MASONRY
04 20 00 .A FACE BRICK  TYPE A, TYPE B, ETC

.B CONCRETE BLOCK (SEE PLAN OR SECTIONS FOR THICKNESS) SEE
ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE AND ELEVATIONS FOR COLOR, SCORING,
FINISH AND PATTERNS - SEE OVERALL PLAN FOR FIRE RATING

 .C CONCRETE BLOCK BOND BEAM (SEE STRUCTURAL FOR SIZE AND
REINFORCING)

 .D SOLID CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT (NO CORES)
 .E SEE STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR

REINFORCING REQUIRED FOR ALL MASONRY WALLS. PROVIDE
HORIZONTAL JOINT REINFORCING 16" OC VERTICALLY
STARTING1'-4" ABOVE FFE 100'-0", UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

 .F GROUT SOLID
 .G FLASHING AND WEEPS
 .H 15 LB BLDG FELT BOND BREAKER

.I   NOT USED
 .J ADJUSTABLE VENEER ANCHORS AT 16" OC HORIZONTALLY
 .K CAVITY VENTILATOR, ALTERNATE W/WICKS @ 24" OC
 .L HORIZONTAL JOINT REINFORCING, SPACING AS SHOWN
 .M CONT 3/8" ETHAFOAM STRIP FULL WIDTH OF MASONRY
 .N GLAZED MASONRY UNIT - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC

.O NOT USED
 .P BURNISHED CONCRETE BLOCK - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC
 .Q DECORATIVE CONCRETE BLOCK - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC

04 72 00 .A CAST STONE - TYPE 1, TYPE 2, ETC

DIVISION 05 METALS
05 10 00 .A STEEL ANGLE (SEE STRUCTURAL)
 .B STEEL BEAM (SEE STRUCTURAL)
 .C STEEL PLATE (SEE STRUCTURAL)
 .D STEEL CHANNEL (SEE STRUCTURAL)

.E  STEEL COLUMN (SEE STRUCTURAL)

05 20 00 .A STEEL JOIST (SEE STRUCTURAL)

05 30 00 .A 1-1/2" METAL DECK (SEE STRUCTURAL)
.B 1-1/2" METAL ACOUSTIC DECK (SEE STRUCTURAL)
.C 3" METAL DECK (SEE STRUCTURAL)

05 50 00 .A 1-1/4" NOM. DIA. STL. PIPE RAILING-WELD & GRIND SMOOTH (PAINT)
 .B STEEL GRATE TREADS (PAINT)
 .C MC 12 x 10.6 STRINGERS WITH CLOSED ENDS (PAINT)
 .D GRIND SMOOTH WELDS AND CUT EDGES (PAINT)
 .E STEEL PAN TREAD AND RISER (PAINT)
 .F 1 1/4" NOM DIA STEEL PIPE (PAINT)
 .G 1/4" x 1" STEEL BAR (PAINT)

DIVISION 06 CARPENTRY
06 20 00 .A UNTREATED WOOD BLOCKING
 .B 1/2" EXTERIOR TREATED PLYWOOD
 .C 3/4" EXTERIOR TREATED PLYWOOD
 .D MOISTURE TREATED WOOD BLOCKING SECURED TO SUBSTRATE
 .E SCREW 2x TO SUB-BLOCKING AT 16" OC
 .F 3/8" x 10" HOOKED END BOLT AT 32" OC INTO MASONRY JOINT OR

GROUTED BLOCK COURSE
 .G 3/8" x 3" CARRIAGE BOLT AT EACH ANGLE OR 32" OC MAX
 .H 1/2" x 4" EXPANSION BOLT AT 48" OC
 .I NOT USED.
 .J FIRE TREATED WOOD BLOCKING SECURED TO SUBSTRATE
 .K STRAP ANCHOR
 .L 1/2" FIRE RETARDANT PLYWOOD

06 25 00 .A ALUMINUM COVERED PLYWOOD
 .B CONTINUOUS SOFFIT VENT

DIVISION 07 THERMAL AND MOISTURE PROTECTION
07 21 00 .A RIGID OR PERIMETER INSULATION - SEE DRAWINGS FOR THICKNESS
 .B CAVITY WALL INSULATION. SEE DRAWINGS FOR THICKNESS
 .C FIBERGLASS BATT INSULATION FULL THICKNESS OF CAVITY
 .D FIBERGLASS LOOSE INSULATION PACKED IN VOIDS
 .E VAPOR BARRIER
 .F SAFING INSULATION
 .G  FURRED WALL INSULATION

.H MASONRY INSULATION (GRANULAR)

07 51 00 .A 4 PLY BUILT UP ROOFING SYSTEM
.B ROOF INSULATION - SEE ROOF PLAN FOR THICKNESS
.C VAPOR RETARDER
.D GRACE'S PERMABARRIER ALUMINUM FLASHING

 .E TAPERED  OR STEP INSULATION
 .F ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT
 .G OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT15 LB FELT
  .H MODIFIED ASPHALT MEMBRANE UNDERLAYMENT
 .I NOT USED

.J ROOFING SEALANT

.K ROOF EXPANSION JOINT COVER OR FLEXIBLE FLASHINGS

.L GRACE'S PERMABARRIER ALUMINUM FLASHING

.M 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT RATED ROOF/CEILING ASSEMBLIES)

.N 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT RATED ROOF/CEILING ASSEMBLIES)

.O NOT USED

.P PREFABRICATED INSULATED SMOKE HATCH, OR ROOF HATCH (SEE
PLAN)

07 52 00 .A MODIFIED BITUMENOUS ROOFING SYSTEM
.B ROOF INSULATION - SEE ROOF PLAN FOR THICKNESS
.C VAPOR RETARDER
.D 1/2" INSULATION COVER BOARD
.E TAPERED OR STEP INSULATION
.F ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT
.G OVERFLOW ROOF DRAIN - SET CLAMP RING IN SEALANT
.H MODIFIED ASPHALT MEMBRANE UNDERLAYMENT
.I NOT USED
.J ROOFING SEALANT

  .K ROOF EXPANSION JOINT COVER OR FLEXIBLE FLASHINGS
.L GRACE'S PERMABARRIER ALUMINUM FLASHING
.M 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT RATED ROOF/CEILING ASSEMBLIES)
.N 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (AT ACOUSTIC DECK OR RATED

ASSEMBLIES)
.O NOT USED
.P PREFABRICATED INSULATED SMOKE HATCH, OR ROOF HATCH (SEE

PLAN)

07 60 00 .A CONTINUOUS HOOK STRIP ANCHORED TO BLOCKING AT 16" OC
 .B PRE-FINISHED METAL FACIA OR CAP
 .C ANCHOR FACIA TO 2x WITH GASKETED SCREWS AT 2'-6" OC
 .D PRE-FINISHED METAL OVERFLOW SCUPPER, WITH PRE-FINISHED

METAL FLANGE ALL SIDES HEM EXPOSED EDGES
 .E PRE-FINISHED METAL FLASHING ANCHORED WITH GASKETED

SCREWS AT 12" OC
 .F PREFINISHED METAL DOWNSPOUT SECURE FLANGE TO WALL W/

LEAD SHIELD ANCHORS 2'-0" OC
 .G GASKETED SCREWS THRU MIDPOINT OF SLOTTED HOLES OR

BETWEEN SECTIONS OF FLASHING
 .H PREFINISHED METAL SCUPPER & LEADER

07 90 00 .A CAULKING
 .B PRE COMPRESSED FOAM SEALANT

DIVISION 08 DOORS AND WINDOWS
08 11 00 .A HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND/OR FRAME

08 14 00 .A WOOD DOOR

08 40 00 .A ALUMINUM ENTRANCE DOOR AND FRAME
 .B ALUMINUM  CURTAINWALL FRAME

08 40 10 .A ALUMINUM ENTRANCE DOOR AND FRAME

08 45 00 .A SKYLIGHT PANEL ASSEMBLY, FLASHING AND EAVE STRUT BY SKYLIGHT
SUPPLIER

 .B ANCHOR SKYLIGHT TO STEEL PLATE

08 51 00 .A ALUMINUM WINDOW

DIVISION 09 FINISHES
09 24 00 .A CEMENT PLASTER

09 27 13 .A INTERIOR COLUMN COVER

09 27 16 .A EXTERIOR COLUMN COVER

09 29 00 .A 6" - 20 GA STEEL STUDS AT 16" OC
 .B 3-5/8"  20 GA STEEL STUDS AT 16" OC
 .C 2-1/2"  25GA STEEL STUDS AT 24" OC
 .D 1-5/8"  25 GA STEEL STUDS AT 24" OC
 .E STEEL RUNNER ANCHORED TO STEEL BEAM, JOIST OR DECK
 .F 7/8" FURRING CHANNELS AT 16" OC
 .G FILLET WELD STUDS TO STEEL ANGLE OR BEAM, BOTH SIDES OF

STUD, FULL HEIGHT OF ATTACHMENT
 .H 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT

NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)
.I NOT USED
.J (2) LAYERS 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM

BOARD (EXCEPT REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED
CONSTRUCTION)

 .K (2) LAYERS EACH SIDE 1/2" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT
REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

.L 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT
REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .M (1) LAYER EACH SIDE 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT
REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .N (2) LAYERS EACH SIDE 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD (EXCEPT REGULAR
GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .O NOT USED
.P 1/2" SHEATHING

 .Q 5/8" TYPE X GYPSUM BOARD ON DRYWALL SUSPENSION SYSTEM
(EXCEPT REGULAR GYPSUM BOARD AT NON-RATED CONSTRUCTION)

 .R EDGE BEAD
 .S CORNER BEAD
 .T "Z" FURRING @ 16" OC
 .U RESILIENT CHANNELS @ 16" OC
 .V ACOUSTIC BLANKETS

.W 1/2" CEMENT BOARD

.X DEFLECTION TRACK

09 30 00 .A CERAMIC TILE (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE FOR TYPE/LOCATIONS)
 .B SOLID SURFACE WINDOW STOOL

09 65 00 .A RUBBER BASE (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE)

09 68 00 .A CARPET (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE)

09 80 00 .A SUSPENDED ACOUSTICAL CEILING (SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE)

DIVISION 10  SPECIALTIES
10 01 00 .A ENTRANCE MAT RECESSED

DIVISION 12  FURNISHINGS
12 35 50 .A CASEWORK (SEE PLAN AND INTERIOR ELEVATIONS)

DIVISION 22  PLUMBING
22 00 00 .A RAIN WATER LEADER (SEE MECHANICAL)

.B VENT STACK (SEE MECHANICAL)

DIVISION 23  MECHANICAL
23 00 00 .A MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT UNIT ANCHORED TO CURB WITH

GASKETED SCREWS (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .B PREFABRICATED ALUMINUM CURB FURNISHED BY MECHANICAL AND

INSTALLED BY GENERAL CONTRACTOR
 .C WELD CURB TO STEEL DECK OR CHANNEL (BY GENERAL

CONTRACTOR)
 .D PIPE (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .E VENT PIPE W/ INSECT SCREEN BY MECHANICAL @ GAS CURB ONLY -

OMIT @ CONDENSER CURB
 .F STACK OR FLUE WITH HOOD (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .G METAL LINING (SEE MECHANICAL)
 .H DUCT (SEE MECHANICAL)

DIVISION 31  SITEWORK
31 00 00 .A 6" MIN SAND CUSHION
 .B FINISH GRADE (SEE SITE PLAN)

.C COARSE FILTER AGGREGATE

DIVISION 33  UTILITIES
33 46 13 .A DRAIN TILE

136



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on the 7th 
day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by __________ and seconded by ___________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-25 

 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A DONATION  

FROM THE HANOVER LIONS CLUB 
 
WHEREAS, the Hanover Lions Club approached the City with an intention to donate $4,000 for the purpose of 
purchasing a Lion Head Water Fountain to be installed in Settlers Park; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hanover Lions Club has contacted Avalon Studios to complete the construction of the water 
fountain. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby 
acknowledges and accepts the donations of $4,000 from the Hanover Athletic Association. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City will honor the negotiations between the Hanover Lions Club and 
Avalon Studios for the construction of the fountain. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council expresses its thanks and appreciation for the donation 
from the Hanover Athletic Association. 
 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 

137



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on the 7th 
day of April, 2015.   
 
The following Council Members were present:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
The following Council Members were absent:  None.   
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by __________ and seconded by ___________. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 04-07-15-26 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING FIRST HALF PAYMENT OF THE 

LION HEAD DRINKING FOUNTAIN TO AVALON STUDIOS 
 
WHEREAS, the attached invoice is for the first half payment of the Lion Head Drinking Fountain; and 
 
WHEREAS, the payment of this invoice is required prior to the beginning of construction of the fountain. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, hereby 
authorizes payment of attached invoice. 
 
 
 
Council members voting in favor:  Kauffman, Vajda, Hammerseng, Warpula, Zajicek 
 
Opposed or abstained:  None 
 
Adopted by the city Council this 7th day of April, 2015. 
 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 

138



INVOICE
AVALON STUDIOS

JOSHUA PORTER
12484 COUNTY ROAD 118 Phone 218-765-3382

MERRIFIELD MN 56465 Cell Phone 218-851-7965

BILL TO:
City of Hanover Invoice Date: 3/16/2015

Hanover, MN 55341 Invoice Number: 372

Contact: Brian Hagen
PHONE 763-497-3777 ext 1
FAX 

Description Supplies / Parts Amount
  

$1,900.00 

$35.00 

Estimate Lion Fountain will be ready for delivery mid July 2015

Subtotal $1,935.00 
Shipping $0.00 
Tax Rate 0.00%
Total Tax $0.00 

TOTAL $1,935.00 

Comments / Notes

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS
Call me if you have any questions (Josh) 218-851-7965

11250 5th St. NE

New Lion Drinking Fountain $3800    50% down to confirm the order = $1900

Lions logo with club information on one or both sides $35

Delivery to Hanover, MN $75  (does not include istallation)

Balance of $1900 + $75 for delivery will be due on delivery

www.avalonsculpture.com

139

http://www.avalonsculpture.com/


140



141


	04-07-15 Claims.pdf
	04-07-15 Payroll.pdf
	03-27-15 Paid Register
	03-27-15 Ded Ben
	03-27-15 Med
	03-27-15 PERA


	Ordinance 2015-01 - Amendment to Chapter 10 Sections 10 48  10 52 - DRAFT 2.pdf
	Ordinance No. 2015-01

	04-07-15 Hennepin County Hanover 2015 Sales Book.pdf
	report.pdf
	Area Prices
	Area Prices (2)
	Area Prices (3)
	Area Prices (4)
	Area Prices (5)

	ADPBE87.tmp
	Annual Revaluation
	Each year, one fifth of the properties in the city are normally reviewed and the records are updated. Enclosed is a map of the 2015 revaluation area as well as the areas to be reviewed over the next four years.
	Summary of the 2015 Assessment
	The Local Board of Appeal and Equalization Process




	04-07-15 CC Staff Memo.pdf
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  April 2, 2015
	Re:  Review of April 7, 2015 City Council Agenda

	04-07-15 CC Staff Memo.pdf
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  April 2, 2015
	Re:  Review of April 7, 2015 City Council Agenda




